BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
March 27, 2024
Regular Meeting — 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk,
at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https: / /us06web.zoom.us/i/81092306740?pwd=pZmSIHmM3UV7YaMKBnFskA695WQU4sb. 1

Meeting ID
810 9230 6740

Passcode:
152361

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
e +1 669 444 9171 US
e +1 253 205 0468 US
e +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
e +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
e +1 719 359 4580 US

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
b. Roll Call

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard
after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

(Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion. )

1. Approval of Minutes for: February 28, 2024 Regular Meeting
2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the March Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates

REGULAR AGENDA

5. Annual Groundwater Report 2023

a. Presentation of Report
-b. Consider Acceptance of Annual Groundwater Report 2023
0. Consider Resolution Amending the District’s Procurement Policy
7. Consider Resolution--Intention to undertake a Project and Setting a

Public Hearing—Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

8. Consider Authorizing Director Attendance at the 2024 ACWA/JPIA’s
Board of Directors’ Meeting May 6th, 2024, Sacramento, California

9. Consider General Manager/Designee and Director Attendance at the
ACWA Spring Conference May 7t — May 9th, 2024, Sacramento,
California V ‘

10. Committee/Agency Representative Reports:

a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Wittry)

b. Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan Governance
Committee (Shelton/Tonascia)

C. Zone 3 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Williams)

d. Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)

11. Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report



12. General Manager’s Report:

General Comments

gL

Reach 1 Operations

Zone 3 Operations

I

Zone 6 Operations
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities

&

N}

g) City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan

13. CLOSED SESSION:
Public Employee Performance Evaluation - consider the appointment,
employment, evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of a
public employee or to hear complaints or charges brought against the
employee by another person or employee unless the employee requests a
public session.

Title: General Manager
Authority: California Government Code Section 54957

14. OPEN SESSION:
Report action if any

15. Adjournment

Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting of the Board will be Wednesday, April
24, 2024. Meetings are held at the District office, 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. LAST DAY TO FILE CLAIMS against the
District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December. Usually meeting dates change in those months
because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee negotiations as
authorized by the Ralph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #350-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,

Hollister, California.




February 28, 2024
Regular Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, February 28, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District
office at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Andrew
Shelton, Vice President Doug Williams and Directors Sonny Flores, Joe Tonascia and Mark
Wright. Also present were General Manager Steve Wittry, District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem,
Manager of Administration, Finance and Business Services Megan Holland, Deputy District
Engineer Rob Hillebrecht, Operations and Maintenance Manager Michael Craig, Senior
Engineer David Macdonald, Water Resources Technician II Dustin Franco, Water Programmer
III Anne Stull, Office Specialist I Jennifer Cosio Arellano and Executive Assistant/Board Clerk
Barbara Mauro.

- CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by President Shelton at 5:00 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Shelton led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll; members present were: President Shelton, Vice President

Williams and Directors Flores, Tonascia and Wright.

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Agenda was
approved by 5 affirmative votes, Shelton, Williams, Flores, Tonascia and Williams.

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Approval of Minutes for: January 31, 2024 Regular Meeting

2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the February Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates

With no questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director Williams and seconded by
Director Wright; the Consent Agenda was approved by 5 affirmative votes, Shelton, Williams,
Flores, Tonascia and Williams.

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024



REGULAR AGENDA

5.

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024

Presentation of FYE 2023 GASB 68 & GASB 75 and Actuarial Report by Foster &
Foster LLC

Ms. Holland stated both reports are completed annually and introduced Kateryna Pryor
from Foster & Foster LLC who will make the presentation to the Board.

Ms. Pryor, using a PowerPoint presentation, reviewed the GASB 68 and 75 reports for
the Board. She reported the 68 is for the CalPERS Retirement Net Pension and the 75 is
the Public Health Report. Ms. Pryor provided a brief overview and reviewed the changes
from 2021, to 2022 and then to 2023 and the reasons behind them.

Director Tonascia asked if the District needs to add funds in or if we were over-funded;
Ms. Holland stated neither, staff is recommending no changes.

Director Flores asked if the District is 99% funded and Ms. Holland verified that is
correct.

Consider Resolution Setting Forth its Intentions Regarding Percolation

of San Felipe Project Water for Water Contract Year 2024-2025

Mr. Wittry reported the District considers this item annually once it has received the
water allocation. Historically, the District attempts to use 10% of its total water
allocation for percolation. The initial 2024/2025 allocation is 15% for Agriculture and
65% of historical use for Municipal and Industrial. Using the standard template from
recent years would be 10% or for this year, approximately 1000 AF, but trying to be
flexible in light of the high potential for revisions to the allocations, the draft resolution is
for 10% +/-, not a specific number.

Director Tonascia stated the District didn’t percolate 10% last year and hopes there is a
better mechanism this year; the committee discussed 10% as a target but did not want to
limit if water was available. Mr. Wittry added in the current water year, the District
percolated approximately 2000 acre feet.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Williams, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution #2024-02, 4 Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District Setting Forth Its Intentions Regarding Percolation of
San Felipe Project Water for Water Contract Year 2024-2025 with 5 affirmative votes,
Shelton, Williams, Flores, Tonascia and Wright.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Wittry)
As per Director Tonascia, Mr. Wittry will cover this under his Manager’s report.

b. Water Resources Association (Flores/Shelton)
As per Director Flores, general business was discussed. Mr. Novack also covered
conservation topics.

c. Administration Committee (Flores/Shelton)

As per Director Shelton, the committee discussed LAFCo and revising the
Procurement Policy.



d. Finance Committee (Tonascia/Shelton)
As per Director Tonascia, the committee reviewed the 2" quarter reporting,
and they discussed setting up the report a little different in the future.

e. Personnel Committee (Flores/Tonascia)
As per Director Flores, the committee discussed some needed personnel policy
revisions.

f. Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)
As per Directors Tonascia and Wright; the committee discussed the percolation
resolution. Director Tonascia added the District will be giving a 35% water
allocation to the Ag contract accounts.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

Mr. Craig reported staff is busy with the end of the water year, reading meters. Also,
staff will be installing a new pressure relief valve in San Juan Bautista, but it will not
affect operations in sub-10. Also, staff will be mowing and spraying in Zone 3.

Mr. Craig then reviewed photos of the break at Fairview and Highway 156. It was a very
challenging repair which was in the middle of a road, and near a gas and power line. The
total repair took about 3 weeks. It was also near the wire for the traffic signal sensor,
which cannot be spliced so any damage would require complete replacement which is a
costly repair. Director Wright asked if there was any determination on what caused the
break. Mr. Craig stated they still don’t know. Director Wright asked about whether there
was adequate reinforcement around our pipe when they put the new road years ago; Mr.
Craig could not confirm. Mr. Craig stated the obstacles they encountered (gas line, signal
sensor) forced a lot of the work to be dug by hand, which was a slow process.

Director Tonascia asked about the canal in Paicines. Mr. Craig reported staff did a lot of
work there as well. Mr. Wittry added water will be flowing through the canal soon,
hopefully by next Wednesday.

General Manager’s Report:

a. General Comments
Mr. Wittry reported the District received an allocation of 15% for Ag and 65% for
M&I as of February 1% likely to be revised later by the Bureau. North of Delta
received a 100% allocation. The District is considering participation in the
Drought Pool at San Luis. Director Flores asked what the District’ percentage of
this water is. Mr. Wittry stated the total amount of the drought pool is 200,000
Acre Feet. CVP contractors are hoping to amass 84,000 AF. However,
SBCWD’s proportionate share is only 922-acre feet.
Because of what the District has stored in San Justo, the Ag contract customers
will be given 35% of their request and M & I Small Parcel customers will be
given their full allocation. Also, Mr. Wittry reported there is sufficient water for
the two treatment plants to receive sufficient allocation to meet blending
requirements.

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024 3



Mr. Wittry further reported the District was again awarded the GFOA
(Government Finance Officers Association) for the Audited Financial Statement;
it was the eleventh year in a row.

b. Reach 1 Operations
Mr. Wittry reported Bifurcation will be shutdown in early April for approximately
1 week; District staff will coordinate the shutdown with Santa Clara Valley Water
District.

c. Zone 3 Operations
Mr. Wittry reported there are still seepage issues at the canal. He would like to
install a pipe to help solve the issue in the canal. To properly repair it, staff will
have to postpone that installation until the river dries. Also, staff went out to
Hernandez last week and water was twenty feet from the top of the spillway and
approximately 150-acre feet of water per day is going through Hernandez. Mr.
Wittry stated the plan is to install the new valve at Hernandez in July.

Director Williams asked about cleaning the debris in the canal. Mr. Wittry
replied yes, staff hopes to do this next week.

Director Tonascia asked if it will be cleaned out before putting in the pipe. Mr.
Wittry stated yes. He further reported he has had requests from customers and
board members about using an area for additional percolation near Paicines
Ranch. In speaking with Todd Groundwater, they actually started there years ago
and can provide good information to the District on that area. Once he has the
information, he will provide that to the Board for further discussion on
percolation. There could also be more environmental requirements now for
additional percolation in that were not needed years ago.

d. Zone 6 Operations
Mr. Wittry added, he would like to hold meetings with both the Zone 3 and Zone
6 committees to discuss deferred maintenance programs. This can be addressed
through the budget process as a separate item in a Capital Improvement Plan.

Director Tonascia asked about the operation plan designed by Jeff Micko. Mr.
Wittry reported the District is using an asset management plan through Nexgen
now. Michael Craig said the District changed from Micko’s plan to Nexgen,
working with Alan Zeisbrich; staff much prefers this program.

e. Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
Mr. Wittry reported ADRoP is at 100% design and staff intends to go to bid as
early as April. District staff will be interviewing 2 firms for construction
management in early March, which were chosen through the RFP process. Mr.
Wittry invited the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District to sit
on the interview panel.

Director Wright asked how the District will be compensated for the treated water
from ADRoP. Mr. Wittry stated that has yet to be determined but will likely be in
the Water Supply and Treatment Agreement Amendment. Director Wright asked

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024 4



how we will capture our costs and Director Tonascia further asked how we will
collect money to maintain the project. Mr. Wittry replied, in concept, the upgrade
to the West Hills Plant will be subject to the same agreement.

Director Tonascia asked when was this project approved by the Board. Mr.
Wittry stated the previous manager brought it before the Board; the only changes
that have been done in the past several months is a relocation of the of the
injection well field. Director Tonascia remembered the savings of $10 million on
the location change and the $2 million on the well for the City of Hollister, but he
would like to see it as a regular agenda item.

Director Wright asked about the previous well the City did and what happened.
Mr. Wittry stated the City drilled a test well to a depth of less than 400 feet; the
District had recommended they go 800 feet. The City staff at the time abandoned
pursuit of that well site. However, District staff and consultants reviewed the data
from this effort and, with current City staff approval, had intended to further
investigate the site. Unfortunately, the cost of the borehole project precluded the
additional investigation at City site. He further reported the environmental work
continues and they continue to evaluate seven sites with the intent of completing
5. This allows for a change in locations should an individual site be determined
“unfit’.

f. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
Mr. Wittry reported the Authority approved water rates. Their fiscal year is the
same as the water year. The Authority had to reevaluate rates 3 times this past
year. Now, they are operating off of 2 scenarios, a 20% allocation and a 40%
allocation; these changes can affect our costs.

g. City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
Mr. Wittry reported District staff continues to work with San Juan Bautista’s staff.
He had a meeting with the Council of Gevernment’s (COG) Director and
discussed the proposed route from the West Hill’s plant to San Juan. The optimal
time for the pipeline installation would be August to December and would need
an encroachment permit. The agreements would need to be brought to the Board
fairly quickly so San Juan Bautista can obtain either a loan from the District or a
USDA Grant. He further described the proposed bike lane/pedestrian path and
discussed the cost savings for both the County and San Juan Bautista.

Director Flores asked about the timing. Mr. Wittry stated the bridging agreement
is the most important, to cover the administrative costs. Director Tonascia asked
if the agreement is ready. Mr. Wittry stated it is close, but San Juan Bautista
turned their focus to the wastewater agreement with the City of Hollister; now
they have returned focus to the water issues. Director Flores further asked if the
original contract had a prepayment clause? Mr. Wittry stated the original
agreement specified if they found more favorable funding, they could use it. The
City of San Juan has also adopted rates to support both the water and wastewater
projects.

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024 5



10.

11.

12.

A member of the audience, Ken Perry, asked why the water line couldn’t go down
next to the old highway. Mr. Wittry replied that the current plan is to install the
pipeline within the old highway (new Frontage Rd).

CLOSED SESSION:

Public Employee Performance Evaluation - consider the appointment, employment,
evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of a public employee or to hear
complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or employee
unless the employee requests a public session.

Title: General Manager
Authority: California Government Code Section 54957

(The Board convened in Closed Session at 6:15 p.m.)

OPEN SESSION:
Report action if any

(The Board returned to Open Session at 7:30 p.m.)
President Shelton stated the Board had no action to report.

Adjournment
With no further business to report, the meeting was adjourned at 7:31 p.m.

Andrew Shelton, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Regular Meeting Minutes, February 28, 2024 6



System: 3/20/2024 11:41:49 . San Benito County Water District Page: 1
User Date: 3/20/202¢ COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER User ID: Leilani
Payables Management
Batch ID: CK032724 Audit Trail Code: PMCHK00001015
Batch Comment: Posting Date: 3/27/2024
Checkbook: UB-CKG
* Voided Checks
Check # Date Payment Number  Vendor ID Check Name Amount
0058364 3/27/2024 032140 A1JAN A-1 Services $524.00
0058365 3/27/2024 032141 ALPHA Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. $1,320.00
0058366 3/27/2024 032142 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc $438.00
0058367 3/27/2024 032143 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation $39,657.44
0058368 3/27/2024 032144 CINTA Cintas Corporation $680.78
0058369 3/27/2024 032145 CMANA CM Analytical Inc $1,810.00
0058370 3/27/2024 032146 CUPER Cupertino Marketing $2,070.00
0058371 3/27/2024 032147 DASSE Dassel's Petroleum Inc $81.06
0058372 3/27/2024 032148 DONCH Don Chapin Company inc $417.15
0058373 3/27/2024 032149 EBCO EBCO Pest Control $66.00
0058374  3/27/2024 032150 ELCCO ELC Consulting $9,807.74
0058375 3/27/2024 032151 FASTE Fastenal Company $328.34
0058376  3/27/2024 032152 FORDE Ford Equipment Repair Co. $2,707.71
0058377 3/27/2024 032153 FOSTE Foster & Foster Inc $750.00
0058378 3/27/2024 032154 GABRO Gabilan Rock Inc $5,412.00
0058379  3/27/2024 032155 GRAIN GRAINGER $304.086
0058380 3/27/2024 032156 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates $6,838.39
0058381 3/27/2024 032157 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants $1,350.00
0058382 3/27/2024 032158 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc $81.37
0058383 3/27/2024 032159 HDRENG HDR Engineering Inc $148,148.09
0058384 3/27/2024 032160 HTRUE Hollister True Value Inc. $146.90
0058385 3/27/2024 032161 ICONI ICONIX Waterworks Inc $5,243.50
0058386 3/27/2024 032162 JACPA Pat Jackson $120.00
0058387 3/27/2024 032163 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company $1,001.30
0058388 3/27/2024 032164 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwell ( $250.00
0058389  3/27/2024 032165 MCKIN McKinnon Lumber Inc $365.14
0058390 3/27/2024 032166 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC $340.00
0058391  3/27/2024 032167 NEWSV New SV Media Inc $930.00
0058392 3/27/2024 032168 PALAC Palace Business Solutions $1,001.48
0058393 3/27/2024 032169 PATDA Pat Davis Design Group Inc. $190.00
0058394  3/27/2024 032170 PIPET Pipe Thru Plumbing Inc $18,450.00
0058395 3/27/2024 032171 RESER Reserve Account $1,000.00
0058396 3/27/2024 032172 SHRED Shred-it $209.07
0058397 3/27/2024 032173 SJELE SJ Electro Systems Inc $470.00
0058398 3/27/2024 032174 SSCWD-TP Sunnyslope County Water District $359,063.89
0058399 3/27/2024 032175 TODDE Todd Groundwater $16,827.50
0058400 3/27/2024 032176 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation $2,967.15
0058401 3/27/2024 032177 TRUEP TruePoint Solutions $13,626.10
0058402 3/27/2024 032178 UNIFI Unified Field Services Corporation $226,287.15
0058403 3/27/2024 032179 USBNK-CC US Bank Corporation $5,902.51
0058404 3/27/2024 032180 WRIIN Wright Bros Industrial Supply $126.26
0058405 3/27/2024 032181 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich $2,170.00
Total Checks: 42 Checks Total: $879,480.08




Page: 2

System: 3/20/2024 11:41:. San Benito County Water District
User ID: Leilani

User Date: 3/20/2024 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

* Voided Checks

Check# Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

| DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THIS 27TH DAY OF MARCH 2024 THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE

BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME ARE ACCURATE AND JUST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT;
AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

A )

Prepare{j by: Manager of Admin and Finance

Submitted by: General Manager

APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON:
Date

President



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description

$0.00 $66.00 000-2001-6000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $6.60 Fund 300: $3.306 Fund 600: $56.10 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund§03: 0.00
Voucher# 049881 Vendor: Palace Business Solutions Invoice # 2330157-0 Date  3/18/2024 Amt $187.16
$187.16 $0.00 000-6835-0000-000 Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
. 600-6835-0000-562 $159.09
‘ v 300-6835-0000-562 $9.36
100-6835-0000-562 $18.72
$0.00 $187.16 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: §18.72 Fund 300: $9.36 Fund 600: $159.69 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049882 Vendor: Cintas Corporation Invoice # 4186843444 Date 3/ 19/2024 Amt $137.72
$137.72 - $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $13.77
300-6275-0000-563 $6.89
600-6275-0000-563 $117.06
$0.00 $137.72 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $13,77 Fund 300: $6.89 Fund 600: $117.06 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049885 Vendor: Pat Jackson Invoice # 031324 Date  3/13/2024 Amt $120.00
$120.00 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $12.00
300-6275-0000-563 $6.00
600-6275-0000-563 $102.00
$0.00 $120.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $12.00 Fund 300: $6.00 Fund 600: $102.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Report Totals:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $2,427.29 Fund 300: $11,763.25 Fund 600: $844,188.34

Fund 700: 16.445.00 Fund 803:4.656.19

Fund 100 = District Administration
Fund 300 = Zone 3

Fund 600 = Zone 6

Fund 700 = GSA

Fund 803 = WRA

214272
11276325+

8LL 188
162L45-G0+
65619+

879:680-C7%

= Bl




San Benito County Water District
Voucher Fund Distribtion Verfication/Approval Report

Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
Voucher# 049778 Vendor: Cupertino Marketing Invoice # 12460 Date  2/28/2024  Amt $1,800.00
$1,800.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $1,800.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: 50.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 1,800.00
Voucher# 049779 - Vendor: A-1 Services Invoice # 4894 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $524.00
$306.00 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $30.60
300-6275-0000-563 $15.30
600-6275-0000-563 $260.10
$0.00 $524.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$218.00 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $21.80
300-6275-0000-563 $10.90
600-6275-0000-563 $185.30
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $52.40 [Fund 300: §26.20 Fund 600: $445.40 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049780 Vendor: Before the Movie Inc Invoice # 50299 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $438.00
$438.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $438.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 438.00
Voucher# 049781 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000063516 Date  3/5/2024 Amt $29.90
$29.90 $0.00 600-6483-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Smali Tools
30.00 $29.90 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000; $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: 50.00 Fund 600: $29.90 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucherf# 049782 Vendor: Cupertino Marketing Invoice # 12461 Date  2/28/2024  Amt $270.00
$270.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (P1)
$0.00 $270.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 270.00
Voucher# 049783 Vendor: Fastenal Company Invoice # CAHOS63846 Date  2/16/2024  Amt $243.07
$243.07 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $243.07 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $243.07 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049784 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000061099 Date  1/29/2024  Amt $3,600.00
$3,600.00 $0.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$0.00 $3,600.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $3,600.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049785 Vendor: Fastenal Company Invoice # CAHOS63902 Date  2/22/2024  Amt . $85.27
$85.27 $0.00 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
$0.00 $85.27 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: §85.27 Fund 7060: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049786 Vendor: Ford Equipment Repair Co. Invoice # 3809 Date  2/13/2024  Amt’ $2,707.71
$2,301.55 $0.00 600-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy
$0.00 $2,707.71 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$270.77 $0.00 100-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy
$135.39 $0.00 300-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $270,77 Fund 300: $135.39 Fund 600: $2,301.55 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049787 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000061120 Date  1/29/2024  Amt $9,250.00
$9,250.00 $0.00 300-6275-0000-512 CS-Maintenance-SSM
$0.00 $9,250.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00  Fund 300: $9,250.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049788 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000061119 Date  1/29/2024  Amt $700.00
$700.00 $0.00 300-6275-0000-512 CS-Maintenance-SSM
$0.00 $700.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: §700.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher## 049789 Vendor: Alpha Analytical Laboratories, Inc. Invoice # 4026462-DP_SBCWDate  2/27/2024  Amt $1,320.00
$1,320.00 $0.00 700-1351-0221-151 GSA-Grdwtr Mgmt Plan
$0.00 $1,320.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700:  1,320.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049790 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48007 Date  2/14/2024  Amt $943.14
$943.14 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $943.14 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $943.14 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049791 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48008 Date  2/14/2024  Amt $195.93
$195.93 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $195.93 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $195.93 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049792 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48009 Date  2/14/2024  Amt $198.91
$198.91 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $198.91 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $198.91 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049793 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48010 Date  2/14/2024 Amt $179.70
$179.70 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $179.70 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: §0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $179.70 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049794 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48016 Date  2/14/2024 Amt $940.56
$940.56 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $940.56 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $940.56 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049795 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48011 Date  2/14/2024 Amt $172.39
$172.39 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $172.39 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $172.39 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049796 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc ‘Invoice # 48014 Date  2/14/2024 Amt $954.55
$954.55 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
50.00 $954.55 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: 50.00 Fund 600: $954.55 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049797 Vendor: Gabilan Rock Inc Invoice # 48015 Date  2/14/2024 Amt $933.57
$933.57 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $933.57 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $933.57 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049798 Vendor: Cintas Corporation Invoice # 4185408102 Date  3/5/2024 Amt $137.72
$137.72 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $13.77
300-6275-0000-563 $6.89 '
600-6275-0000-563 $117.06
$0.00 $137.72 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $13.77 Fund 300: $6.89 Fund 600: $117.06 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:

Voucher# 049799 Vendor:

Gabilan Rock Inc

Invoice # 48012

Date  2/22/2024  Amt $893.25

$893.25

$0.00

600-6320-0920-542

Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$0.00 $893.25 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $893.25 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049800 Vendor: GRAINGER Invoice # 9027225490 Date  2/20/2024  Amt $304.06
$304.06 $0.00 600-6330-0000-542 Tools Purchase-TM
30.00 $304.06 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049801 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$0.00 Fund 300:

Cintas Corporation

$0.00 Fund 600:

Invoice # 4184690966

$304.06 Fund 700:

Date  2/27/2024

0.00 Fund803:

Amt

$137.72

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049802 Vendor:

50.00 Fund 100:

$137.72 $0.00

$0.00 $137.72

$13.77 Fund 300:

Grossmayer & Associates

000-6275-0000-000
100-6275-0000-563
300-6275-0000-563
600-6275-0000-563

000-2001-0000-000

$6.89 Fund 600:

Invoice # 1VC3713

CS-Maint 10/5/85
$13.77
$6.89
$117.06

Master Accounts Payable

$117.06 Fund 700:

Date  2/6/2024

0.00 Fund 803:

Amt

$145.00

Fund 000:

Voucherf# 049803 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$145.00 $0.00

$0.00 $145.00

$14.50 Fund 300:

CM Analytical Inc

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-2001-0000-000

§7.25 Fund 600:

Invoice # 81988

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$14.50
$7.25
$123.25

Master Accounts Payable

$123.25 Fund 700:

Date  2/8/2024

0.00 Fund8§03:

Amt

$450.00

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund100:

Voucher# 049804 Vendor:

$450.00 $0.00

$0.00 $450.00

$0.00 Fund 300:

CM Analytical Inc

700-6270-0135-511

000-2001-0000-000

$0.00 Fund 600:

Invoice # 82012

CS-Ops-Water Quality Groundwater-S§0

Master Accounts Payable

$0.60 Fund 700:

Date  2/8/2024

Amt

450.00 Fund803:

$1,120.00

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100:

Voucher# 049805 Vendor:

$1,120.00 $0.00

$0.00 $1,120.00

$0.00 Fund 300:

Grossmayer & Associates

600-6270-0000-541

000-2001-0000-000

$0.00 Fund 600:

Invoice # 1VC3714

CS-Operations-TO

Master Accounts Payable

$1,120.00 Fund 700:

Date  2/15/2024

0.00 Fund803:

Amt

$290.00

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100:

Voucher# 049806 Vendor:

$290.00 $0.00

$290.00

$0.00

$29.00 Fund 300:

Grossmayer & Associates

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-2001-0000-000

$14.50 Fund 600:

Invoice # IVC3717

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$29.00
$14.50
$246.50

Master Accounts Payable

$246.50 Fund 700:

Date  2/22/2024

0.00 Fund 803:

Amt

$6,403.39

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt
$5,990.56

$0.00

$412.83

$640.34 Fund 300:

Credit Amt
$0.00

$6,403.39

$0.00

$£320.17 Fund 600:

Account/Description
000-6260-0000-000

100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-2001-0000-000

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

$5,442.88 Fund 700:

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$599.06
$299.53
$5,091.98

Master Accounts Payable

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$41.28
$20.64
$350.91

0.00 Fund 803:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100:
Voucher# 049807 Vendor: Don Chapin Company Inc Invoice # 181555 Date  2/1/2024 Amt $417.15
$417.15 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $417.15 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $417.15 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049808 Vendor: Gutierrez Consultants Invoice # 1843 Date  2/29/2024  Amt $742.50
$742.50 $0.00 600-1351-0129-151 Future Water Supply- Alternatives
50.00 $742.50 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $742.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049809 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9287 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $6,897.00
$6,597.00 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $659.70
300-6260-0000-563 $329.85
600-6260-0000-563 $5,607.45
$0.00 $6,897.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$300.00 $0.00 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer GA

$659.70 Fund 300:

$329.85 Fund 600:

$5,907.45 Fund 700:

0.00 Fund803:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100:
Voucher# 049810 Vendor: Gutierrez Consultants Invoice # 1844 Date  2/29/2024  Amt $607.50
$607.50 $0.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP
$0.00 $607.50 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $607.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049811 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9288 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $1,480.00
$690.00 $0.00 600-6260-0602-531 CS Computer - Lessalt WTP
$0.00 $1,480.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$790.00 $0.00 600-6260-0603-531 CS Computer - West Hills WTP
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,480.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049812 Vendor: HDR Engineering Inc Invoice # 1200598553 Date 2/21/2024  Amt $59,598.83
$59,598.83 $0.00 600-1351-A129-151 ADRoP-Accelerated Drought Response Projec

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$0.00 $59,598.83 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $59,598.83 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049813 Vendor: Hollister Auto Parts Inc Invoice # 961331 Date  3/5/2024 Amt $28.43
$28.43 $0.00 600-6483-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Small Tools
$0.00 $28.43 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.60 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $28.43 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049814 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9289 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $100.00
$100.00 $0.00 803-6260-0000-563 CS - Computers
$0.00 $100.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher##f 049815 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9312 Date  3/6/2024 Amt $239.88
$239.88 $0.00 803-6260-0000-563 CS - Computers
$0.00 $239.88 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049816 Vendor: Hollister Auto Parts Inc Invoice # 961681 Date  3/7/2024 Amt $52.94
$52.94 $0.00 600-6460-0000-562 Vehicle Maintenance-GA
$0.00 $52.94 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $52.94 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049817 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 271798 Date  2/21/2024  Amt $39.50
$39.50 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $39.50 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $39.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049818 Vendor: Cintas Corporation Invoice # 4186127705 Date  3/12/2024  Amt $137.72
$137.72 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85
100-6275-0000-563 $13.77
300-6275-0000-563 $6.89
600-6275-0000-563 $117.06
$0.00 $137.72 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $13.77 Fund 300: $6.89 Fund 600: $117.06 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049819 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9355 Date  3/12/2024  Amt $286.78
$286.78 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $28.68
300-6260-0000-563 $14.34
600-6260-0000-563 $243.76
$0.00 $286.78 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable

0.00

0.00

100.00

239.88

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $28.68 Fund 300: $14.34  Fund 600: $243.76 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049820 Vendor: S.J. Electro Systems, Inc. Invoice # CD99514689 Date  2/22/2024  Amt $470.00
$470.00 $0.00 600-6275-0603-532 CS Maintenance - West Hills WTP
$0.00 $470.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: 50.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $470.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund§03: 0.00
Voucher# 049821 Vendor: Johanson Lumber Company Invoice # 271865 Date  2/23/2024  Amt $19.64
$19.64 $0.00 300-6320-0000-511 Supplies-SSO
$0.00 $19.64 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: 519.64 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher#f 049822 Vendor: Shred-it Invoice # 8006371062 Date  2/29/2024  Amt $209.07
$209.07 $0.00 000-6270-0000-000 CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
100-6270-0000-563 $20.91
300-6270-0000-563 $10.45
600-6270-0000-563 $177.71
$0.00 $209.07 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $20.91 Fund 300: $10.45 Fund 600: $177.71 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049823 Vendor: Sunnyslope County Water District Invoice # INV00126 Date  2/29/2024  Amt  $226,825.19
$226,825.19 $0.00 600-6270-0603-331 CS Operations - West Hills WTP
$0.00 $226,825.19 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600:  $226,825.19 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049824 Vendor: Sunnyslope County Water District invoice # INV00127 Date  2/29/2024  Amt $132,238.70
$132,238.70 $0.00 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP
$0.00 $132,238.70 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: '$0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600:  $132,238.70 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049825 Vendor:; Todd Groundwater Invoice # 37657-1324 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $14,675.00
$14,675.00 $0.00 700-1351-0221-151 GSA-Grdwtr Mgmt Plan
$0.00 $14,675.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700:  14,675.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049826 Vendor: Todd Groundwater Invoice # 37658 324 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $2,152.50
$2,152.50 $0.00 600-1351-A129-151 ADRoP-Accelerated Drought Response Projec
$0.00 $2,152.50 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $2,152.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049827 Vendor: Toro Petroleum Corporation Invoice # CL72611 Date  2/29/2024 Amt $2,967.15




Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$26.92 $0.00 100-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
' $0.00 $2,967.15 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
378.71 $0.00 300-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
$2,657.26 $0.00 600-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
$204.26 $0.00 803-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $26.92 Fund 300: $78.71 Fund 600: $2,657.26 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 204.26
Voucher# 049828 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 272412 Date  3/13/2024  Amt $54.61
$34.61 $0.00 000-6320-0000-000 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
300-6320-0000-562 $2.73
600-6320-0000-562 $46.42
100-6320-0000-562 $5.46
$0.00 $54.61 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $5.46 Fund 300: $2.73 Fund 600: $46.42 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049829 Vendor: ELC Consulting Invoice # 9357 Date  3/12/2024  Amt $804.08
$804.08 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $80.41
300-6260-0000-563 $40.20
600-6260-0000-563 $683.47
$0.00 $804.08 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $80.41 Fund 300: $40.20 Fund 600: $683.47 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049831 Vendor: TruePoint Solutions Invoice # S1-000183 Date  3/7/2024 Amt $13,256.10
$13,256.10 $0.00 600-6260-0000-551 CS-Computer-CA
$0.00 $13,256.10 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: 50.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $13,256.10 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049832 Vendor: TruePoint Solutions Invoice # SI-000218 Date  2/29/2024 Amt $370.00
$370.00 $0.00 600-6260-0000-551 CS-Computer-CA
$0.00 $370.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $370.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049833 Vendor: Hollister True Vaiue Inc. Invoice# B7733 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $37.66
$37.66 $0.00 000-6320-0000-000 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
300-6320-0000-562 $1.88
600-6320-0000-562 $32.01
100-6320-0000-562 $3.77
$0.00 $37.66 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$1.88 Fund 600: $32.01 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00

Fund 000:

Voucherf# 049834 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$3.77 Fund 300:

Unified Field Services Corporation Invoice # 0124825

Date  1/31/2024  Amt  §173,444.35

$173,444.35 $0.00 600-6275-0939-542

CS- Maintenance-Blue Valve Paint Project



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description

$0.00 $173,444.35 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund600:  $173,d44.35 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049835 Vendor: Unified Field Services Corporation Invoice # 0224992 Date  2/29/2024  Amt $52,842.80
$52,842.80 $0.00 600-6275-0939-542 CS- Maintenance-Blue Valve Paint Project
$0.00 $52,842.80 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $52,842.80 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund§03: 0.00
Voucher## 049836 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 272057 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $518.90
$51890 $0.00 600-6330-0000-542 Tools Purchase-TM
$0.00 . $518.90 OOO-ZOOI-QOOO-OOO Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $518.90 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049837 Vendor: U.S. Bank Corporation Invoice # 022224SN Date  2/22/2024  Amt $29.98
$29.98 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $29.98 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 29.98
Voucher# 049838 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 271836 Date  2/22/2024  Amt $43.68
$43.68 $0.00 000-6320-0000-000 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
300-6320-0000-562 $2.18
600-6320-0000-562 $37.13
100-6320-0000-562 $4.37
$0.00 $43.68 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $4.37 Fund 300: §2.18 Fund 600: $37.13 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049839 Vendor: U.S. Bank Corporation Invoice # 022224MC Date  2/22/2024  Amt $2,186.97
$17.43 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $1.74
300-6260-0000-563 $0.87
600-6260-0000-563 $14.82
$0.00 $2,186.97 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$297.28 $0.00 600-6850-0000-562 Travel and Mileage
$297.28 $0.00 600-6850-0000-562 Travel and Mileage
$297.28 $0.00 600-6850-0000-562 Travel and Mileage
$98.23 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$321.13 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$479.75 $0.00 600-6330-0000-542 Tools Purchase-TM
$183.69 $0.00 600-6197-0000-565 Personal Equipment/Uniform

$194.90 $0.00 600-6197-0000-565 Personal Equipment/Uniform



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $1.74 Fund 300: $0.87 Fund 600: $2,184.36 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049840 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 272245 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $28.38
$28.38 $0.00 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
$0.00 $28.38 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.60 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $28.38 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049841 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 272242 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $32.64
$32.64 $0.00 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
$0.00 $32.64 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.60 Fund 600: $32.64 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049842 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Company Invoice # 272351 Date  3/11/2024  Amt $98.31
$98.31 $0.00 600-6320-0000-511 Supplies-SSO
$0.00 $98.31 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $98.31 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049843 Vendor: Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwel Invoice # 022724 Date  2/27/2024  Amt $250.00
$250.00 $0.00 803-6240-0000-563 CS - General Consulting (Plan Cks/Rev)
$0.00 $250.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 250.00
Voucher# 049844 Vendor: U.S. Bank Corporation Invoice # 022224]M Date  2/22/2024  Amt $1,620.00
$1,620.00 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $162.00
300-6260-0000-563 $81.00
600-6260-0000-563 $1,377.00
$0.00 $1,620.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $162.00 Fund 300: $81.00 Fund 600: $1,377.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049845 Vendor: McKinnon Lumber, Inc. Invoice # 770406 Date  2/5/2024 Amt $149.94
$149.94 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $149.94 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund300: $0.00 Fund 600: $149.94 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucher# 049846 Vendor: U.S. Bank Corporation Invoice # 022224BM Date  2/22/2024 Amt $1,158.08
$3.88 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $0.39
300-6260-0000-563 $0.19
600-6260-0000-563 $3.30
$0.00 $1,158.08 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$58.93 $0.00 000-6835-0000-000 Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Fund 000:

Voucher# 049847

$0.00 Fund 100:

Vendor:

Debit Amt Credit Amt
$186.75 $0.00
$15.90 $0.00
$7.03 $0.00
$108.47 $0.00
$53.99 $0.00
$10.80 $0.00
$97.18 $0.00
$186.75 $0.00
$62.27 $0.00
$49.12 $0.00
$63.95 $0.00
$54.07 $0.00
$198.99 $0.00

§79.70 Fund 300:

McKinnon Lumber, Inc.

Account/Description
600-6835-0000-562

300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-6845-0000-000
600-6845-0000-562
100-6845-0000-562
300-6845-0000-562

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-6260-0000-000
100-6260-0000-563
300-6260-0000-563
600-6260-0000-563

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-6845-0000-000
600-6845-0000-562
100-6845-0000-562
300-6845-0000-562

000-6840-0000-000
600-6840-0000-562
100-6840-0000-562
300-6840-0000-562

803-6865-0000-562

600-6320-0000-562

$50.65 Fund 600:

Invoice # 770384

$973.65 Fund 700:

$50.09
$2.95
$5.89

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$18.68
$9.34
$158.74

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$13.52
$0.80
$1.59

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$5.98
$0.35
$0.70

General Business Exp 10/5/85
$92.20
$10.85
$5.42

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$5.40
$2.70
$45.89

CS-Computer-GA
CS-Computer-GA

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
$18.68
$9.34
$158.74

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$52.93
$3.11
$6.23

General Business Exp 10/5/85
$41.75
$4.91
$2.46

Communication GA 10/5/85
$54.36
$6.40
$3.20

Advertising/Public Info (EDU)
Supplies-GA
Amt

Date  2/5/2024

0.00 Fund803:

$158.76

$158.76

$0.00

600-6320-0920-542

Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks

54.07



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$0.00 $158.76 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $158.76 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# (049848 Vendor: McKinnon Lumber, Inc. Invoice # 771596 Date  2/22/2024 Amt $56.44
$56.44 $0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $56.44 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $56.44 Fund 700:- 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049849 Vendor; Mission Village Voice Media LLC Invoice# 1107 Date  3/4/2024 Amt $340.00
$340.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $340.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 340.00
Voucher# 049850 Vendor: New SV Media, Inc Invoice # 104384 Date  2/23/2024 Amt $160.00
$160.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $160.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 160.00
Voucher## 049851 Vendor: New SV Media, Inc Invoice # 104940 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $610.00
$160.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (P)
$0.00 $610.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$225.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$225.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 610.00
Voucher# 049852 Vendor: New SV Media, Inc Invoice # 105484 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $160.00
$160.00 $0.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
$0.00 $160.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 160.00
Voucher# 049853 Vendor: U.S. Bank Corporation Invoice # 022224SW Date  2/22/2024  Amt $907.48
$281.43 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $28.14
300-6260-0000-563 $14.07
600-6260-0000-563 $239.22
$0.00 $907.48 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$141.99 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $14.20
300-6260-0000-563 $7.10
600-6260-0000-563 $120.69
$34.62 $0.00 000-6835-0000-000 Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

600-6835-0000-562

$29.43



Fund 000:

Voucher# 049854 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

Debit Amt Credit Amt

$449.44 $0.00

$45.80 Fund 300:

Palace Business Solutions

Account/Description
300-6835-0000-562

100-6835-0000-562

600-6850-0000-562

$22.90 Fund 600:

Invoice # 2323894-0

$838.77 Fund 700:

$1.73
$3.46

Travel and Mileage

Amt

Date  2/23/2024

0.00 Fund 803:

$7.89

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049855 Vendor:

$0.00 KFund 100:

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

$0.39 Fund 600:

Invoice # 2325362-0

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$6.71
50.39
$0.79

Master Accounts Payable

$6.71 Fund 700:

Date  3/1/2024 Amt

0.00 Fund803:

$363.10

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049856 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$7.89 $0.00
$0.00 $7.89
$0.79 Fund 300:
Palace Business Solutions
$363.10 $0.00
$0.00 $363.10
$36.31 Fund 300:

Palace Business Solutions

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

$18.16 Fund 600:

Invoice # 2324083-0

$308.64 Fund 700:

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$308.64
$18.16
$36.31

Master Accounts Payable
Amt

Date  2/26/2024

0.00 Fund 803:

$183.81

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049857 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

$9.19 Fund 6006:

Invoice # 2324083-1

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$156.24
$9.19
$18.38

Master Accounts Payable

$156.24 Fund 700:

Date 2/28/2024  Amt

0.00 Fund803:

$55.85

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049858 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$183.81 $0.00
$0.00 $183.81
$18.38 Fund 300:
Palace Business Solutions
$55.85 $0.00
$0.00 $55.85

$5.59 Fund 300:

Wright Bros Industrial Supply

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

$2.79 Fund 600:

Invoice # 282074

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$47.47
$2.79
$5.59

Master Accounts Payable

$47.47 Fund 700:

Date  2/21/2024  Amt

0.00 Fund 803:

$42.23

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049859 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

600-6197-0000-565

000-2001-0000-000

$0.00 Fund 600:

Invoice # 2327996-0

Personal Equipment/Uniform

Master Accounts Payable

$42.23 Fund 700:

Date  3/8/2024 Amt

0.00 Fund 803:

$59.23

$42.23 $0.00
$0.00 $42.23
$0.00 Fund 300:
Palace Business Solutions
$59.23 $0.00

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$50.35
$2.96

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Fund 000:

Voucher# 049860 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

Account/Description
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

$2.96¢ Fund 600:

Invoice # 2-2024P

$5.92

Master Accounts Payable

$50.35 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:

Date  3/1/2024 Amt $420.00

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049861 Vendor:

§0.00 Fund 100:

Debit Amt Credit Amt
$0.00 $59.23
$5.92 Fund 300:
Alan Zeisbrich
$92.40 $0.00
$0.00 $420.00
$327.60 $0.00

$0.00 Fund 300:

Palace Business Solutions

600-1503-0158-125
000-2001-0000-000

600-1503-0158-125

50.00 Fund 6060:

Invoice # 2327538-0

Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project
Master Accounts Payable

Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project

$420.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:

Date  3/7/2024 Amt $85.21

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049862 Vendor:;

$0.00 Fund 100:

$85.21 $0.00

$0.00

$85.21

$8.52 Fund 300:

Pat Davis Design Group, Inc.

000-6835-0000-000
600-6835-0000-562
300-6835-0000-562
100-6835-0000-562

000-2001-0000-000

§4.26 Fund 600:

Invoice # 7682

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
$72.43
$4.26
$8.52

Master Accounts Payable

$72.43 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:

Date  3/6/2024 Amt $190.00

$190.00 $0.00 000-6260-0000-000 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
100-6260-0000-563 $19.00
300-6260-0000-563 $9.50
600-6260-0000-563 $161.50
$0.00 $190.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $19.00 Fund 300: $9.50 Fund 600: $161.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049863 Vendor: Alan Zeisbrich Invoice # 2-2024 Date  3/1/2024 Amt $1,750.00
$145.00 $0.00 300-6270-0000-511 CS-Operations-SS0
$0.00 © $1,750.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$1,305.00 $0.00 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
$150.00 $0.00 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP
$150.00 $0.00 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $145,00 Fund 600: $1,605.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049864 Vendor: Reserve Account Invoice # 030424 Date  3/4/2024 Amt $1,000.00
$1,000.00 $0.00 000-6825-0000-000 Postage 2/1/97
600-6825-0000-562 $970.00
100-6825-0000-562 $20.00
300-6825-0000-562 $10.00
$0.00 $1,000.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100:

$20.00 Fund 300:

$£10.60 Fund 600:

$976.00 Fund 700:

0.00 Fund 803:

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
Voucher# 049863 Vendor: Pipe Thru Plumbing Inc Invoice # 5455 Date 2/22/2024  Amt $18,450.00
$18,450.00 $0.00 600-6275-0920-542 CS Maintenance TDM-Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $18,450.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $18,450.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049866 Vendor: Hollister True Value Inc. Invoice # A416632 Date  3/6/2024 Amt $109.24
$109.24 $0.00 300-6320-0000-512 Supplies-SSM
$0.00 $109.24 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 360: $109.24 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049867 Vendor: Cintas Corporation Invoice # 1904696569 Date  3/8/2024 Amt $129.90
$129.90 $0.00 000-6320-0000-000 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
300-6320-0000-562 $6.50
600-6320-0000-562 $110.42
100-6320-0000-562 $12.99
$0.00 $129.90 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $12.99 Fund 300: $6.50 Fund 600: $110.42 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049868 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000061377 Date  2/1/2024 Amt $165.01
$165.01 %0.00 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
$0.00 $165.01 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $165.01 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund$03: 0.00
Voucher# 049869 Vendor: Dassel's Petroleum Inc Invoice # 6102547 Date  2/20/2024 Amt $81.06
$81.06 $0.00 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA
$0.00 -$81.06 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable -
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $81.06 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803: 0.00
Voucherf 049870 Vendor: HDR Engineering Inc Invoice # 1200604809 Date 3/12/2024  Amt $88,549.26
$88,549.26 $0.00 600-1351-A129-151 ADRoP-Accelerated Drought Response Projec
'$0.00 $88,549.26 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $88,549.26 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00
Voucher# 049871 Vendor: Palace Business Solutions Invoice # 2329873-0 Date  3/15/2024  Amt $59.23
$59.23 $0.00 000-6835-0000-000 Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
600-6835-0000-562 $50.35
300-6835-0000-562 $2.96
100-6835-0000-562 $5.92
$0.00 $59.23 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
$50.35 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803: 0.00

Fund 000:

Voucher# 049873 Vendor:

$0.00 Fund 100:

$5.92 Fund 300:

CM Analytical Inc

§2.9¢ Fund 600:

Invoice # 82204

Date  3/12/2024  Amt

$240.00




Debit Amt Credit Amt Account/Description
$240.00 $0.00 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
$0.00 $240.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $240.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049874 Vendor: Foster & Foster Inc Invoice # 30458 Date  3/19/2024  Amt $750.00
$750.00 $0.00 000-6230-0000-000 CS-Accounting 10/5/85
100-6230-0000-563 $75.00
300-6230-0000-563 $37.50
600-6230-0000-563 $637.50
$0.00 $750.00 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $75.00 Fund 300: $37.50 Fund 600: $637.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049875 Vendor: Johnson Lumber Compan); Invoice # 272584 Date  3/19/2024  Amt $165.64
$165.64 $0.00 300-6320-0000-512 Supplies-SSM
$0.00 $165.64 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $165.64 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049876 Vendor: Wright Bros Industrial Supply Invoice # 282675 Date  3/18/2024  Amt $84.03
$84.03 $0.00 300-6320-0000-512 Supplies-SSM
$0.00 $84.03 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $84.03 Fund 600: $0.00 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049877 Vendor: ICONIX Waterworks Inc Invoice # U2416009032 Date  3/14/2024 Amt $5,243.50
$5,243.50 $0.00 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
$0.00 $5,243.50 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable.
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $5,243.50 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund 803:
Voucher# 049878 Vendor: Brigantino lrrigation Invoice # 220000063043 Date  2/27/2024  Amt $23,900.46
$23,900.46 $0.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
$0.00 $23,900.46 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 360: $0.00 Fund 600: $23,900.46 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049879 Vendor: Brigantino Irrigation Invoice # 220000063046 Date  2/27/2024  Amt $2,012.07
$2,012.07 $0.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
$0.00 $2,012.07 000-2001-0000-000 Master Accounts Payable
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $2,012.07 Fund 700: 0.00 Fund803:
Voucher# 049880 Vendor: EBCO Pest Control Invoice # 21270 Date  3/9/2024 Amt $66.00
$66.00 $0.00 000-6275-0000-000 CS-Maint 10/5/85

100-6275-0000-563
300-6275-0000-563
600-6275-0000-563

$6.60
$3.30
$56.10

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00



Agenda Item: 3

San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Meeting Date: March 27, 2024

Submitted By: Leilani Vidal

Presented By: Steve Wittry

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the March 2024 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the check & wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Payee Check Amount For Issued Due Date
No. Date
Dataflow Business
Systems Inc 58344 $12.50 Office Supplies 03/06/24 3/31/24
Grossmayer &
Associates 58346 $435.00 Consulting Services 03/06/24 3/31/24
Mike Hidalgo 58347 $1,795.50 CPR/AED Training 03/06/24 3/31/24
Dataflow Business
Systems Inc 58358 $395.66 Copier Lease 03/20/24 3/31/24
Wire Transfers
: O&M delivery costs
San Luis & Delta- Wire (Mar 2024 advanced "
Mendota WA Transfer $10,973.34 water delivery payment 03/08/24 03/15/24
form)
Wire
USBR (pay.gov) Transfer $35,228.85 | Water Payment 03/08/24 03/15/24
Wire Principal and interest
City National Bank Transfer $115,779.20 | payment due on the City | 03/12/24 04/12/24

National Bank Loan




Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:

Fiscal Year Budget as approved

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of Wire Transfer Request

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes ‘ Abstained
Noes ' Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELR.RBHOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc SB8218
Invoice Date Description
383484 3/1/2024 Office Supplies

Office Supplies

Date
3/6/2024

0058344

058344

Net Amt.
$12.50

$12.50



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELD RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
GROSS Grossmayer & Associates
Invoice Date Description
IVC3680 12/21/2023 Consulting Services

Consulting Services

Date
3/6/2024

0058346

058346

Net Amt.
$435.00

$435.00




~ SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

30 MANSEIELD.RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor
HIDMI Mike Hidalgo
Invoice Date
2024-01 2/28/2024

Account Date
3/6/2024
Description

CPR/AED Training

CPR/AED Training

0058347

058347

Net Amt.
$1,795.50 -~

$1,795.50



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
30 MANSFIELD RD, HOLLISTER, CA 95023

Vendor Account
DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc sB8218
Invoice Date Description
384046 3/7/2024 Copier Lease

Copier Lease

Date
3/20/2024

0058358

058358

Net Amt.
$395.66

$395.66



Wire Transfer Requested 3/8/2024 Release date 3/8/2024

Vendor invoice Date Invoice no. Description GL Account no. Amount Due Date
San Luis & Delta Mendota O&M delivery costs

{SLDMWUSBR) 3/8/2024 030324 {Mar. 2024 advanced water delivery payment) 600-5400-0000-513-07 $ 10,973.34

. Total wire transfer | $- 10,973.34

; N o o
)
Approved for release onfine by; m/\ CS% Qg\ﬂ\_(o(

Daily wire activity total § 10,973.34 |

Date ,w’ : ﬁnwr./c




Pay.gov payment requested w\m\NSa_ Release date 3/8/2024
Payment Recap date
Vendor prepared Invoice no. Description GL Account no. Amount
Bureau of Reclamation
{USBR-LA) 3/7/2024 030824 February 24 600-5210-0000-513-07 S 34,827.00
Bureau of Reclamation .
(USBR-LA) 3/7/2024 030824 February 24 TPUD 600-5210-0000-513-07 S 401.85

Total payment amount | S 35,228.85

Online entry by: E/.\a C

Daily Pay.gov total § wm.NNm.mm_

one 2R | AL




Wire Transfer Requested 3/12/2024 Release date 3/12/2024

Vendor {nvoice Date tnvoice no. Description GL Account no. Amount Due Date

City National Bank 3/1/2024 30124 HUA TP and Recycled Water Project {Principal) 600-2020-0000-214-00 $  92,626.58 | 4/12/2024

City National Bank 3/1/2024 30124 HUA TP {Interest) 600-9500-0601-592-01 $  16,838.27 | 4/12/2024

City National Bank 3/1/2024 30124 Recycled Water Project (Interest) 600-9500-0604-592-07 $ 6,314.35 | 4/12/2024
Total wire transfer |'$ 115,779.20 .

Daily wire activity total $ 115,779.20 |

Approved for release online by: .\ i ggg @?)\/p
Date NV, aw,\.v,%




YOy, 3, 1955 &
”‘tiz; 3“*‘ {;‘ e



erstinen,

Wiy,

SEONTY L

e Ry
s

Fiscal Year 2024 On-Call Contract Activity Report
MCC Controls dba Primex - *Water Treatment Plants Maintenance Agreement {SCADA Services)
Board Meeting 3/27/24
NOTE: NO ADDITIONAL TASK ORDERS WERE EXECUTED AS OF THIS MEETING'S REPORTING DEADLINE
* A t Task Ord k Ord d
NTE Contract Task Order Status Task Order Contract f q.:o:: ask Order Task Order Description Task Order Issue Payments to
Amount Amount Remaining Number Date Date
$ 400,000 i H
Open S 30,0001 s 370,000 1 Control System Services/Maintenance 12.06.22 $ 2,846.00
Closed S 130,665 S 239,335 2 RTU Hardware for RTU-8,-9,-10,-11,-14,-20 12.06.22 $ 130,664.52
Open S 48,3001 S 191,035 3 RTU - 10 PLC Programming/Installation 01.09.23 $ -
Closed S 46,492 1S 144,543 4 RTU - 11 PLC Programming/Installation 01.09.23 $  46,492.00
Closed S 55,814 1 S 88,729 5 RTU - 8 PLC and Device Upgrades 05.24.23 $  55,814.00
$ 400,000 $ 311,271 1% 88,729 $ 235,816.52

*SBCWD Board approved 9.21.22, Contract #PRIMEX-2022 OC

**Contract expires 9,19.25




Fiscal Year 2024 On-Call Contract Activity Report
Todd Groundwater - *Groundwater Management & Evaluation
Board Meeting 3/27/24

For task orders issued 11/4/22 to 11/3/23 (Year 1 of 3)

**Annual NTE

Task Order Contract Amount Task Order . Task Order Payments to
Contract . Task Order Description
Status Remaining Number Issued Date Date
Amount
S 250,000 Brnhv
Open ) S 200,000 1 Well design & siting (last phase of current grant) 12.05.22 S 27,420.83
Closed $ S 125,000 2 Grant Application Support-DWR & USBR 12.20.22 $ 68,177.50
Closed S S 105,000 2A Grant Application Support-DWR & USBR 05.22.23 $ 14,187.50
Closed S S 95,000 3 IRWM Grant Application Support 02.21.23 $ 4,047.50
Open $ S 60,000 4 USBR Grant Application Support 10.26.23 $ 26,435.00
$ 250,000 $ 60,000 $  140,278.33

*SBCWO Board approved 10.26.22, Contract #TODDGW-2022 OC

**1-year term expires 11.3.23, with option of 2 additional years {total of 3 years NTE $750,000)




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 5

Meeting Date: March 27, 2024
Submitted By: Steve Wittry

Presented By: Steve Wittry

Agenda Title: Annual Groundwater Report 2023

Detailed Description:

The San Benito County Water District (District or SBCWD) was formed in 1953 by a
special act (District Act) of the State with responsibility and authority to manage
groundwater. Section 7.6 of the District Act (Act) states that “the Board may ... require
the district to annually prepare an investigation and report on conditions of the district
and zones thereof”. The Act requires the condition assessment to include all of the
reporting parameters as identified in Section 7.6 (a)-(j).

In 2014, the State of California passed the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(SGMA). SGMA requires local agencies to form Groundwater Sustainability Agencies
(GSAs) for the high and medium priority basins. The San Benito County Water District
(District) is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the North San Benito Basin.
Similar to the Act, SGMA requires the completion of an annual Groundwater Report.

The Annual Groundwater Report, prepared by Todd Groundwater, describes groundwater
conditions in the North San Benito Basin, a subbasin of the Gilroy-Hollister Basin.
Acceptance of this Annual Groundwater Report fulfills the requirements of the Act and
SGMA.

The Annual Groundwater Report documents water sources and uses, groundwater
elevations and storage, and management activities for the water year and provides
recommendations to manage activities. The report also details the six Sustainable
Management Criteria and their respective minimum thresholds.

Prior Committee or Board Action: None

Financial Impact: Yes X No

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Annual Groundwater Report 2023




Recommendation: Board to Receive and Accept Annual Groundwater Report 2023.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
___Resolution No._ Motion By: Second By:

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




NORTH SAN BENITO
ANNUAL GROUNDWATER

REPORT 2023

3,
R o
_
PR
i

DRAFT March 2024

Valley Water

GROUNDWATER

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215
Alameda, CA 94501
510.747.6920

www.toddgroundwater.com




SIGNATURE PAGE

Lol

Iris Priestaf, PhD
President




Table of Contents

L o INETOUCTION oottt et ee e srtesb et e e s b e e s ha s be s mbn e b e she e e beems e s essareriassabesbeosan et et ebs e shbesunensreanrnass 1
ACKNOWIEAEMENLS ...oviivieereeeicer et e sb e s b e e b b a e e e e e sanaeises 1
PR Lo r=A - 10 s ol (=T WO OO PO OO IUP ORI 4
DWR-DEfINEI BaASIN.uueiriioiiiiieiirierecriireserreerecrresessterersesaabesaessseeeesarnres e btaressssssssrabesssabsessrrantessanasrasins 4
Ongoing District Monitoring Programs. ...t 4
3 - Basin CONAITIONS .iooueveeeiereeeeieteeireecteeeaeeesieeseses e resessetessrttseassrsssresabs e bb e s et st orasensrsessba e e nbe e s rbeasresstntes 7
01 T 2T 1 (- DT U U U OO OO OO OR SO PU OOV UROPPPPPPRRI: 7
GrouNdWaTer ElBVATIONS ...viveiei e reesieesireererses e s e rreesseeeseessorsteeaesaabssatessns e b e eessesseasaesnsransaras 7
GrOUNOWATET TTRNUS c.uvvieiirierreeriteeeceirireesstreessstrareeasareeeessnereessessuses isubssasestbesisssbassentasesensansasenartseasnns 21
Sustainable Management Criteria for Groundwater QUality ...c..cocovvineviiniin 23
A - WALl BAIANCE oottt ectr et e st esteeste st e e b e e et e s be e et et et e s asenedeens b rbesr b e s R e e e e st s r e st ae e sa e renes 24
METNOA OF ANAIYSIS c..eeiiieetieste ettt b et s b e e e b e ee e e b b e a et e s r e e s s s e eans 24
T O S ettt ettt e et e e et e e et e eseute s eab e e e ete e e br e e ben e s e ba e e R e e e e et s b b e e s RS e AR e A e b e e e b e e e baa e et s beenres 31
OULTIOWS ettt et e es ettt e e sttt s eseasaessestraesas s tes s mnnetsesssbabe s sar s bo s bnbaesosbusbosansnsaassbbneaasbanaensabbneans 32
Simulated Groundwater EIVALIONS ...ttt st 35
ChaNEE 1N STOTAER .. e eeueeieie ettt s s ab e b et b e st et e st aas st n b et e n e shesm st e s e e s 36
5 - Water SUPPIY and USE iN ZONE 6 ..c.ovuevvireerieereinirciiieteier st r e bbbt 45
WALter SUPPIY SOUICES .c.veuterieuieririenteiet et rerete sttt a b e e s a s b e s e e e s e s e s bt et et encenes 45
GrOUNGWALEE . ..eievteeeceteiitteecteeeeeeeie st s essessasreesebeesabteessessaeseeesabeesraaesbassobressbn s e sbessabe s e b eseabasesarsaevansrans 46
IMPOTTEd WALEI — ZONE B c.eovviiirieeiee ittt sb ettt e n bbbt sb et sa e 47
IMUNICIPA] USE 1eiuiitieieeie et ceeir et e s bs s st be s e b e s b s e e s nebsab et ben et a st sh s 48
AGHICUITUTAT USE oeviriictieiere ettt et b bbb sh e s s b s e b b e e bbb s ettt 49
TOTA] WATEE USE oottt e e e ettt e et e s re st s ses e ssstnesemaeesaraaesrs s e bt s s s e s s be s san e et besareeasssaasesesasnes 49
6 - Water Management ACHIVILIES ..o 53
SUTTACE WaLEr STOMAER i evviirerrerreieirtaterseeeaaseeereutesteaut s s e astr s e s e s s et e b e st s s Rssbsehenaseasesbeabtsseasnessansrsanes 54
MaNAEEA PrCOIAION . c.cueiei ettt bbbt e bbb ase e s e b s nan e s s 54
Managed Aquifer Recharge (IMAR) ....ccoirciiiiiiit et 55
Water Resources Planning and Conjunctive USe........ccooiiiiieciiiiinirereiene s 58
WALl CONSEIVATION .evviii i ciittireeseerirnbrtereeessenebeseeseseesssbratstaaeeesiossanaersessetssiisasbasassesasbsnaasessensrisnstane 59
Monitoring Program and DIMS. ...t sieie e s sssessn e e sesssesne shesias 60
MOonitoring Well NEtWOTK ...c....cveveeriieriiiicniiiect st 61
DeVvelop RESPONSE PIANS ...cc.oocvviireeeirie et s s e e s sa e e sns b bty 61

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 i Todd Groundwater



Water Quality Improvement PrOSrams ...ttt e 62

Reduce Potential IMpPacts t0 GDES .....ccevveereeiiiiriiciiniinccn et 62
LONE-EIM FUNGING 1vovtetetieeteririreireiceit sttt bns 62
PIaN APPIOVAL . vivicuiiiieieiesiete ettt b e et e s 63
FINANCIal INFOIMAtION coviveeiiicoiie ettt ee et cesbs s s s n s s bbb s e s et b e s s e b s e et r e e e ntbasssraresans 63
Groundwater ManagemeEnt FEE .....coovirirciiiiiiiiiie e s e 66

7 - Groundwater SUSTAINADIITY .ecvvr it 67
SGIMA TNAICAEOIS 1aveeeeeeee e ecrtteeiseteetieserteeesestesessartesssaateeesssresssssbass s rbtasssa b et e ek raeesassesessbaaassssneesssbnens 67
Updates 0n SGMA INAICALOTS .......ociiiiiiiiinie e e e 68

8 = RECOMIMENAATION eeeeeeeieriieieceeeseerveresestreesesetessarrte s ssaaereeresoursesibsesssinaraaaaessasessatsaeeratreasasrnenessaabeasus 73
VIONT O TG PrOZIaIMIS . curnieeieteteeeereeeesbesive et ae et e st sess e s e s b e e e s s e st s s b s e S s e e et b s neans 73
Groundwater Production and Replenishment ... 73
CVP Purchase ReCOmMMENTATION ..u.virrreiicriereeircrnesereteeraitssssasessirbasserssisasssntaesanstnsescnbessesnitesnsnss 74
GroUNGWALET CRAIZES . ccuiieiirreeiceterecee ettt e i e e st e s s b s b sba e b e bbb s b st 74

G e RO O IR cutuevteeeeeeeeereeeeetaereesrasssrereeesensasbasaaasansas b mesaeaeesessiaasaaatssesariran s s by s e e e e naa e e g et e e e ntae e e eares 75

List of Tables

Table 4-1. Water Balance Update - Southern MA, AF ..o 25
Table 4-2. Water Balance Update - Hollister MA, AF ... 25
Table 4-3. Water Balance Update - San Juan MA, AF ..o 26
Table 4-4. Water Balance Update - Bolsa MA, AF ..o 26
Table 5-1. Allocation for USBR Water Years 2022-2023 . ......viiiiniinniineensnins etreeretarrrearaeearresereetes a7
Table 5-2. TOtal Water USE, AF ... iieeeeiecitieesite ettt et s tr e s a s s es b ts e st e bab s sen b e s eaees 52
Table 6-1. Adopted Groundwater Charges ...ttt 64
Table 6-2. Adopted Blue Valve Water Charges ..o 64
Table 6-3. Adopted Blue Valve POWer Charges ........cvvieiniienenionieinsiiiii s 64
Table 6-4. Adopted Recycled Water Charges ..ot 65
Table 6-5. Groundwater Management FEE ..ottt 66
Table 7-1. SGIMIA INGICATONS weeeieeeiiriieteie et eesteeeereeeevee e str e e eteesereesibtcstasassae e e basers e e s bnasarssessesesnnsssnsiiins 67
Table 7-2. KEY WIS ..coeiiiiieeeiettet et 69
Table 7-3. Interconnected Surface Water Wells ........oocvereeiii it 71

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 ii Todd Groundwater



List of Figures

Figure 1-1.
Figure 1-2.
Figure 3-1.
Figure 3-2.
Figure 3-3.
FIGURE 3-4.
Figure 3-5.
Figure 3-6.
Figure 3-7.
Figure 4-1.
Figure 4-2.
Figure 4-3.
Figure 4-4.
Figure 4-5.
Figure 4-6.
Figure 4-7.
Figure 4-8.
Figure 4-9.
Figure 5-1.
Figure 5-2.
Figure 6-1.
Figure 6-2.

North San Benito Groundwater Basin .o e cceeeeeieteceeeeeeenseceerenrse s sassssanaes s asansees 2
GSP MaNagemEnt ATEES .cveievreeerireiieiorieeit ittt rar s e s r e s aa e e assssesnen s e re e anteesnbessbtanns 3
Water Year 2023 Precipitation ...t S
Annual Precipitation, 1976-2023......cooiriiiiriioni it ess e s 10
Groundwater Monitoring Locations, October 2023 ... 11
HYDROGRAPHS - SOUTHERN IVIA ..o cverieie s ecirence et e enennt e s e s s ssssantae s s e sesanans s e sasasenainnnassaaes 13
Hydrographs - HOHISTEr MA ...c.viiiiiiiiiiiii et 15
Hydrographs - San JUan MA ...t 17
Hydrographs = BoISa IMA .......cc.ciieiiniiiiiiiet it 19
Water Balance - SOULhErN IMA ...ttt csnieeestsare s sssans st e s e rn e s e s basassanas 27
Water Balance - HOHISEEr IMA ..ottt ettt e et crvne s sebtn s s sab e daeeaenns 28
Water Balance - San JUAN MA ..ottt scrrceessnteessaanesssbsesssbben s res s essrnasanaes 29
Water Balance - BOISA IMIA .....ooireeeeccreeesetee e et rete s cec e e e rane s abn e s assraa s s e tna e s s rasassnns 30
Locations of Groundwater Pumping in Water Year 2023 ... 34
Groundwater Elevations March 2023 ...ttt 38
Groundwater Elevations September 2023 ... 40
Change Groundwater Elevations September 2020 — September 2023 .........cccoovenninienes 42
Cumulative Change in Storage 1975-2023 ......cccoiiiniiiiiinininineni e 44
Municipal Water SUPPIY BY SOUFCE ..coiiciriiiiiiiiiercn et 50
Total CVP Water Use by Type 1976-2023 (AFY) ceiiiniiiinmiiniiiniiresieiesten s sissneces 51
District Percolation LOCAtiONS . .o e ciriireeeesrerreieeere s iinereress s ranree s s e esababaesasssensnnens 56
Volume of CVP Recharge by Major Waterway Over TIMe ... 57

Appendices (following text)

Appendix A Reporting Requirements
Appendix B Climate Data

Appendix C Hydrological Data
Appendix D Percolation Data

Appendix E
Appendix F

Water Use Data
Rates and Charges

Appendix G List of Acronyms

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 iii Todd Groundwater



XECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Annual Groundwater Report describes groundwater conditions in the North San Benito Basin, a
subbasin of the Gilroy-Hollister Basin. Consistent with Annual Groundwater Reports prepared by the San
Benito County Water District for decades, this report fulfills requirements of the 1953 San Benito County
Water District Act (California Water Code Appendix 70). This Annual Groundwater Report also fulfills
requirements of the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). In brief, this report
incorporates adaptive management; it strives to maintain consistency with past Annual Reports while
fulfilling requirements for SGMA Annual Reports and supporting sustainable groundwater management
into the future.

SGMA requires sustainable management of priority groundwater basins and empowers local
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to manage groundwater resources. San Benito County
Water District GSA (SBCWD GSA), in partnership with Valley Water (known as Santa Clara Valley Water
District prior to 2019) GSA, has developed a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the North San
Benito Basin. The North San Benito Basin is predominantly in San Benito County with small areas in
Santa Clara County. The North San Benito GSP was adopted by SBCWD and Valley Water GSA and was
submitted to the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) in January 2022. The 2022 GSP
provides the basic information, analytical tools, and projects and management actions for continued
groundwater management, guided by SGMA and by locally defined sustainability goals, objectives, and
metrics. The GSP was approved by DWR in July 2023.

This Annual Groundwater Report for San Benito County Water District (SBCWD or District) documents
water sources and uses, groundwater elevations and storage, and management activities for Water Year
2023 and provides recommendations. This Report also details the six Sustainable Management Criteria
and their respective Minimum Thresholds (MTs).

Water Year 2023 was a wet year and was characterized by above average rainfall, 100 percent Central
Valley Project (CVP) allocations and increased groundwater storage in parts of the Basin. However, the
water year spans two USBR contract years (March 2022 — February 2023 and March 2023 — February
2024. The first part of WY 23 saw historically low CVP allocations while the latter half saw historically
high CVP allocations. The effects of the previous multiple year drought continue to be seenin the Basin
including the slow recovery of water levels and reduced CVP supply in the beginning of the water year
from the previous year’s allocations. In addition to persistent drought impacts, the water system
experienced issues that impacted water supply.

The District had a series of challenges that impacted management and distribution of water supply.

First, the low CVP allocation followed by a destructive power surge limited the treatment capacity to
supply CVP water to municipal customers. CVP deliveries to agricultural users in San Juan were disrupted
in Spring 2023 due to highway construction. In addition, a flow valve at Hernandez Reservoir
malfunctioned and water was released from storage for percolation along the San Benito River. Despite
these engineering challenges, the District continues to serve urban and agricultural users, recharge
groundwater, and implement their GSP.

The groundwater basin continues to serve as an important reserve in situations of drought, limited CVP
allocation, or system disruptions. The District has effectively managed groundwater resources in San
Benito County for reliable and sustainable supply. Groundwater levels and storage remain sustainable
and are regularly monitored at Key Wells (also termed Representative Monitoring Sites or RMS) with

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 ES-1 Todd Groundwater



- EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

reference to Minimum Thresholds (MTs). Although 3 of 22 Key Wells showed measurements below their
respective MT levels, no basin-wide thresholds were triggered for a Management Area (MA) during the
water year. Groundwater levels in the Key Wells will continue to be monitored and the monitoring
network itself will be assessed regularly. For example, if Key Wells are unable to be accessed, they must
be replaced.

Working collaboratively with other agencies, the District has eliminated historical overdraft, developed
and managed multiple sources of supply, established an effective water conservation program,
protected water quality, and provided annual reporting. Water Year 2023 witnessed approval of the
GSP, grant awards to implement GSP projects and the continuation of collaborative efforts. This Annual
Report includes an update on many of the Projects and Management Actions (PMAs) including managed
aquifer recharge (MAR), monitoring program improvements, Master Plan Update, pursuit of funding for
various projects, and information about the District’s funding mechanisms.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 ES-2 Todd Groundwater



NTRODUCTION

This Annual Groundwater Report describes groundwater conditions in the North San Benito Basin
(Figure 1-1), a subbasin of the Gilroy-Hollister Basin. Consistent with Annual Groundwater Reports
prepared for decades by the San Benito County Water District (SBCWD or District), this report fulfills
requirements of the 1953 San Benito County Water District Act (California Water Code Appendix 70).
The District Act authorizes the Board of Directors, at its discretion, to direct staff to prepare an annual
investigation and report on groundwater conditions of the District and its zones of benefit, such as Zone
6, the area for distribution of Central Valley Project (CVP) water. As documented in Appendix A, the
District Act specifies the minimum content of the report to be prepared at the direction of the District
Board of Directors. This Annual Report fulfills the requirements for a District Annual Report, including a
brief Annual Groundwater Memorandum Report prepared for the January 8, 2024, meeting of the Board
of Directors (in Appendix A). This Annual Report also provides information to the Board of Directors on
the status of the groundwater basin, estimated conditions in the next year, and management
recommendations.

This Annual Groundwater Report fulfills the requirements of the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA). SGMA requires sustainable management of priority groundwater basins and
empowers local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to manage groundwater resources. San
Benito County Water District GSA (SBCWD GSA), in partnership with Valley Water GSA (known as Santa
Clara Valley District prior to 2019), has developed a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the North
San Benito Basin, which encompasses the historically defined Bolsa, Hollister, and San Juan Bautista
Subbasins of the Gilroy-Hollister Basin and the Tres Pinos Valley Basin. The North San Benito Basin is
predominantly in San Benito County with small areas in Santa Clara County. As presented in the North
San Benito Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Todd 2021), the North San Benito Groundwater Basin has
been divided into four management areas, shown in Figure 1-2, which have been defined to facilitate
implementation of the GSP.

In accordance with SGMA, this Annual Report documents water supply sources and use, groundwater
elevations and storage, and management activities from October 2022 through September 2023. The
SGMA elements guide, detailing the required SGMA components, is included in Appendix A. This Annual
Report conveys considerable data, including tables and figures, which are provided largely in
Appendices B through G. Appendix F provides information on water rates and charges and Appendix H
contains a list of acronyms.

The 2023 Annual Groundwater Report incorporates adaptive management; it strives to maintain
consistency with past Annual Reports while fulfilling requirements for SGMA Annual Reports and
supporting sustainable groundwater management into the future.

Acknowledgments

This report was prepared by Iris Priestaf, PhD, Maureen Reilly, PE, Gus Yates PG, CHG, Brent Johnson PG,
CHG, and Chad Taylor, PG, CHG of Todd Groundwater. We appreciate the assistance of San Benito
County Water District staff, particularly Steve Wittry, PE, Rob Hillebrecht, PE, and David Macdonald, PE.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 1 Todd Groundwater



1-INTRODUCTION

FIGURE 1-1. NORTH SAN BENITO GROUNDWATER BASIN

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 2 Todd Groundwater



1-INTRODUCTION

FIGURE 1-2. GSP MANAGEMENT AREAS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 3 Todd Groundwater



2 GEOGRAPHIC AREA

This Annual Report describes conditions in the North San Benito Basin (Basin),! located predominantly in
San Benito County with small areas in Santa Clara County. Consistent with the North San Benito GSP, it
uses groundwater basin boundaries described in DWR Bulletin 118 (DWR 3-003.005), California’s
Groundwater Update 2020. In addition to Bulletin 118, the geographic areas and boundaries of local
groundwater subbasins have been defined differently by SBCWD for its management purposes. The
previous and current boundaries are described here to provide a bridge between previous annual
reports and the current SGMA analyses and reporting.

DWR-Defined Basin

The areas of focus for the annual reports are the Management Areas (MAs), shown on Figure 1-2. The
four MAs were defined in the North San Benito GSP to facilitate implementation. Major factors in
defining the MAs within the Basin were watersheds and particularly, availability of water sources and
zones of benefit. SBCWD provides local surface water from Hernandez and Paicines reservoirs to the
zone of benefit, Zone 3, and provides CVP water to Zone 6.

The four Management Areas are listed below with the SBCWD-defined subbasins that they generally
encompass:

Southern MA

Hollister MA (includes Tres Pinos, Hollister East and West, Bolsa SE, Pacheco subbasins)
San Juan MA (includes almost all District-defined San Juan subbasin)

Bolsa MA (includes almost all District-defined Bolsa subbasin)

Hollister and San Juan MAs include portions of Zone 6; Southern and Bolsa MAs do not.

Ongoing District Monitoring Programs

Data from monitoring programs undertaken by local, state, and federal agencies are summarized below
as currently incorporated in the Annual Report. The District data compilation and monitoring programs
are being expanded and revised as data needs are identified through the GSP process, for example to
address topics such as potential groundwater dependent ecosystems, and to represent the entire North
San Benito Basin with appropriate detail.

1 The official name is North San Benito Subbasin of the Gilroy Hollister Basin, DWR Basin Number 3-003.05. For this
report, it is referred to as North San Benito Basin to clearly differentiate it from previous DWR-defined and
SBCWD-defined subbasins. As a matter of context, Figure C-1 in Appendix C shows all DWR Bulletin 118
groundwater basins that are wholly or partially in San Benito County.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 4 Todd Groundwater



GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Climate. Climate data are regularly compiled from DWR’s California Irrigation Management
Information System (CIMIS) and include total solar radiation, soil temperature, air temperature/relative
humidity, wind direction, wind speed, and precipitation. Additional precipitation data are available from
the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC) station at Hollister from 1934-2023 (WRCC, 2023). For the
Annual Groundwater Reports, historical annual precipitation data have been compiled and reported
using the Hollister rain gage for the long-term precipitation and the CIMIS San Benito station for recent
monthly precipitation. Monthly precipitation and evapotranspiration for the Hollister #126 CIMIS station
are tabulated in Appendix B.

Groundwater levels. SBCWD has had a semi-annual groundwater level monitoring program since Water
Year (WY) 1977; groundwater level data gathered by the United States Geological Survey (USGS) and
other agencies are available as early as 1913 (Clark, 1924). The Annual Groundwater Reports provide
quarterly groundwater level data in Appendix C for each year. The data are the basis for groundwater
hydrographs and for numerical model update with preparation of groundwater level contour maps,
change maps, and storage change computations. The SBCWD monitoring program includes wells in the
Pacheco Valley in Santa Clara County, while Valley Water's monitoring program has provided data for
the southern Llagas Subbasin; the latter shared data are important to verify groundwater flow across
the Llagas-North San Benito subbasin boundary. SBCWD reports water levels for SGMA Key Wells
through the SGMA portal.

Reservoirs. The Annual Report summarizes reservoir water budget information for Hernandez, Paicines,
and San Justo reservoirs and provides annual total releases from Hernandez and Paicines reservoirs
from Water Year 1996 to present. Reservoir storage and release data are available in Appendix D.

Surface water flows and percolation. Surface water monitoring and percolation amounts are
summarized in Appendix D of the Annual Groundwater Reports. For Water Year 1994 to present,
percolation of imported CVP water is documented in Table D-3 and percolation of wastewater is shown
in Tables D-4 and D-5. The District temporarily suspended its surface water monitoring network but
plans to relaunch surface water monitoring at selected sites as part of SGMA implementation.

Wells and groundwater pumping. SBCWD has monitored groundwater pumping in Zone 6 using
electrical meters. Pumping amounts are calculated semiannually by metering the number of hours of
pump operation and multiplying by the average discharge rate. However, other estimates of pumping
have indicated that the power meters underestimate pumping. Irrigation pumping beyond Zone 6 is not
monitored but has been estimated for regular water budget updates based on land use information and
water use factors. This method of estimating groundwater pumping will be replaced as part of SGMA
implementation. The District is currently investigating new water use monitoring programs (like OpenET)
that will address the entire GSP area and will be documented in future Annual Reports. Estimation of
groundwater pumping using the numerical model by major use category and MA is described in Section
5, which also provides information on CVP use in Zone 6 and recycled water use. Appendix E contains
additional information on water use.

Water quality. In 1997, SBCWD initiated a program for monitoring nitrate and electrical conductivity
(EC) in wells. In 2004, SBCWD established a comprehensive water quality database with records from all
water systems and regulated facilities. State-wide sources of groundwater quality data include the
Water Data Library (WDL), Geotracker/GAMA program, and the State Water Resources Control Board'’s

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 5 Todd Groundwater



2 — GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Division of Drinking Water. The SBCWD database is updated and reviewed annually with detailed
triennial assessment as described in the GSP; a triennial update of water quality was prepared for the
WY 2022 Annual Report and will be included in the WY 2025 report. This triennial analysis contains
information about the database update and a review of the water quality data. Appendix F contains
additional information on water quality last updated for the WY 2022 analysis.

Units and accuracy. Throughout this report, water volumes and changes in storage are shown to the
nearest acre-foot (AF). These values are accurate to one to three significant digits (depending on the
measurement). All digits are retained in the text to maintain as much accuracy as possible during
subsequent calculations, but results should be rounded appropriately.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 6 Todd Groundwater



BASIN CONDITIONS

The Annual Report summarizes basin conditions including climate, groundwater elevations,
groundwater storage, and groundwater level trends. Overall, Water Year 2023 was characterized by
above average precipitation.

Climate

Assessment of climatic conditions begins with collection of climate data (rainfall and
evapotranspiration), which are summarized in Appendix B. Local rainfall amounts are compiled on a
monthly basis and reviewed as an increasingly variable factor that affects basin inflows (e.g., deep
percolation) and outflows (groundwater pumping). Recognizing that drought often is extensive across
Northern California, local dry years also may be indicative of regional drought and reduced CVP
allocations. Dry years often are characterized by increased groundwater pumping for agricultural
irrigation to offset lack of rainfall and CVP supply.

In 2023, overall precipitation was 20.36 inches; monthly totals are shown in Figure 3-1. WY 2023 was a
wet year; the annual precipitation was 156 percent of normal (12.8 inches). December, January, and
March received higher than normal precipitation. Monthly rainfall and evapotranspiration data from WY
1996 to WY 2023 are presented in Appendix B. Figure 3-2 shows annual precipitation and water year
type from 1976 through 2023. As illustrated, Water year 2023 rainfall was a wet year, the second
highest precipitation since 2000. However, it is noteworthy that most of the precipitation occurred
during a period of frequent and intense storm events. The additional flow was recharged where
available. However, the volume of precipitation may have resulted in more runoff than groundwater
percolation. Precipitation data collected through February 2024(10.8 inches) indicate that WY 2024 may
be another wet year.

Groundwater Elevations

In October 2023, SBCWD collected groundwater elevations in 138 wells from their existing network and
10 additional wells from Valley Water. This is a decrease from previous years as many wells were not
sampled due to access or well issues. Figure 3-3 shows well locations in the current SBCWD monitoring
network, including wells previously monitored. Ongoing monitoring is indicated by blue circles, wells
that have been monitored within the past five years are shown by yellow circles, and wells monitored
anytime in the past are shown by gray circles. Figures 3-4 through 3-8 show hydrographs for key wells in
the basin with their respective minimum thresholds (MTs). Additional information is in Appendix C and
in water balance Section 5. The MTs, shown as red lines on the hydrographs, were developed in the GSP
to assess sustainability and minimize any risk to nearby domestic wells of future low-water levels (see
Section 7).

Over 2023, groundwater elevations increased throughout most the Basin due to the wet conditions;
however, groundwater levels in San Juan remained stable. This reflects the increased CVP allocation in
the rest of the basin and the specific engineering issues that limited CVP use in San Juan.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 7 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

This year’s increases in groundwater levels and storage signal improvements in most wells from recent
2013-2015 drought conditions. Continuing its conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater
resources and recognizing that climate change will increase temporal variability of water supplies, the
District continues to implement projects to increase capture of available water supplies and enhance
groundwater level and storage recovery when water becomes available.

Four key wells for groundwater elevations were unable to be monitored this water year due to access
issues. The District is actively looking for replacement wells. A complete analysis of these wells,
surrounding domestic wells, and potential undesirable results will be performed to identify new
permanent key wells with corresponding MTs.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 8 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-1. WATER YEAR 2023 PRECIPITATION

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 9 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-2. ANNUAL PRECIPITATION, 1976-2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 10 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-3. GROUNDWATER IMIONITORING LOCATIONS, OCTOBER 2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 11 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

(THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 12 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-4. HYDROGRAPHS - SOUTHERN MA

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 13 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 14 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-5. HYDROGRAPHS - HOLLISTER MA

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 15 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 16 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-6. HYDROGRAPHS - SAN JUAN MA

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 17 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 18 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

FIGURE 3-7. HYDROGRAPHS - BoLsA MA

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 19 Todd Groundwater



3 — BASIN CONDITIONS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 20 Todd Groundwater



IN CONDITIONS

Groundwater Trends

Figures 3-4 through 3-7 shows hydrographs of key wells, illustrating long term groundwater elevation
changes for the four MAs shown on the maps. As part of the GSP, a network of key wells was selected to
monitor for sustainability. These wells were identified from the larger groundwater monitoring network
based on length of record, location, continued monitoring, and proximity to water ways (for
interconnected surface water key wells). There are 22 key wells to monitor regional groundwater levels
(blue circles) and 19 key wells to monitor interconnected surface water / Groundwater Dependent
Ecosystems (GDEs; orange circles). These two data sets overlap; eight wells are both groundwater level
and interconnected surface water/GDE key wells (blue and orange circles). The MTs set in the GSP to
determine chronic lowering of water levels are shown as red lines and MTs that serve as a proxy for
interconnected surface water/GDEs are shown as orange lines. In WY 2023, four key wells for
groundwater levels and three wells for GDEs (four wells total) were unable to be measured and have
been removed from the monitoring program. The District is actively assessing temporary replacement
wells; permanent replacement wells and respective MTs will be documented in the next periodic
evaluation (due January 2027).

Southern Management Area. Although the District has monitored selected wells in the Southern MA
since 2001, elevation data remain limited throughout the MA. The five key wells for water levels and
one key well for interconnected surface water are shown on Figure 3-4. Because of topography and
groundwater flow direction, water levels in the Southern MA are about 400 feet higher than those in the
Hollister MA, about nine miles away. As an example, the hydrograph for Well 14-7-20K shows that
water levels reached a local maximum during 2006, decreased to a local minimum during the drought in
2013-2015, and recovered through 2019. In 2023 groundwater levels increased, but the groundwater
elevations are still below historical highs. In general, the pattern of water level change over time
observed in 14-7-20K, including decline from 2020-2022 and an increase in 2023, is illustrative of other
wells in Southern MA.

Hollister Management Area. As shown on Figure 3-5, the Hollister MA has six key wells for tracking
groundwater levels, three wells for tracking interconnected surface water, and one additional well
serving both. One key well, 12-5-03B1, is a flowing artesian well under similar conditions as artesian
wells in the Bolsa MA. The hydrographs for wells 11-5-35G and 12-5-24N1 in the north and central
portions of the MA exemplify the recovery experienced in the 1990s and early 2000s with the
introduction of CVP water for agricultural irrigation. Review of most of the hydrographs indicates that
groundwater levels have generally plateaued, declining slightly in drought and rebounding in wet years
with sufficient CVP allocation. Since 2020, and continuing through 2022, groundwater levels generally
declined but remained above historical lows. In 2023, groundwater levels increased showing some
recovery from the most recent drought. Well 12-6-06L4 near Pacheco Creek and Well 13-6-13F1 near
San Benito River also show slight recovery from drought, reflecting increased stream recharge and
inflow from upgradient groundwater.

San Juan Management Area. Figure 3-6 shows the locations in San Juan MA and hydrographs for six key
wells: two for tracking groundwater levels, two for interconnected surface water, and two for tracking

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 21 Todd Groundwater



- 3-BASIN CONDITIONS

both. Groundwater elevations generally peaked around 2005-2010 with subsequent declines especially
in the eastern MA. Nonetheless, groundwater levels remain above historical lows. When available,
managed recharge of CVP water at the ponds near the Hollister WRP will help in managing groundwater
levels. The westernmost key well 12-4-17120 (located along the San Benito River) shows more stable
groundwater elevation with levels in WY 2023 showing an increase approaching observed highs. The
groundwater levels in this well have recovered and water levels are above the MT for interconnected

surface water/GDEs.

Bolsa Management Area. As shown on Figure 3-7, the Bolsa MA has five key wells for tracking
groundwater levels, four key wells for monitoring interconnected surface water/GDEs, a one for both
purposes. Two key wells are currently flowing artesian wells (11-5-21E2 and 11-5-28B1). These artesian
conditions reflect local confined conditions created by clay layers in the northern Bolsa and Hollister
MAs. Groundwater elevations increased from 1992 until about 1998, when levels were pressurized to
above the ground surface. While the groundwater pressure head above the ground surface elevation
may vary in artesian wells, artesian groundwater levels are challenging to measure. Consequently, all
artesian wells in the San Benito are recorded as having a groundwater elevation at ground surface
elevation. Water levels in most of the key wells show a general level trend, albeit with differing
magnitudes of variability that likely reflect varying degrees of confinement and responses to pumping.
While groundwater elevations in well 12-5-06L1 show an increasing trend, well 12-5-17D1 shows a
gradual decreasing trend. The different trends in these wells, located within two miles from each other,
likely reflect changing land use and pumping patterns. Groundwater levels in well 11-4-34A1 show
increases; this is a key well for interconnected surface water/GDEs, and spring 2023 groundwater levels
are above the MT.

District Act Determination of Overdraft. The District Act (see Appendix A) requires presentation of
estimates of annual overdraft for the current water year and ensuing water year. Consistent with
previous Annual Reports, this would be represented by long-term groundwater level declines,
accounting for rainfall conditions and CVP imports. As of 2023, groundwater elevation trends do not
indicate overdraft and overdraft is not anticipated for the remainder of 2023 and 2024.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 22 Todd Groundwater



- 3—BASIN CONDITIONS

Sustainable Management Criteria for Groundwater Quality

Sustainable management, as defined by SGMA, is the use and management of groundwater without
causing undesirable effects. For groundwater quality, SGMA defines undesirable results as significant
and unreasonable adverse impacts to groundwater quality caused by GSA projects, management
actions, or other management of groundwater such that beneficial uses are affected or well owners
experience an increase in operational costs.

The sustainability goal is to protect groundwater and prevent circumstances where future management
activities may degrade groundwater quality. This could occur if groundwater levels change and thereby
induce leaching or vertical migration of poor quality groundwater, if areal migration of poor quality
groundwater is induced by pumping, or if groundwater quality degradation is associated with recharge
or wastewater discharge projects.

Sustainable management of the North San Benito Basin focuses on the two key constituents, TDS and
nitrate, as indicators of groundwater quality degradation. As described in the GSP, the triennial analysis
of TDS and nitrate is used to determine if degradation is occurring. The GSP established Minimum
Thresholds (MTs) for both TDS and nitrate based on the General Basin Plan Objectives developed in the
District’s Salt and Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP).

As discussed in the GSP, if a triennial update shows that TDS or nitrate concentrations are greater than
the minimum thresholds, it will lead to an evaluation of whether the degradation is likely caused by GSA
management activities, legacy loading, or a changing dataset. A complete analysis of water quality was
preformed in the Annual Report for WY 2022 and the triennial update will occur in the WY 2025 Annual

Report.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 23 Todd Groundwater



NATER BALANCE

For the GSP, a quantitative assessment of the water balance (or water budget) of the North San Benito
Subbasin (or Basin) was developed, using the numerical model, and presenting estimates of inflows,
outflows, and change in storage for the Management Areas (MAs). The North San Benito GSP numerical
model was based on historical data for water years 1975-2017 and has been updated annually as part of
the annual report. For this Annual Report, newly available data were used to improve and update
analyses for recent years. Results for 2019 through 2023 are shown here.

Method of Analysis

The water balance used for the GSP, and updated here, was developed using a rainfall-runoff-recharge
model and a groundwater flow model. Complete, itemized surface water and groundwater balances
were estimated by combining raw data (rainfall, stream flow, municipal pumping, wastewater
percolation) with values simulated using models. Collectively, the models simulate the entire hydrologic
system, but each model or model module focuses on part of the system, as described below. In general,
the models were used to estimate flows in the surface water and groundwater balances that are difficult
to measure directly or that depend on current groundwater levels. These include surface and subsurface
inflows from tributary areas, percolation from stream reaches within the Basin, groundwater discharge
to streams, subsurface flow from the Llagas Subbasin and between Management Areas, locations and
discharges of flowing wells, consumptive use of groundwater by riparian vegetation, and changes in
groundwater storage. The two separate models, collectively referred to as the North San Benito
Numerical model, are described as follows.

Rainfall-Runoff-Recharge Model. This Fortran-based model simulates hydrologic processes that occur
over the entire land surface, including precipitation, interception, infiltration, runoff,
evapotranspiration, irrigation, effects of impervious surfaces, pipe leaks in urban areas, deep percolation
below the root zone, and shallow groundwater flow to streams and deep recharge.

Groundwater Model. The groundwater flow model uses the MODFLOW 2005 code developed by the
U.S. Geological Survey, with pre- and post-processing facilitated using Groundwater Vistas, a readily
available commercial software package. The model produces linked simulation of surface water and
groundwater, as described below. MODFLOW simulates subsurface flow by combining equations
representing flow through porous sediments (the Darcy Equation) with equations that enforce
conservation of mass. The equations are implemented numerically, which means that they are applied
simultaneously between all adjoining cells in a model grid through an iterative process.

The numerical model is the best tool to quantify the North San Benito water balance. The model will
continue to be updated for future Annual Reports, providing a better understanding of the surface
water-groundwater system and a tool to evaluate future conditions and management actions.
Additional information about the model can be found in the GSP and the model documentation report
found as Appendix G in the GSP. Tables 4-1 through 4-4 show the updated water balances for each MA.
Figures 4-1 through 4-4 show the water balances for each MA for the entire model period.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 24 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

TABLE 4-1. WATER BALANCE UPDATE - SOUTHERN MA, AF

Subsurface inflow from external basins

Percolation from streams 27,495 15,650 12,754 8,303 52,235
Bedrock inflow 2,291 918 486 33 546
Dispersed recharge from rainfall! 6,630 1,029 429 277 | 36,548
Irrigation deep percolation 601 668 772 832 603
Reclaimed water percolation 0 0 0 0 0
Inflow from Hollister MA 1,462 1,149 895

Total inﬂow

Total outflow

1. Drspersed recharge volumes adjusted from pre-processor to match model inflows

TABLE 4-2. WATER BALANCE UPDATE - HOLLISTER MA, AF

Subsurface inflow from external basins

Subsurface outflow to external basms 0

Wells - M&I and domestic (143) (143) (143) (143) (144)

Wells - agricultural (6,722) | (7,421) | (8,652) | (9,312) | (6,734)

Groundwater discharge to streams (20,328) | (20,198) | (16,380) | (13,627) | (23,089)

Riparian evapotranspiration (1,464) | (1,687) | (1,900) | (1,999) | (1,479)

Outflow to Hollister MA (2,361) (2,309) (2,684) (2,890) (2,734)
(31,017)

Total mﬂow

47 721

Percolation from streams 24,680 15,015 13,182 10,550 44,306
Bedrock inflow 19,728 10,203 1,744 472 1,232
Dispersed recharge from rainfall 25,074 12,465 6,946 5,151 58,722
Irrigation deep percolation 4,514 4,986 5,286 5,567 4,447
Reclaimed water percolation 327 291 248 226 372
Inflow from Southern MA 4,958 4,760 5,187 5,562 5,698

79 282 114 777

‘Net Chanée lrr-Storage

North San Benito Annual Report 2023

25

21,226 | (12,060) |

' (30,557)

Subsurface outflow to external basms

Wells - M&I and domestic (1,808) | (2,056) | (3,748) | (3,555) | (3,555)
Wells - agricultural (35,913) | (39,586) | (46,728) | (53,681) | (37,020)
Groundwater discharge to streams (8,630) | (6,972) | (2,219) | (1,119) | (1,844)
Riparian evapotranspiration (193) (182) (147) (125) (184)
Outflow to Bolsa and San Juan MAs (11,511) | (10,985) | (10,409) | (10, 283) | (10,382)
Total outflow (58, 056) (59 781) (63,151) (68 763) (52,986)

(41,235) |

61,791

Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

TABLE 4-3. WATER BALANCE UPDATE - SAN JUAN MA, AF

IVGroundwater Inflow Y
Subsurface inflow from external basms

Percolation from streams

Bedrock inflow

Dispersed recharge from rainfall*

Irrigation deep percolation

Reclaimed water percolation

Inflow from Hollister and Bolsa MAs

Total mﬂow

Subsurface outflow to external basms

Total outflow

1. Dlspersed recharge volumes adjusted fr

(20,717)

(24,351)

TABLE 4-4. WATER BALANCE UPDATE - BOLSA MA, AF

Wells - M&I and domestic (397) (234) (240) (235) (475)
Wells - agricultural (15,944) | (17,906) | (20,286) | (22,896) | (15,607)
Groundwater discharge to streams (1,716) | (1,666) | (1,051) (600) (1,826)
Riparian evapotranspiration (997) | (1,136) | (1,267) (1,326) (998)
Outflow to Bolsa MA (1,664) | (1,560) (1,508) (1,535) (1,775)

(22,501) (26,592) | (20, 682)

Subsurface inflow from external basins 5,033 5,896 8,297 10,778 5,585
Percolation from streams 4,274 3,264 3,320 2,184 5,372
Bedrock inflow 0 0 0 0 0
Dispersed recharge from rainfall? 13,653 6,037 3,246 2,381 30,083
Irrigation deep percolation 2,300 2,432 2,616 2,769 2,283
Reclaimed water percolation 0 0 0 0 0
Inflow from Hollister and San Juan MAs 5,698 5,507 5,184 4,804 5,597
Total inflow 22,662 22, 916 48,919

North San Benito Annual Report 2023

26

FGrotndwater Outfiow. R e e AE W e
Subsurface outflow to external basins (1,732) (630) (76) 0 (1,992)
Wells - M&I and domestic (15) 0 0 o| (36)
Wells - agricultural (25) ~ (25) (25) (25) (25)
Groundwater discharge to streams (23,918) | (25,354) | (27,358) | (29,019) | (23,802)
Riparian evapotranspiration (2,043) (833) (247) (80) (2,779)
Outflow to San Juan MA (229) (185) (165) (86) (238)
Total outflow (1,563) | (1,532) | (1, 709) | (1,937) (1,908)

‘NetChangeinStorage | 1433 (5424) (6918)  (8231) | 18139

Todd Groundwater



Jsjempunolg ppoL L2 k €20¢ Moday [enuuy ojuag ues YUON

i

YIAI N4IHLNOS - IDNVIVE HaLVM "T-b mz_.,_w_n_

FONVIVE d3LVMN-T




Iejempunol ppoL 8z : £20z Hodey [enuuy ojuag Ues YUON

VIA 431SITIOH - IDNVIVY ALV “2-1 um_gmw_u_

FONVIVE 43LVMN-T7




18)eMpunoI ppoL 62 £20¢ Hodey [enuuy ojiueg Ues YUoN

VIAI NVN[ NVS - IDNVIVY 3LV “E- 3UNDI4

FONVIVE dILVM-T




18}EMPUNOID PPOL o€ £20Z Hoday [enuuy ojuag Ues YuoN

VIA vS104g - 3ONVIVE HILV M\ ‘-1 38NOI4

AONVIVE H31LVM-1




ATER BALANCE

Inflows

The rainfall-runoff-recharge model and groundwater model were updated to reflect conditions from
Water Years 2019-2023. Data, assumptions and calculations for individual hydrologic processes and
groundwater inflows are described below.

Precipitation and Evaporation. Precipitation and evaporation on the land surface are accounted for in
the rainfall-runoff-recharge model. Data are obtained from local climate stations.

CVP Imported Water. Two Management Areas (Hollister and San Juan) receive imported water from the
CVP, which is delivered to municipal and agricultural users and to several percolation ponds to enhance
groundwater recharge. CVP imported water stored in San Justo Reservoir seeps from the reservoir to
the local groundwater. In addition, water evaporates from water surfaces. These seepage and
evaporation losses remain consistent through the period of record and are included in the groundwater
model.

Dispersed Recharge from Rainfall and Irrigation. Dispersed recharge from rainfall and applied irrigation
water is estimated by the rainfall-runoff-recharge model. The model simulates soil moisture storage in
the root zone, which derives from rainfall infiltration and irrigation, and outflows to evapotranspiration
and deep percolation. Simulation is on a daily basis. In recharge zones with irrigated crops, irrigation is
simulated by assuming water is applied when soil moisture falls below a certain threshold. When soil
moisture exceeds the root zone storage capacity, any excess rainfall or irrigation becomes deep
percolation. Rainfall and irrigation water comingle in the root zone and in deep percolation. In urban
recharge zones, pipe leaks are included in the amount shown as rainfall recharge. The resulting net
recharge is passed to the top layer of the groundwater model. '

Percolation from Streams. Percolation from streams depends on the flow, stage, width, length, and bed
permeability of stream reaches, as well as the elevation difference between the stream surface and
groundwater in the underlying model cell. Point sources of recharge (such as wastewater percolation
facilities) are entered into the top model layer as if they were injection wells. Surface inflows to the
stream network in the surface water module of the groundwater model include a combination of
gauged flows (for the San Benito River at the upstream end of the Southern MA only), simulated runoff
from tributary watersheds and valley floor areas obtained from the rainfall-runoff-recharge model, and
historical amounts of CVP water percolated in local streams. The effects of Hernandez Reservoir
operation on San Benito River flows are included in the gauged flows, and the effects of Pacheco
Reservoir on Pacheco Creek inflows were estimated by applying simple rules for seasonal storage and
release. Valley floor areas are flatter than the tributary watersheds, and the amount of runoff per acre is
consequently smaller. The rainfall-runoff-recharge model simulates runoff from valley floor areas, and
those flows are added to the inflows of nearby stream segments in the groundwater model.

Reclaimed Water Percolation. Percolation of reclaimed water in wastewater disposal ponds occurs in
two Management Areas (San Juan and Hollister) at facilities operated by the City of Hollister, SSCWD,
and Tres Pinos County Water District. Discharges from the San Juan Bautista wastewater treatment
plant are not included. Percolation is assumed to be the plant inflow less net evaporation and amounts
of wastewater recycled for irrigation use. Additional percolation may occur around rural residential

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 31 Todd Groundwater



\TER BALANCE

septic systems. For the numerical model, it is assumed to be negligible as the volumes would be small
and spread out over the Basin.

subsurface Groundwater Inflow. Three types of subsurface inflow are listed separately in the water
balance tables. Subsurface inflow from external basins occurs only in the Bolsa MA, where flow enters
from the adjacent Llagas Subbasin. This is simulated as a head-dependent flow that varies depending on
simulated groundwater levels near the boundary (lower water levels increase the simulated inflow rate).
Along the rest of the Basin perimeter, small amounts of subsurface inflow result from recharge
percolating through fractured bedrock in tributary watershed areas. Bedrock inflow is simulated as
shallow injection wells along the perimeter of the Basin.

Finally, subsurface flow occurs across the management area boundaries within the Basin. Although flow
across MA boundaries is predominantly in one direction in most cases, local variations in boundary
alignment relative to regional gradients can result in inflow at one location concurrent with outflow at
another. For example, Table 4-1 indicates inflow from Hollister to Southern MA although Southern MA is
generally upgradient of Hollister MA. This reflects the zig-zag character of the boundary between the
two MAs, such that groundwater flows from Hollister into portions of Southern MA and then flows out
again.

Most groundwater inflows to the Basin are controlled by hydrologic conditions. Natural stream
percolation and deep percolation from rainfall are related to the volume and distribution of rainfall. The
availability of imported water similarly reflects wet and dry conditions in the source area, which for CVP
water is the Sierra Nevada. Because they are related to rainfall, almost all Basin inflows are higher in wet
years and lower in dry years. In contrast, deep percolation of applied irrigation water (irrigation return
flow) is generally similar from year to year.

Outflows

Major outflows from the Basin are pumping (agricultural, municipal, industrial, and domestic),
groundwater seepage into streams, subsurface outflow, and evapotranspiration by riparian vegetation.

Pumping by Wells. Agricultural pumping is much larger than the other types and is listed separately in
the water balance tables and shown in green on the water balance bar charts. Agricultural pumping is
dependent not only on cropping patterns and irrigation practices, but also on the volume of CVP imports
and the amount and timing of rainfall. Spring rains decrease total irrigation demand, and growers adjust
pumping to compensate for wet weather and the availability of CVP imports. Agricultural groundwater
pumping in the model and water balance tables is simulated by the rainfall-runoff-recharge model.
When simulated soil moisture falls below a specified threshold in a recharge zone with irrigated crops,
irrigation is assumed to be applied and to refill soil moisture to capacity. Irrigation not derived from CVP
water or recycled water is assumed to be from groundwater.

Agricultural pumping in Zone 6 is also monitored by SBCWD by recording the operating time of pump
motors and multiplying that by a measured discharge rate. Previous studies have found that the
pumping estimates obtained by this method are significantly smaller than the estimates obtained by

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 32 Todd Groundwater



simulating crop water demand and soil moisture. The simulation approach improved model calibration
during the 2014 model update, and that approach is retained in the current model.

Reliable measurements of agricultural pumping are a recognized data gap. Given the large range or
uncertainty and the model sensitivity to the volume and location of agricultural pumping, evaluation is
currently underway of alternative methodologies for accurately evaluating agricultural pumping.

Municipal pumping by City of Hollister and SSCWD is in the Hollister MA, with additional pumping by San
Juan Bautista in the San Juan MA. Pumping by major municipal providers is measured, as is pumping by
smaller community water systems and self-supplied commercial and industrial facilities within Zone 6.
Actual pumping and well locations are used in the numerical model. Additional pumping for potable use
at rural residences and agricultural buildings was estimated by inventorying the number and locations of
those buildings on aerial photos. This domestic pumping is assigned to 200 hypothetical wells near
building locations.

A map showing the locations of agricultural and municipal, commercial, industrial, and domestic
pumping is presented in Figure 4-5. Irrigation pumping is represented as a one-dimensional annual
groundwater application rate (in inches) on the irrigated fraction of each recharge analysis polygon. Use
of CVP water and recycled water has already been subtracted from total irrigation demand to obtain
these estimates of groundwater-supplied irrigation. Monthly one-dimensional rates are multiplied by
irrigated area and entered into the groundwater model as a hypothetical irrigation well located at the
centroid of each irrigated recharge polygon. Municipal, commercial, industrial, and domestic wells are
displayed as circles with areas proportional to annual pumping in 2023. Points representing the first
three categories are actual well locations, and the pumping is measured and reported to the District.
The small dots representing rural domestic pumping are located where rural residences are visible in
aerial photographs, and a uniform production rate was assumed at all those locations.

Subsurface Outflow. Subsurface outflows to other basins and other Management Areas were calculated
using the groundwater model by the same methods used to simulate subsurface inflows.

Groundwater Discharge to Streams. Discharges from the groundwater basin to surface water bodies are
simulated by the groundwater model based on stream bed wetted area and permeability and on the
amount by which the simulated groundwater elevation in a model stream cell is higher than the
simulated surface water elevation. This occurs in all Management Areas, but notably where Pacheco
Creek and Tequisquita Slough approach the Calaveras Fault, where the Pajaro River approaches the
downstream end of the Bolsa MA, and along the San Benito River at the downstream end of the San
Juan MA. The relatively large amounts of simulated groundwater discharge to streams in the Southern
MA is balanced by high amounts of percolation from streams. The San Benito River and Tres Pinos Creek
transition between gaining and losing at various locations in the Southern MA.

Riparian Evapotranspiration. The presence of dense, vigorous trees and shrubs along a stream channel
is often a sign that the roots of the vegetation extend to the water table and have access to
groundwater throughout the dry season. Plants that draw water directly from groundwater are called
phreatophytes. In the groundwater model, riparian ET is a function of water table depth, decreasing
from unrestricted water use when the water table is at the ground surface to zero when it is 15 feet or
more below the ground surface. This reflects a reasonable range of root depth distribution for a mix of
riparian shrub and tree species.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 33 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

FIGURE 4-5. LOCATIONS OF GROUNDWATER PUMPING IN WATER YEAR 2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 34 Todd Groundwater



The Management Area water balances for 2023 are easiest to interpret in the context of balances in
prior years (see Figures 4-1 through 4-4). In the Southern MA, total inflows were much higher than the
previous three years due to the wet conditions and outflows were similar resulting in increased storage
in the MA. In the Hollister MA, total inflows were high, the largest volume since 1998. Outflows were
slightly lower than previous years, reflecting the increased imported water for agriculture and municipal
supply. Total inflows in the San Juan MA were also the highest since 1998 and total outflows were below
average, similar to Hollister. In the Bolsa MA, total inflows were the highest on record whereas total
outflow remained the same; agricultural pumping increased but was offset by increased subsurface
inflow from the Llagas Subbasin.

Simulated Groundwater Elevations

In previous annual reports, contours of groundwater elevation surfaces in a portion of the Basin were
constructed using measurements from monitored wells with refinement to account for the effects on
groundwater of faults and other hydrogeologic conditions. These previous groundwater elevation
surfaces were highly influenced by variability in data available from the monitoring network.

One of the changes to the annual reports associated with SGMA compliance is the presentation of
groundwater contours for the entire Basin. A consequence of this basin-wide approach is inclusion of
areas with limited or no groundwater monitoring. As a result, contouring with relatively simple software
or by hand is more difficult and subjective. However, the calibrated groundwater model, which will now
be updated annually, provides simulation of groundwater elevations for every month of the model
period in a way that is internally consistent with the hydrogeologic conceptualization of the Basin and
the water budget. Using contours from the model produces groundwater surface elevation
representations that are consistent with the water budget and change in storage estimates.

Figure 4-6 shows contours of groundwater elevations in March 2023, representing seasonal high
conditions, while Figure 4-7 shows groundwater elevations in September 2023, representing seasonal
low conditions. These are contours of elevations simulated by the calibrated groundwater model, which
provides estimates of water levels throughout the Basin. They are from model layer 3, which is within
the typical range of screened intervals for irrigation and municipal wells. The general pattern of contours
is similar for both seasons, but March water levels are up to 20 ft higher. Groundwater in the Southern
MA flows northwest toward the Hollister MA. On the east side of the Calaveras Fault, flow is northward
and westward, converging toward San Felipe Lake, where groundwater that hasn’t leaked through the
fault emerges into surface waterways and crosses the fault as stream base flow. On the west side of the
Calaveras Fault, inflow from the Southern MA flows northwest beneath the San Benito River and bends
west to enter the San Juan MA. In the latter area, flow is toward the west end of the MA, where
groundwater exits by emerging as surface flow in San Juan Creek, the San Benito River or the Pajaro
River. In the Southern MA, simulated water levels have steep gradients beneath the hilly areas between
and around the Paicines and Tres Pinos Creek Valleys and relatively flat gradients within those valleys.
This reflects the relatively low estimated transmissivity of the Purisima Formation in the hills relative to
the alluvial materials in the valleys.

Figure 4-8 shows contours of the net change in groundwater elevation during the water year from
September 2022 to September 2023. Unlike the past two years, significant areas were characterized by
groundwater level increases, ranging from less than 10 feet to local increases as much as 40 and even 50

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 35 Todd Groundwater



- 4-WATER BALANCE

feet. Broad areas of increase in the Southern, Hollister, and San Juan Valleys reflect increases in
dispersed rainfall recharge and percolation from streams. Areas of groundwater level decrease are
indicated mostly in the Bolsa MA, northeastern Hollister MA, and in one area along the northeastern
edge of Southern MA indicating local declines of more than 50 feet. These areas of decrease are
characterized by relative distance from sources of stream percolation and by continued or increased
groundwater pumping, including vineyard development in upland areas north of Southern MA. Contour
bullseyes are visible where individual wells had much different pumping amounts in 2022 and 2023.

Change in Storage

Figure 4-9 shows the cumulative change in storage from the model for the four Management Areas for
1975-2023. The change in storage for each MA for the model update period (2019-2023) is documented
in Tables 4-1 through 4-4. In Appendix E, Figures E-1 through E-4 illustrate the annual storage change,
cumulative storage change, and estimated groundwater pumping for each MA from 1975 to present. On
each, the water year type is indicated with the first letter of the types: Wet, Above normal, Below
normal, Dry, and Critically dry (see Figure 3-2).

Storage increased in all four Management Areas for the first time since 2019 and total storage is far
above the 1975 amounts in all the MAs. Overall, storage increased significantly in 2023 and is about
equal to the amount of storage in 1975.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 36 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

(this page is intentionally left blank)

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 37 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

FIGURE 4-6. GROUNDWATER ELEVATIONS MARCH 2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 38 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 39 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

FIGURE 4-7. GROUNDWATER ELEVATIONS SEPTEMBER 2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 40 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 41 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

FIGURE 4-8. CHANGE GROUNDWATER ELEVATIONS SEPTEMBER 2020 — SEPTEMBER 2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 42 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 43 Todd Groundwater



4-WATER BALANCE

FIGURE 4-9. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN STORAGE 1975-2023

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 44 Todd Groundwater



5 WATER SUPPLY AND USE

Water Supply Sources

Four sources of water supply are available for municipal, rural, and agricultural water demands in the
Basin. Each is summarized below; for more data and graphs, see Appendix E. Local groundwater and
imported water are described in detail in the following sections.

Local Groundwater. Groundwater is pumped by private irrigation and domestic wells and by public
water supply retailers. The District does not directly produce or sell groundwater but has the
responsibility and authority to manage groundwater throughout San Benito County.

Imported Water. The District purchases Central Valley Project (CVP) water from the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) and distributes to customers in Zone 6. Some CVP water has also been released for
groundwater recharge. The District has a contract with no expiration for a maximum of 8,250 AFY of
municipal and industrial (M&I) water and 35,550 AFY of agricultural water. CVP water is not available in
the Bolsa or Southern MAs.

Recycled Water. Water recycling began in 2010 with landscape irrigation at Riverside Park. The system
was expanded in 2014, including infrastructure and treatment capability for the purpose of agricultural
irrigation. Recycled water currently is provided to approximately 865 acres for agricultural production
and landscape irrigation. This source is reliable during drought and helps maintain sustainable water
supply. Recycled water is only available in the Hollister MA.

Local Surface Water. Surface water is not used directly for potable or irrigation use in the Basin, but
channel percolation is a significant source of groundwater recharge. In 2023, releases from the District’s
Hernandez and Paicines reservoirs were above average, reflecting the wet year and spills from
Hernandez. Stormwater capture currently is limited to some diversion by the City of Hollister to the
Hollister Industrial WWTP (via a combined sewer system) with subsequent treatment and discharge to
percolation and evaporation ponds.

Groundwater VImported Water Recycled Water # Local Surface Water

«Important storage sVariable supply «Good water quality [ e Canbe depleted by
sM&I, rural, and «Good water quality eReliable supply | drought

agricultural use »All use metered e[rrigation uses sGroundwater
»Limited water quality §SeM&I, agriculturaluse, »All'use metered ! rechgrge
eUsed in all MAs recharge in Zone 6 «Only in Hollister MA No direct potable use

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 45 Todd Groundwater



ATER SUPPLY AND USE

Groundwater

Groundwater is a critical water resource in North San Benito Basin, not only providing water supply in all
four MAs, but also water storage. In Hollister and San Juan MAs, the Basin continues to provide a
reserve in times of dry hydrologic conditions or when engineering issues prevent the full delivery of CVP
allocations, as occurred in WY 2023 when West Hills WTP was offline for about five months and a CVP
pipeline to San Juan was out of service for several months. In Bolsa and Southern MAs, groundwater is
the sole source of supply.

The North San Benito Basin groundwater resource has been actively managed since 1953 when the San
Benito County Water District was established. This Annual Report reflects the changing scope of
groundwater management in the Basin and thus involves adapted methods, for example, to estimate
agricultural groundwater pumping, which is the largest use of groundwater supply. It builds on the GSP
(which includes extensive update and application of the numerical model) and presents an estimate of
groundwater pumping simulated by the numerical model. This represents a departure from previous
Annual Reports and a first step toward basin-wide and more accurate assessment of agricultural

pumping.

As described in the water balance section, the simulated estimate relies on the 2014 land use map and
applies a crop coefficient to identified agricultural parcels. Annual crop evapotranspiration (ET) is
calculated by applying the crop coefficient to the daily observed reference ET from the CIMIS station.
Groundwater pumping is then estimated based on the crop ET and an irrigation efficiency assumption
less the available CVP and recycled water delivered to agricultural customers in the MA. The volume is
simulated as a well in the center of the identified parcel.

In previous annual reports, the water use patterns for Zone 6 were presented using the reported
pumping from available power meters. Pumping amounts have been calculated semiannually by
metering the number of hours of pump operation and multiplying by the average discharge rate. This
monitoring program began in about 1990 (soon after CVP imports started) but was not applied to
irrigation pumping beyond Zone 6. This historical method of estimating groundwater pumping based on
power consumption has drifted from original calibration and is now considered insufficiently accurate; it
is being replaced as part of SGMA implementation. Accordingly, the pumping indicated by these meters
is not shown in this annual report.

The District is currently developing a new water use monitoring program that will address the entire
basin area and will be documented in future SGMA Annual Reports. One method currently identified to
evaluate agricultural water use is termed OpenET. OpenET is a tool developed by a consortium of
private and public partners and led by Environmental Defense Fund, NASA, Desert Research Institute,
and HabitatSeven. The tool utilizes satellite-based estimates of the total ET by month by parcel. The data
are available at a spatial resolution of 30 meters by 30 meters (0.22 acres per pixel). The District is
running a pilot program where measured water use from selected agricultural wells (linked to specific
parcels) is compared to ET data available in the beta version of the program. Due to extreme wet
weather and unexpected changes in the CVP delivery system, the District has extended the pilot
program through September 2024. Assuming a successful pilot program, these data—ET by parcel over

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 46 Todd Groundwater



5-WATER SUPPLY AND USE

time—will be available for import into the numerical model to improve the model simulation of
groundwater pumping.

Imported Water —Zone 6

The District distributes CVP water to agricultural and M&I customers in Zone 6. The allocation of the
contract for each year is variable and contingent on total available supply of the CVP system. In dry
years, the allocation may be zero and in wet years, it may be 100 percent of the contract amount. The
USBR contract years are March through February, so Water Year 2023 (Oct 2022-Sept 2023) overlapped
two contract years. Both contract years were below-average hydrological conditions, which resulted in
extremely low allocations, but the allocation improved with recent wet weather. Table 5-1 shows the
contract entitlements and recent allocations for both USBR contract years that overlap Water Year 2023
(SLDMWA 2021).

TABLE 5-1. ALLOCATION FOR USBR WATER YEARS 2022-2023

March 2022 February 2023

Agriculture 35550 0% 0
M&] 8,250 339%* 2,766
TOTAL 43,800

*Public Health and Safety

March 2023 February2024 _

WC Contract Allocation ‘(AF).‘;;,?'.-
Agrlculture 35,550 100% 35,550
M&I 8,250 100% 8,250

TOTAL 43,800 43,800

As shown in Table 5-1, USBR contract year 2022 (March 2022- February 2023) allocations were 0
percent for agricultural users. For M&I users, the initial allocation was also 0 percent but agencies had
the opportunity to request water to serve public health and safety (PHS) needs. The District prepared a
memorandum to USBR summarizing the demands and supplies of the retailers consistent with the
“Central Valley Project Municipal and Industrial Water Shortage Policy Guidelines and Procedures” (WSP

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 47 Todd Groundwater



~ 5.WATER SUPPLY AND USE

Guidelines). The District documented that—without any CVP imports—the unmet PHS demand would
be 2,968 AF. USBR granted the District 2,766 AF, equivalent to 33.5 percent of their contract.

In contract year 2023 (March 2023-2024), both agriculture and urban users received 100 percent of their
contract. Full contract supply has only happened two other times since 2006.

Over the last ten years (2014-2023), the average allocations were 35 percent and 65 percent for
agricultural users and M&I users respectively. More information on the past years’ allocations can be
found in Appendix E.

Municipal Use

Figure 5-1 shows the municipal water supply for the City of Hollister, SSCWD, San Juan Bautista, and
Tres Pinos County Water District. Municipal demand was satisfied entirely by groundwater prior to 2003.
The completion of Lessalt Water Treatment Plant (WTP) in 2003, expansion of Lessalt in 2016, and
completion of West Hills WTP in 2018 have significantly increased the availability and use of CVP water
for the Hollister and SSCWD municipal systems.

In Figure 5-1, annual water supply provided through the Lessalt WTP is shown in grey and West Hills
WTP in blue. In 2023, these two treatment plants served about 28 percent of the municipal supply, a
decrease from last water year when CVP imports provided 43 percent of the municipal supply. WY 2023
overlaps with two USBR contract years: one the lowest allocation on record and one the highest. In the
beginning of WY 2023, Lessalt WTP was offline due to the extended drought and lack of CVP supply but
came back online in February 2023. In addition, West Hills WTP was offline from mid-November 2022
through about late April 2023 due to an electrical power surge that destroyed much of the electrical
equipment and controls at the plant. Despite the wet year and 100 percent allocations, less CVP water
was available for municipal supplies (due to WTP outages) and groundwater use increased. It is
noteworthy that in WY 2019, imported water represented 71 percent of supply; this indicates that
additional treatment capacity stands ready when imported water is available and WTPs are operational.
Groundwater serves as a reliable supply in situations of drought or facility disruptions, highlighting the
importance of reliance on a portfolio of supplies.

It is expected that WTP operations will maximize CVP use WY 2024 to increase flexibility for local water
users to use groundwater or CVP. CVP provides better quality water for delivery to municipal customers
and results in improved wastewater quality, which supports water recycling. The City of San Juan
Bautista Regional Water and Wastewater Solution project, described in the GSP and currently being
implemented, will allow the City of San Juan Bautista to have these benefits.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 48 Todd Groundwater



5-WATER SUPPLY AND USE

Agricultural Use

Figure 5-2 shows the annual volume of CVP imported water by use. Review of Figure 5-2 reveals the
significant diminution in CVP supply for agriculture (shown in green). With zero allocation for USBR
Water Year 2022-2023 and 100 percent allocation Water Year 2022-2023, the total CVP volume
delivered to agricultural users was 8,438 AF. This amounts, for example, to only forty percent of the
volume delivered to agricultural users in 1997 (21,061 AF). The available CVP supply in the first part of
WY 2023 was the lowest since CVP imports were brought into the Basin. And, although the allocation
was increased to 100 percent by the end of the water year, the total delivered water remained lower
than expected. CVP deliveries to San Juan Valley also were impacted by construction. The pipeline
connecting the Hollister conduit to San Juan was moved to complete local highway construction in early
2023 and was not restored until June. The CVP system is now completely restored, and the District and
purveyors should be able to maximize CVP use.

Total Water Use

Table 5-2 shows the total water use in the Basin by source and user type for Water Years 2019-2023.
CVP and recycled water uses are measured directly. Municipal groundwater use also is metered. M&I
and domestic groundwater uses are included in the model simulated pumping.

As shown in Table 5-2, total water use was lower in WY 2023 than 2022. The CVP imports increased to
about three times the volume of WY 2022 and groundwater pumping overall decreased from the WY
2022 volume, generally reflecting wet conditions but also affected by local factors, the WH WTP outage

and the CVP pipeline disruption.

Noting the use of a 2014 land use map in modeling simulations and upcoming information from the
OpenET pilot program, additional analysis is recommended of changing crop patterns along with update
of the model during the next periodic evaluation (in 2027).

Water use information will be uploaded to DWR as part of the Annual Report. The tables are included in
Appendix A, following the Elements Guide.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 49 Todd Groundwater



5-WATER SUPPLY AND USE

FIGURE 5-1. MUNICIPAL WATER SUPPLY BY SOURCE

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 50 Todd Groundwater



5-WATER SUPPLY AND USE

FIGURE 5-2. TOTAL CVP WATER USE BY TYPE 1976-2023 (AFY)

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 51 Todd Groundwater



4}

€20z Hoday [enuuy ojiusg UES YLON

4V ‘Isn Y3LV/\ VL0 *g-S 318V L

34SN ANV A'lddNS d31VM-S

B B e e )

“snouep | 97066 | 6£2°0TT | 009°SOT | 0T8'66 | ISPz
S1913|\l Mmo|4 payioday v8y TT9 9zy 9zs 69S 1\ My i
SI313|A Mo parioday ¥SO‘TT | Z88‘€ 12’6 6TT‘LT | 88T‘9T v dnd
paiejnwis 8Lv'L8 | L8L'SOT | €SL'S6 | S9T‘Z8 | ¥69°SL v Jaiempunosn
paie|nwis 8T6'ET | GLT'ST 6TYLT | T60°9T SYE‘ST [edn}Nd1I8Y
Jlsawoq Jarempunoln esjog
ale|nwii
pale|nuis Y4 74 14 14 14 BUE PRI
S1913|N MO parioday 8SEC 16¢ 19S°T 709°€ L98°E [edn}nou8y
‘ ‘ . Jl3SawWo
S1919|N\ MO patioday 6EST 88Y'C LT 9T0‘T €CT o A2
BB uenf ues
pale|nwis L09'ST | €08'vT | ¥PT'CCT | 64S'61 G09°LT [N} NJLSY
paje|nwis SLY €91 09¢ €9¢ STV Y SRR
; pue RN
SI1919|\l MO|4 pauioday 017 06S Sov 147 9% |edn}jnols8y
Jlsawoq MY
S1913|\l MO|4 payoda :
A mol4 p Y 6L e TC L6 80T BUE PRI
SI213A\ MO|{ palioday 0809 508 6TSY 958 98, |edny|noLISyY
. . . , Jl11sawo 131sl||o0H
SI919|N\ MO|4 paioday LLOT 86T yIE'Ss LE6'E YEEY 4 i |
pue |
pale|nwis 0C0'LE | SLT0S | €60ty | ¥9T'LE | YOT'VE [ednynou8y
pale|nwis GSS'E LTS'E 8vL'S 950C 808‘T Aps=iiod isiEmplineIg
) pue '8N
paieinwis vEL'9 G8%'8 8L yL'9 0ST'9 [edn}|noL8y
a11sawiog ..wu\m>>_uc30._mu c‘_wr_uzom
dle|nwis
paie| T EVT VT 15740 EVT e
powan | eane | eaoe e | o e
ENS u?i?\;b&_r?i ;, i SR SR ._. { Ll JUStIeuEiAl




6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

As presented in the North San Benito GSP, the GSAs have been actively managing their local
groundwater resources for decades with various projects and management actions. The GSP
summarizes ongoing efforts, indicates supplementary work on those efforts, and identifies potential
future projects and management actions. This Annual Report provides an update on significant progress.

As defined in the GSP, Projects are substantial efforts that involve an increase in water supply ora
reduction in demand for the GSP Area. Projects outlined in the GSP include:

e Develop Surface Water Storage (e.g., Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project)
e Expand Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR)
e Enhance Conjunctive Use
o Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Project
o City of San Juan Bautista Regional Water and Wastewater Solution
o North County Project
o Zone 3 Operations Planning Tool
e Enhance Water Conservation.

Actions provide a framework for groundwater management and include establishing GSP procedures or
policies, filling data gaps with scientific studies or improved monitoring, and providing for funding.
Management Actions identified in the GSP include:

e Improve Monitoring Program and Data Management System (DMS)
e Measure agricultural groundwater extraction
e Improve monitoring well network and DMS
o Improve water quality monitoring program
o Enhance surface water gaging
e Develop Response Plans
e Enhance Water Quality Improvement Programs
e Reduce Potential Impacts to Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (GDEs)
e Provide Long-term Basin-wide Funding Mechanism
e Provide GSP Administration, Monitoring, and Reporting.

The projects and management actions (PMAs)are presented in the GSP with an Implementation Plan
that extends to 2045 in five-year intervals; the last interval includes the 2042 deadline for the 20-year
implementation to achieve and demonstrate sustainability. Not all projects and management actions are
updated specifically in this Annual Report, which focuses on projects and management actions with
active implementation.

It is noted that the District monitoring program is summarized in Section 2, presenting the basis for
subsequent information and analyses. Importation and distribution of CVP water in Zone 6 are described
in Section 5. Sources of revenue to support District operations are presented in this section.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 53 Todd Groundwater



WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Surface Water Storage

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project. The surface water storage project with the most advanced
planning is the Pacheco Reservoir Expansion (PRE) Project. The PRE Project is a collaborative effort of
Valley Water, San Benito County Water District, and Pacheco Pass Water District. The project would
establish a new dam and expanded reservoir on the North Fork of Pacheco Creek, which would store
local watershed inflows and CVP supplies for use by the involved agencies. The PRE project has received
funding from California Proposition 1 and Safe, Clean Water Program. Recent progress includes
completion and release in November 2021 of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR), public
meeting on the project January 2022, and closure of the public comment period in February 2022. The
EIR will be recirculated in the Summer of 2025 with a Final EIR expected in the Summer of 2026.
Construction is expected to begin in 2027.

Managed Percolation

Ongoing North San Benito Basin management includes percolation of local surface water, wastewater,
and CVP water. Considering climate change and potential growth in urban and agricultural water
demand, the GSP recognizes the importance of continued percolation activities and future expansion.

Percolation of Local Surface Water. In most years, local surface water is released from Hernandez and
Paicines reservoirs for percolation along the San Benito River and Tres Pinos Creek (see Appendix D).
Releases are managed to maximize percolation along the stream channels of the San Benito River and
Tres Pinos Creek and to avoid any losses out of the Basin. An engineering problem in a valve at
Hernandez Reservoir caused the spillway to remain open from September through October, prior to
repair. The large outflow contributed to percolation in the basin, but some flow likely was lost to basin
outflow into the Pajaro River.

Percolation of Wastewater. Wastewater is percolated by the City of Hollister at its Domestic and
Industrial plants, by SSCWD at its Ridgemark Facilities, and by Tres Pinos County Water District. While
the City of San Juan Bautista wastewater treatment plant also discharges wastewater, the flows are not
considered to percolate to the groundwater basin because of local hydrogeologic conditions that result
in outflow to San Juan Creek. As described in the next section, the City of San Juan Bautista Regional
Water and Wastewater Solution (now being built) will convey San Juan Bautista wastewater to the City
of Hollister WWTP. Recent changes in operation of the wastewater facilities (including increased water
recycling) and decreased municipal water use have decreased the volume percolating to the
groundwater. Information about the amount of groundwater recharged from wastewater facilities is
found in Appendix D.

Percolation of CVP Water. In Water Year 2023, the District percolated 1,966 AF of CVP. While the CVP
allocations were available, percolation was limited to allow groundwater storage capacity for
percolation of the large amount flow from the Hernandez Reservoir due to the engineering issue. In

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 54 Todd Groundwater



~ 6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

normal and wet years, the District percolates in four dedicated off-stream basins; locations are shown in
Figure 6-1. The managed recharge of the imported water was critical in replenishing the Basin in the
1980s and 1990s; however, the threat of zebra mussel contamination and low CVP allocations prevented
the practice from 2008 to 2016. Given available CVP supply, the District has resumed recharge at
dedicated basins adjacent to streams.

Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR)

Expand MAR was identified as a PMA in the 2022 GSP, and a MAR study was conducted and completed
in WY 2022. The study identified injection wells as the best method for implementing MAR in the Basin.
The District has planned a MAR project using injection wells, specifically Aquifer Storage and Recover
(ASR) and has begun implementation. The ASR Project will provide for injection and storage of up to
6,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) of treated Central Valley Project (CVP) water in wet years with recovery of
up to 6,000 AFY of stored water in dry years (HDR, June 2022; HDR, October 2022). Responding to the
recent drought, the ASR Project was re-envisioned to facilitate greater storage on an accelerated
timeline. This first phase, the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP), will be completed by
November 2026. The ADRoP phase will consist of five ASR wells, expansion of the West Hills WTP and
construction of pipelines to convey injection and recovery water between the five ASR wells, West Hills
WTP and the Hollister Distribution System (HDR, October 2022).

In December 2022, the District progressed with ASR implementation by applying for three grant funding
opportunities. The District applied to DWR for a SGMA Implementation Grant and an Integrated Water
Resource Management Grant and to USBR for a Small Storage Grant. These grant applications focused
on the accelerated phase of the ASR project, ADRoP. The District was awarded $11 million for the DWR
SGMA Implementation grant and $1.8 million from the Integrated Resource Management Grant. The
District reapplied for the USBR Small Storage Grant in November 2023 and is awaiting a decision.

Progress in WY 2023 has included design, permitting and environmental review of treatment and
conveyance facilities, well siting and design, numerical modeling and documentation of wellfield

feasibility, and outreach.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 55 Todd Groundwater



6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

FIGURE 6-1. DISTRICT PERCOLATION LOCATIONS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 56 Todd Groundwater



6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

FIGURE 6-2. VOLUME OF CVP RECHARGE BY MAJOR WATERWAY OVER TIME

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 57 Todd Groundwater



N MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Water Resources Planning and Conjunctive Use

As presented in the GSP, SBCWD is engaged in several conjunctive use projects; significant updates and
recent accomplishments are summarized below. .

Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Agricultural Water Management Plan (AWMP). The
District, in collaboration with Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD) and the City of Hollister,
developed the 2020 UWMP for the Hollister Urban Area, which was submitted to DWR in 2021. The
agencies continue to implement the Plan. The UWMP provides detailed information on the current and
future water supply and demand for the Hollister Urban Area and provides a comparison of supply and
demand in normal years plus single-year and multi-year droughts. To address drought and other water
shortages, the UWMP promotes water conservation, conjunctive use, and water recycling.

The 2020 Agricultural Water Management Plan (Todd Groundwater, Sept 2021) describes and evaluates
water deliveries and uses, sources of supply, water quality, water delivery measurements, water rates
and charges, water shortage allocation policies, drought management, and reasonable and practical
efficient water management practices. The USBR accepted the AWMP in October 2022.

San Benito Urban Areas Water and Wastewater Master Planning Project. This project (formerly called
the Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Plan) has represented an ongoing collaborative effort
of SBCWD, City of Hollister, and Sunnyslope County Water District to provide a secure and stable water
supply to the region. The project has involved provision of water treatment for CVP water, which allows
its direct use for municipal and industrial (M&I) purposes. It also allows delivery of improved quality
water to customers. While recent USBR allocations for M&l users were reduced because of drought (see
Section 5), the availability of water treatment capacity remains an important element of sustainability.
The San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan was approved in October 2023
(HDR, October 2023). The Master Plan includes the planned expansion to include City of San Juan
Bautista. The Master Plan Update evaluated the reliability of the existing CVP supply and assessed
various water supply alternatives to increase the resiliency of the water supply by providing storage of
water available in wet years for later use during dry years. The highest-ranking alternative in the 2023
Master Plan is the ASR Project described in the preceding section.

City of San Juan Bautista Regional Water and Wastewater Solution. As described in the GSP, the
Regional Solution involves importing high quality water from the West Hills WTP to San Juan Bautista,
replacing groundwater use, removing residential self-generating water softeners, reducing industrial salt
loading to the City wastewater, and then conveying San Juan Bautista wastewater to the City of Hollister
WWTP. The Regional Solution is now part of the Master Plan process. The San Juan Bautista Pipeline
preliminary design is underway and water deliveries may start as early as 2024.

North County Project. Test wells drilled in March 2021 as part of the North County Project were added
to the North San Benito GSP groundwater level and quality monitoring program. Information about the

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 58 Todd Groundwater



6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

wells (including ground surface elevation, screened intervals, and baseline conditions) are currently
being collected.

Zone 3 Operations Planning Tool. The Zone 3 Operations Planning Tool is continuing to be updated
annually and applied to guide Hernandez and Paicines reservoir operations.

Water Recycling. Water recycling is an ongoing conjunctive use project with the City of Hollister.
Recycled water currently is provided to approximately 865 acres for agricultural production and
landscape irrigation. Recycled water use is documented in Section 5 and Appendix D.

Water Conservation

Water conservation is an important tool to manage demands on the groundwater basin particularly
during drought. Water conservation efforts in San Benito County are conducted through the Water
Resources Association (WRA). WRA is a cooperative effort among the District, City of Hollister, City of
San Juan Bautista, and Sunnyslope County Water District. Following two dry winters and the Governor’s
proclamations of drought emergencies, Stage 2 -Mandatory Water Conservation was initiated in May
2022 for customers of the City of Hollister, City of San Juan Bautista, and the Sunnyslope County Water
District. The water demand measures for stage 2 are detailed in the Water Supply Contingency Plan
(WSCP) updated with the UWMP in 2021. While the UWMP was only prepared for the HUA, the WRA
encourages the water demand measures Basin-wide. In response to the wet year the Water Shortage
Stage was returned to Stage 1 — Voluntary Water Conservation on April 26, 2023.

The WRA added a Turf Removal Program in May 2022 in response to the continued drought. The
program has used state funding of $150,000 to pay customers to replace turf. The program pays $2 per
square foot of turf removed up to 1,000 square feet (52,000 maximum rebate). The program requires
that participants use materials that are permeable and allow water to infiltrate through the soil. In
addition, 25 percent of the area where the turf has been removed needs to be low-water use plants.
Applicants have four months to complete their projects after their plans are approved.

As of January 2024, approximately 202,000 square feet of turf have been removed through the
WRASBC’s Turf Removal Program. There is approximately $95K left in the Turf Removal Program for FY
23/24. The WRASBC expects to continue the program into FY 24/25 with additional funds being
requested from Member Agencies. The WRASBC also applied for a Small-Scale Water Efficient grant
through the Bureau of Reclamations WaterSMART program. The WRASBC requested $100K in their
grant application that was recently submitted. The grant awards will be announced in June 2024.

The WRASBC had ramped up its school presentations and fieldtrips this year. There have been eight
such presentations and/or field trips as of January 2024. This year has shown the most interest since the
pausing of the program during the pandemic. Public outreach has also continued on virtual platforms
including Facebook. WRA staff continues to author news articles for the online news sites that serve San
Benito County. The articles provided water conservation and efficiency tips that were seasonal in nature
and they continue to provide timely advice for water use. To supplement this effort, the WRA is

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 59 Todd Groundwater



6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

developing a series of water conservation videos for distribution to the local news media and the newly
updated WRA website.

WRA has been monitoring changes in water use sectors that have occurred over time. With more
residential water use and less water use in the agricultural and business sector, they are focusing their
conservation message to residential customers. This focus extends to new residential development in
the City. WRA reviews landscape plans for the City of Hollister to make sure that new homes comply
with the State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) and follows up with a post
inspection after the landscape materials are installed to ensure the landscape plans were followed. WRA
and the water purveyors are implementing DWR’s Urban Water Use Objective (UWUO), new legislation
designed to set water use targets for each category of municipal water use.

Finally, WRA continues to provide various rebates (toilets, landscape hardware, etc.). The most popular
rebate program is the water softener demolishing/replacement program. With provision of CVP supply
for municipal use, the delivered water quality has improved, and customers are willing to abandon
unneeded water softeners. This program has the benefit of improving the water quality of municipal
wastewater and recycled water.

Monitoring Program and DMS

The GSP recognized that a single, reliable, and consistent method of measuring agricultural pumping is
needed for the entire Basin. This was identified as a high-priority action, noting that it is required
specifically for annual reporting. SBCWD is conducting a pilot study to test the remote sensing services
offered by OpenET. OpenET uses satellites to estimate water consumed by crops and other plants and
provides free ET data to public water managers throughout the western states. SBCWD will analyze the
results of the OpenET pilot and, if applicable, incorporate it into the evaluation of groundwater pumping
in North San Benito.

In addition, the GSP’s monitoring network assessment provided recommendations for the DMS well
inventory, including prompt development of a unique well identification for monitored wells that
discontinues use of well names as identifiers. Well identifications were updated to be consistent with
DWR site IDs used in the SGMA Portal's Monitoring Network Module (MNM). All wells are identified in
this report by State Well Number. Another recommendation was to enhance the DMS with cross-
referencing of monitoring sites (groundwater and surface water) relative to location and monitoring for
regional groundwater level, groundwater quality, shallow groundwater, subsidence, or managed aquifer
recharge. The DMS was updated for groundwater levels, pumping, CVP deliveries, water quality, and
reservoir water balances, and cross referencing has been initiated.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 60 Todd Groundwater



* 6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Monitoring Well Network

The GSP’s assessment of the monitoring network identified data gaps including the uneven distribution
of monitored wells across the Basin, reliance on private production wells, and insufficient groundwater
level data on vertical gradients. Installation of new dedicated monitoring wells in the Basin was
identified as a top priority to enhance the existing groundwater monitoring network. This need reflected
historical data gaps in the Basin related to water level and water quality monitoring and newly identified
data gaps related to monitoring groundwater elevations in areas of interconnected surface water and
GDEs. In 2022, new monitoring wells were added to the monitoring program, including six shallow and
six deep monitoring wells. The wells are entered in the DMS and are sampled as part of the regular
monitoring. Additional information about these wells including the reference point and well depths will
be added to the DMS when available. These wells will continue to be monitored by SBCWD for inclusion
in future annual reports and periodic GSP updates.

In WY 2023, several regularly monitored wells were not measured due to well and access issues. The
District has reviewed these wells to determine if they can be accessed in the future. In brief, four key
wells for groundwater levels and three wells for GDEs (four wells total) were unable to be measured and
have been removed from the monitoring program. The District is actively assessing temporary
replacement wells and permanent replacement wells. For replacement wells, new MTs will need to be
determined based on the historical range of water levels and the potential impacts to nearby domestic
wells. A complete analysis of these wells, surrounding domestic wells, and potential undesirable results
will be performed in the period evaluation of the GSP to establish new permanent MTs.

Develop Response Plans

The GSP concludes that the Basin is managed sustainably relative to groundwater levels, but
nonetheless, recognizes that declining groundwater levels could occur rapidly and approach an MT level
during drought. Regular groundwater level monitoring and annual reporting were identified to provide
an early warning system. An Action Plan was prepared to respond to wells that fall below the MT level
and provides a guide for the District’s response in the event of rapid and potentially problematic
changes. The Plan, included in Appendix A, details a four-step process to respond to potentially
problematic changes relative to groundwater level or water quality thresholds is triggered. These steps
include:

Identify exceedance and investigate the representative monitoring well area
Determine contributing factors

Evaluate implementation of specific management actions and/or projects
Adopt Outreach and Enforcement Plan.

Hwmppe

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 61 Todd Groundwater



~ 6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Water Quality Improvement Programs

The GSP identified potential management actions to enhance water quality including collaboration with
UC Extension and other organizations toward reduced nitrate and salt loading by agriculture, support to
farmers for use of remote sensing to optimize fertilizer applications, and cooperation with the County
and local agencies on regulation of water softeners and wastewater treatment/disposal including onsite
wastewater treatment systems. As noted above, the most popular rebate program for the WRA is the
water softener demolishing / replacement program.

Reduce Potential Impacts to GDEs

A recommended management action is to reduce potential impacts to GDEs. Foremost among specific
actions is installation of dedicated shallow monitoring wells to measure water table depth at locations
where riparian vegetation might potentially be impacted by pumping. In 2021, six shallow monitoring
wells were installed at selected locations near the Pajaro River, Pacheco Creek, San Benito River (three
sites), and Tres Pinos Creek. These continue to be monitored and will be included in future annual
reports and periodic GSP updates. In February 2024 DWR released the first of three papers providing
new guidance on interconnected surface water (DWR, 2024); this will be incorporated in the periodic
evaluation of the GSP.

Long-term Funding

Groundwater sustainability necessitates the continuation of activities including monitoring, data
compilation, data analysis, numerical model update, public outreach and annual reporting, five-year GSP
updates, investigations, coordination with other agencies, and program administration. While SBCWD
has conducted such activities, SGMA requirements are more comprehensive and rigorous. In addition,
the extent of activities encompasses the entire North San Benito Groundwater Basin. Accordingly, the
GSP identifies management actions to maintain long-term, basin wide funding.

In addition to establishing a groundwater management fee for the entire North San Benito Basin, the
District has been pursuing grant funding. In December 2022, the District submitted an application for
ADRoP for the DWR SGMA Implementation Round 2. In May 2023, DWR announced that the District was
awarded $11 million for the project. In addition, the District submitted to the USBR Small Storage Grant.
The required feasibility study was originally accepted by USBR in June 2023 and an updated feasibility
study, showing proposed changes in project location was approved November 2023. The District
submitted their grant application in November 2023 and is awaiting a decision.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 62 Todd Groundwater



"WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Plan Approval

The GSP for North San Benito Subbasin was submitted January 2022 and approved by DWR in July 2023.

Along with its approval, DWR issued a GSP Assessment Staff Report (DWR, July 2023) that documented
the plan implementation of SGMA and provided corrective actions. The District has begun to address
these corrective actions through project and management actions and will revise Sustainability
Management Criteria (SMC) as needed in the periodic evaluation and update of the GSP due January
2027. The corrective actions are summarized below:

e Recommended Corrective Action 1 - Update the sustainable management criteria for degraded
water quality to provide clear definitions of undesirable results.

e Recommended Corrective Action 2 - Identify the minimum threshold exceedances that
constitute an undesirable result for land subsidence.

e Recommended Corrective Action 3 - Consider utilizing the interconnected surface water
guidance, as appropriate, when issued by the Department to establish quantifiable minimum
thresholds, measurable objectives, and management actions. Continue to fill data gaps.

e Recommended Corrective Action 4 - Identify the total number of monitoring wells and
monitoring schedule in the degraded water quality monitoring network.

Additional details and suggestions are provided in the GSP Assessment Staff Report, which encourages
additional clarification of the GSP and progress toward resolution of data gaps recognized in the 2021
GSP. These suggestions and corrective actions are being reviewed to start timely implementation.

Financial Information

The District derives its operating revenue from charges levied on landowners and water users. Non-
operating revenue is generated from property taxes, interest, standby and availability charges, and
grants. District zones of benefit are listed in Appendix A. Zone 6 charges, relating to the importation and
distribution of CVP water, are the focus of this section. A brief Annual Groundwater Memorandum
Report (in Appendix A) was presented to the SBCWD Board of Directors on January 8, 2024, including
the recommended groundwater rates and presenting the technical justification for the rates.

Table 6-1 presents the groundwater charges for Zone 6 water users, which reflect costs associated with
monitoring and management. A full worksheet of how groundwater charges are determined can be
found in Appendix F. Groundwater charges are adjusted annually in March. For March 2023 - February
2024, District rates are $13.75 for agricultural use and $13.75 for M&I use. The District adopts rates on a
three-year cycle. For next year, March 2024 through February 2025, adopted groundwater rates are the
same for Agriculture and M&I users at $14.03.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 63 Todd Groundwater



6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

TABLE 6-1. ADOPTED GROUNDWATER CHARGES

" Agriculture’

(S/AF)

2021-2022

2022-2023
2023-2024

CVP rates (provided by the USBR) include the cost of service, restoration fund payment, charges for
maintenance of San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority facilities, and other fees (the breakdown is
found in Appendix G). The District’s blue valve rates (paid by users of CVP water) include a water charge
and a power charge. Additionally, the standby and availability charge is a $6 per-acre charge assessed on
all parcels with access to CVP water (an active or idle turnout from the distribution system). Table 6-2
shows the CVP water charge and Table 6-3 shows the CVP power charge.

TABLE 6-2. ADOPTED BLUE VALVE WATER CHARGES
Blue Valve Water Charge (S/AF)
Agricultural | Municipal & Industrial
Small

Non - Full Cost  Full Cost (1a) Full Cost (1b) Parcel & Wholesale
| Contract

2021-2022 $274.00 $411.00 $433.00 $424.00 $424.00
2022-2023 $274.00 $411.00 $433.00 $424.00 $647.00

2023-2024 $294.68 $294.68 $294.68 $653.70 $653.70

TABLE 6-3. ADOPTED BLUE VALVE POWER CHARGES

ERe eE e i
' Charge
g Subsystem 2 Subsystem 6H Subsystem 9L 9H subsystems

($/AF)
2021-2022 $93.55 $138.25

2022-2023 $93.55 $138.25
2023-2024 $94.01 $94.01

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 64 Todd Groundwater




6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Recycled water charges (Table 6-4) are set to recover current operating and maintenance costs related
to the water service. Recycled water rates include those associated with water supply, water quality,

and infrastructure.
TABLE 6-4. ADOPTED RECYCLED WATER CHARGES

Recycled Water (S/AF)

Effective BREIES Power Charge
Rate

3/1/2021 $210.00 $61.85

4/1/2022 $211.00 $63.09
4/1/2023 $294.70 $101.10

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 65 Todd Groundwater



' 6-WATER MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Groundwater Management Fee

The District is authorized by California Water Code Section 10730(a), to collect fees to recover costs for
GSP development, monitoring, and GSP Annual Reports. In July 2021, the SBCWD Board of Directors
passed two resolutions respectively to levy a groundwater management fee and to request that the
County of San Benito collect the groundwater management fee on the property tax rolls. The
groundwater management fee is based on assessor’s parcels and acreage, as the most appropriate way

to ensure property owners are paying their fair share toward cost recovery. The annual rates are shown
in Table 6-5.

Land categories as outlined below have been identified as the basis for application of fees to land within
the Basin:

e Valley areas overlying productive portions of the Basin and benefiting significantly from GSP
development and implementation, including major municipal and industrial areas, will be
charged a land-based fee.

e Upland areas (UA) with less access to groundwater and insignificant benefit of groundwater
management and GSP development will not be charged a fee.

2021-2022

2022-2023
2023-2024
2024-2025
2025-2026

Those who receive their water through municipal agencies pay fees to their respective agencies. All
other landowners are charged a fee as part of their San Benito County tax bill. It is expected that the
District will have sufficient data to revise the Groundwater Management Fee to account for cost-
recovery of extraction measurements during the periodic update of the GSP, to be completed in 2027.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 66 Todd Groundwater



- 70 ROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

SGMA Indicators

Of the six sustainability criteria developed by DWR, five are relevant to North San Benito Basin
(seawater intrusion is not relevant). As documented in the GSP, the Basin has been and is being
managed sustainably relative to all criteria. Accordingly, sustainability does not need to be achieved, but
it does need to be maintained through the planning and implementation horizon. This will involve
continuation and improvement of existing management actions—most notably import of Central Valley
Project (CVP) water and its conjunctive use with groundwater. It also will include improvement and
expansion of management actions and monitoring.

TABLE 7-1. SGMA INDICATORS

Groundwater-Level Compile water level data.
Declines Compare key wells elevations with MTs

Groundwater-Storage |Compute groundwater storage using the
Reductions numerical model.

Compile water quality data.
Summarize the findings for the triennal
review.

Water-Quality
Degradation

Land Subsidence Download and review DWR InSar data

Interconnected Surface-

. Review key shallow wells elevations with MTs
Water Depletions

While the North San Benito Basin has been managed sustainably, the following sustainability criteria
were defined in the GSP because potential exists for undesirable results.

e The Minimum Threshold relative to chronic lowering of groundwater levels is defined at
designated Key Wells by historical groundwater low levels adjusted to provide reasonable
protection to nearby wells. Undesirable results are indicated when two consecutive
exceedances occur in each of two consecutive years, in 60 percent or more of the key wells (e.g.,
three of five wells) in each Management Area. The Measurable Objective is to maintain

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 67 Todd Groundwater



GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

groundwater levels above the MTs and to maintain groundwater levels within the historical
operating range.

e The Minimum Threshold for reduction of storage for all Management Areas is fulfilled by the
minimum threshold for groundwater levels as proxy. The Measurable Objective for storage is
fulfilled by the MT for groundwater levels, which maintains groundwater levels within the
historical operating range.

e The Minimum Threshold for land subsidence is defined as a rate of decline equal to or greater
than 0.2 feet in any five-year period. This has been considered in terms of a potential cumulative
decline equal to or greater than one foot of decline since 2015; 2015 represents current
conditions and the SGMA start date. The extent of cumulative subsidence across the Basin will
be monitored and evaluated using INSAR and UNAVCO data. Subsidence is closely linked to
groundwater levels, and it is unlikely that significant inelastic subsidence would occur if
groundwater levels remain above minimum thresholds.

e The Minimum Thresholds for degradation of water quality address nitrate and TDS for each
MA. The MT for nitrate is defined initially as the percentage of wells with concentrations
exceeding the nitrate Maximum Contaminant Limit (MCL) (45 mg/L) based on current conditions
(2015-2017). The MT for TDS is defined initially as the percentage of wells with concentrations
exceeding the TDS value of 1,200 mg/L based on current conditions. The Measurable Objectives
for both are defined as maintaining or reducing the percentage of wells with median
concentrations exceeding the MTs.

e The Minimum Threshold for depletion of interconnected surface water is the amount of
depletion associated with the lowest water levels during the 1987-1992 drought, with some
adjustments made for wells with groundwater levels lower in 2016 than in 1992. Undesirable
results would occur if more than 25 percent of monitored wells within 1 mile of a shallow water
table reach along the Pajaro River, Pacheco Creek, San Benito River, or Tres Pinos Creek had
static spring water levels lower than the lowest static spring water level during 1987-1992.

Updates on SGMA Indicators

Chronic lowering of groundwater levels. Sustainability criteria (minimum thresholds and measurable
objectives) for groundwater levels rely on a network of representative monitoring wells (Key Wells). The
MT for a Key Well was based on its historical low levels and adjusted as needed to minimize any risk to
nearby domestic wells of future low-water levels. For each Management Area, Figures 3-4 through 3-7
show the Key Well hydrographs and their respective MTs for groundwater levels. Current water levels
are above the MT in all available key wells.

Table 7-2 lists the 22 key wells and their respective MTs, as well as the minimum groundwater elevation
for WY 2023. Groundwater elevations were measured above the MT in thirteen wells, two wells were
flowing artesian wells (and thus above the MT), and four wells were listed as temporarily inaccessible. In
WY 2023, two wells (one in San Juan and one in Southern) showed groundwater elevations below the

respective MT.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 68 Todd Groundwater



7-GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

TABLE 7-2. KEY WELLS

FGroundwater || Minimum. |

E ~ Level Threshold 'Thteshold ": Groundwater |

ji2 Key Well | .| DepthtoWater | . Elevation = Elevation

B e s iebes) S {NAVDIBR): CHi WM 2023 el
11-4-25H2 Bolsa 145 4.0 81.63 Y
11-5-21F2 Bolsa 63 92.0 155 Y
11-5-28B1 Bolsa 102 66.0 Artesian Y
12-5-06L1 Bolsa 176 1.0 140.71 v
12-5-17D1 Bolsa 185 32.0 55 v
11-5-13D1 Hollister 97 161.0 220.25 Y
11-5-35G1 Hollister 104 102.0 166.28 Y
12-5-03B1 Hollister 96 86.0 Artesian Y
12-5-24N1 Hollister 160 110.0 T;;:f;ﬁgl':
12-5-34P1 Hollister 150 144.0 2185 Y
12-6-06L4 Hollister 64 184.0 213.88 %
13-6-19K1 Hollister 109 313.0 ?:::f:;;g::
12-4-17120 | SanJuan 47 93.0 116.9 Y
12-4-26G1 | Sanluan 152 58.0 iTnean:S:s:Z
13-4-01K1 San Juan 75 148.0 iT:a':fgsr;S:Z
13-4-03H1 | Sanluan 155 52.0 123.2 Y
13-5-6L1 San Juan 110 1315 113.63 N 3
14-6-13B1 | Southern 59 637.0 631.18 N 2
14-6-26F0 | Southern 45 556.0 557 Y
14-6-26H1 | Southern 136 609.0 629.62 y
14-6-26K1 | Southern 73 623.0 635.63 Y
14-7-20k1 | Souther 79 687.0 711.75 Y

North San Benito Annual Report 2023

69

Todd Groundwater




OUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

In San Juan MA, Well 13-5-6L1 was first measured below the MT in October 2021 as reported in last
year’s annual report. WY 2023 represents the third year with this well’s groundwater level remaining
below the MT. The MT is triggered if 60 percent of wells in the MA are below the threshold — for now
this well represents 25 percent of the monitored wells in San Juan. While no action is required, the
groundwater levels in this key well should be reviewed and this area considered for targeted
management.

Well 14-6-13B1 was below the MT for the second year. The recovery from the most recent drought is a
slow process, especially for the Southern MA as it does not directly receive CVP allocations. If hydrologic
conditions continue to remain wet or above average next water year, these water levels will also likely
improve. Local increases in pumping should also be assessed to determine if they are impacting water
levels in the MA. If water levels remain low in both wells, 40 percent of wells are below the MT. The
overall threshold from water levels is 60 percent of wells below their individual MTs for two years.
Overall, the data indicate that the Basin is not currently affected by undesirable results due to chronic
lowering of groundwater levels but continue monitoring especially in these areas is recommended.

Reduction of storage. This indicator is tracked using the groundwater levels at key wells as a proxy. In
addition, the change in groundwater in storage is estimated by the numerical model (Section 4). The
groundwater level data indicate that the Basin is not currently affected by undesirable results due to
depletion of groundwater storage.

Land Subsidence. Land subsidence is tracked using the regional InSAR data and the site-specific
UNAVCO station data provided by DWR) on its SGMA Data Viewer (DWR 2024). The most recent INSAR
maps (showing change in ground elevation over WY 2023) indicate no areas of displacement; the basin
has experienced -0.1 to 0.1 (feet) of change. The UNAVCO data from Station 242 in northwest Bolsa was
incomplete for Water Year 2023; data were only available for October through December and May. The
available UNAVCO data indicate that ground surface decline reached its maximum in October 2022 but
has begun its seasonal elastic rebound through May, likely due to the wet year recharge conditions. A
more comprehensive analysis of the potential for subsidence will be included in the five-year GSP
update.

Degradation of water quality. Water quality (TDS, nitrate) continues to be monitored in the SBCWD
Water Quality Monitoring Program. As discussed in Section 3, a detailed analysis and comparison of
triennial data with the Minimum Thresholds was performed in WY22. For 2020-2022, the Southern,
Hollister and Bolsa MAs showed decreases in the percent of wells that exceeded the respective basin
objectives (based on 2015-2017) established in the GSP.

For 2020-2022, the San Juan MA showed an increase in the percent of wells with TDS concentrations
greater than 1,200 mg/L basin objective, in part due to the expansion of the Irrigated Lands Program
(Aglands) monitoring new locations. The SBCWD monitoring program showed only two out of six
monitored wells (33%) in the San Juan MA with TDS concentrations greater than 1,200 mg/L. This
particular increase in the San Juan MA does not represent a regional change in groundwater quality;
continued monitoring and expanded dedicated monitoring in San Juan MA is recommended.

Depletion of interconnected surface water. Nineteen wells are currently selected as Key Wells for
Interconnected Surface Water. They are monitored for water levels within 1 mile of stream reaches

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 70 Todd Groundwater



7-GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

where springtime depth to water is typically 20 feet or less (and the Key Wells are not separated from
the reach by a fault). The locations of the wells are shown as orange dots in Figure 3-4 through 3-7 for
each MA. The MT for these wells is based on spring 1992 water levels or in some cases Spring 2016,
whichever was lower. Table 7-3 lists the nineteen wells and their respective MTs, as well as the
groundwater elevation for Spring 2022. As noted previously, three wells were not monitored due to
access and well issues. The District is actively looking for replacement monitoring locations for these
wells.

TABLE 7-3. INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER WELLS

North San Benito Annual Report 2023

71

11-4-26B1 127.0 134.35 Y
11-4-34A1 128.0 129.75 Y
11-5-13D1 214.0 224.55 Y
11-5-20N1 90.0 88.57 N
11-5-27P2 122.0 162.65 Y
11-5-28B1 128.0 Artesian Y
12-4-17120 113.0 119.3 Y
12-4-21M1 120.0 137.46 Y
12-4-26G1 114.0 Temporarily
inaccessible
12-4-34H1 117.0 145.19 Y
13-5-11E1 220.0 275.7 Y
13-5-13F1 316.0 324.6 Y
13-6-19/1 412.0 Temporarily
inaccessible
13-6-19K1 341.0 Tempuorarily
inaccessible
14-6-13B1 633.0 636.4 Y
14-6-26F0 624.0 638.43 Y
14-6-26H1 620.0 633.25 Y
14-6-26K1 618.0 640 Y
Y

Todd Groundwater



7-GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY

Based on spring water levels, 15 wells had groundwater elevations measured above the MT and one
well was a flowing artesian and thus above the MT. Only one of the key wells for surface water
interconnection was below the MT level. Well 11-5-20N1 located in the Bolsa MA on Tequisquita Slough
showed a groundwater elevation of 88.57 feet, slightly lower than the 90-foot threshold. Additional data
and analysis are needed at this well to understand the seasonal variation, which can range over 60 feet
or more, and to evaluate the well’s suitability for representing surface water and GDE conditions. This
one well represents seven percent of the total monitored in Spring 2023. To represent an undesirable
result, the MT indicates that 25 percent of wells would show levels below the MT. This has not occurred
as of 2023. DWR has recently released the first installment of draft guidance on interconnected surface
water (DWR, Feb 2024). The District will review and update the SMCs for Interconnected Water if

applicable.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 72 Todd Groundwater



- 8-RECOMMENDATIONS

District policies and programs have served to effectively manage water resources for many years. The
District, working collaboratively with other agencies, has eliminated historical overdraft through
importation of CVP water, has developed and managed multiple sources of supply to address drought,
has established an active and effective water conservation program, has initiated programs to protect
water quality, and has improved delivered water quality to many municipal customers. The District also
has provided consistent reporting and outreach. The following recommendations are responsive to the
District Act and support effective management consistent with SGMA.

Monitoring Programs

Through GSP implementation, the monitoring programs should continue to be improved to provide the
SBCWD Board of Directors with information to support management of the groundwater supplies of the
District and its zones. Detailed monitoring recommendations have been developed as part of the GSP,
including accurate measurement of agricultural groundwater pumping, which has been identified as an
important data gap. Accurate groundwater production data is consistent not only with SGMA but also
with the District Act, by which the Board of Directors can order an Annual Report, which reports on total
production of water from the groundwater supplies of the District during the water year. This supports
the following recommendations, provided in response to the District Act, as to the quantity of water
needed for surface delivery and for replenishment of groundwater supplies, and whether or not a
groundwater charge should be levied and if so, what rate per acre-foot.

As a first priority, several Key Wells have become inaccessible and need to be replaced. The District
should conduct a survey of available nearby wells that represent regional trends, have long records of
monitoring, and have the same general construction. MTs for these wells should be based on historical
lows in the new wells, using the same methodology developed for the GSP.

Groundwater Production and Replenishment

Past District percolation operations helped to reverse historical overdraft and then accumulate a water
supply reserve. The District currently manages groundwater storage and surface water to minimize
excessively high or low groundwater elevations on a temporal and geographic basis. The District should
continue to operate Hernandez and Paicines to improve downstream groundwater conditions. In 2023,
the District provided off-channel percolation of CVP water; this should be continued with optimization
of recharge when CVP water is available. In light of climate change and increasing variability of CVP
supply, replenishment projects like ADRoP should be pursued as a groundwater management priority.
Such replenishment operations are critical to sustainable groundwater supply.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 73 Todd Groundwater



8-RECOMMENDATIONS

CVP Purchase Recommendation

CVP imports continue to be a critical source of supply for agricultural users and M&I. The water retailers
rely on continued CVP water, treated through Lessalt or West Hills WTP, to provide quality drinking
water to their customers. This ability to maximize CVP use will increase flexibility for local water users to
use groundwater or CVP. CVP also provides better quality water for delivery to municipal customers and
results in improved wastewater quality, which supports water recycling. In addition, the District is
pursuing projects to store CVP imports in wet years through ASR and can continue to percolate the
water through off-stream channels. As such, the District should continue to purchase the maximum
available volume allocated during the upcoming contract year.

Groundwater Charges

The groundwater charge for the USBR contract year (March 2023-February 2024) is recommended to be
$13.75 per AF for agricultural use in Zone 6 and a groundwater charge of $13.75 per AF is recommended
for M&I use. For March 2023 — February 2024, District rates are proposed to be $14.03 for agricultural
use and $14.03 for M&I use. The District adopts rates on a three-year cycle. Current water rates were
adopted January 2023.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 74 Todd Groundwater



9-REFERENCES

California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS), http://www.cimis.water.ca.gov/,
station 126, Last accessed: November 10,2022.

Clark, W. O., Ground water in Santa Clara Valley, California: USGS Water-Supply Paper 519, 1924.
https://pubs.er.usgs.gov/publication/wsp519

Department of Water Resources, California (DWR), Gilroy-Hollister Valley — North San Benito
Subbasin- 2022 Groundwater Sustainability Plan, July 27, 2023.

DWR, Depletions of Interconnected Surface Water: An Introduction, Draft, February 2024.
Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water: an Introduction (govdelivery.com)

DWR,), 2024, DWR SGMA Data Viewer, Land Subsidence, NASA JPL InSAR Dataset, accessed March
2024, https://sgma.water.ca.gov/webgis/?appid=SGMADataViewer.

HDR, San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan Update for the City of
Hollister, City of San Juan Bautista, San Benito County, San Benito County Water District, and
Sunnyslope County Water District, Approved: October 25, 2023.

HDR, Summary of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP), October 25, 2022.

San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA), Water Supply Reports, November 2021,
http://www.sldmwa.org/operations/water-supply-reports/

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB), 2012, Water Quality Order 2012-0010, General
Waste Discharge Requirements for Aquifer Storage and Recovery Projects that Inject Drinking Water

into Groundwater, available at
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board decisions/adopted orders/water quality/2012/wqgo2012

0010 with%20signed%20mrp.pdf

Todd Engineers/Groundwater, San Benito County Annual Groundwater Reports. Water Years 2006-
2022.

Todd Groundwater, North Hollister Test Well Drilling, Construction, and Testing, January 2022.
Todd Groundwater, North San Benito Groundwater Sustainability Plan, November 2021.
Todd Groundwater, San Benito County Salt and Nutrient Management Plan, 2014.

Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC) https://wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?ca4025, Last
Accessed January 19, 2024.

North San Benito Annual Report 2023 78 Todd Groundwater



APPENDIX A REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

List of Tables

Table A-1. District Zones of Benefit

Table A-2. Special Topics in Previous Annual Reports

List of Attachments

Water Code Appendix 70 Excerpts
SGMA Annual Elements Guide
SGMA Annual Report Data Upload

San Benito County Water District Annual Groundwater Report for January 8, 2024 Meeting of the
Board of Directors

APPENDIX A TODD GROUNDWATER



APPENDIX A REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

The San Benito County Water District Act (1953) is codified in California Water Code Appendix 70.
Section 70-7.6 (District Act) authorizes the District Board of Directors to require the District to
prepare an annual groundwater report. This Annual Report satisfies both the requirements of a
SGMA Annual Report and report detailed in the District Act. The District Act requires that the report
address the District and its zones of benefit (Table A-1) for the water year. While section 70-7.2
defines the water year as March through February, the same as the USBR contract year, Section 70-
7.6 identifies data sets to be documented for the hydrologic water year, October through
September.

Table A-L. District Zones of Benefit

1 Entire County Specific District administrative expenses
San Benito River Valley (Paicines to San Operation of Hernandez and Paicines reservoirs and
3 Juan) and Tres Pinos River Valley (Paicines to related groundwater recharge and management
San Benito River) activities

Hollister and San Juan Management Areas of
North San Benito Groundwater Basin
6 (previously San Juan, Hollister East, Hollister
West, Pacheco, Bolsa SE, and Tres Pinos
subbasins)

Importation and distribution of CVP water and
related groundwater management activities

The Board has consistently ordered preparation of Annual Reports, and the reports have included
the contents specified Section 70-7.6. The following table shows the contents specified by the Act
and the section of the Annual Report where the information is available.

The full text of Appendix 70, Section 70-7.6 through 7.8 is enclosed in this appendix.

APPENDIX A TODD GROUNDWATER



d3LVMANNOYD Aol

V XIAN3ddVv

‘pJeog pue
14e1s Aq paisanbau Jus1u0d JaY30 pue ‘uoljewoUl 6T ‘salinbaJ pJeog ay1 uojzewloul Jay3o Auy 13Y10
|eloueuly ‘uolejuawa|dwl YIADS sapnjaul Jodad ay |
(s)auoz yoans soy ua1EM
}oday ‘
Jeah § FSSLIELE Biue [BAN}NDLISE UBY) 1330 J31BM ||B J0) 100)-3.108 Jad 33kl B ‘OS Ji pue Jesh o
¥gsn) 10e43uod ay3 Aq papiaolad si uonewsogul ayey | U3 p Jaiem SuInNsus sy} Ul 10143S1Q 3Y3 4O (S)auoz Aue ul paIAs| ag p|hous H
Yl Aq pap 4 ‘5 xipuaddy ‘g y ! Yi4 paiAs| aq pjnoy
: 98.4eyd Ja1eMpunoJS B 10U JO J3YIBYM 0} SB UOIIBPUSILIO0Ia. \f
e T— "JeaA Js1em 3uinsua ayy Sulnp sauoz sy pue 12143s1Q
Poplac.d ale s|qejien 9y1 4o sajjddns Ja1empunous ay3 Jo Jusawysiuajdal o} pue Alaaiap
1unouwe [|nJ ay1 aseyaind 03 SUOIIEPUILILIOIBY , aseydind
i 8's 92BLINS 40} papa3U J31em Jo Ajjjuenb syl 01 SB UOJIBPUSWILIOIA i
7-S puUe T-G sa|ge] ul umoys aJe Jodal ek am BTEE 24nin4
9y3 Aq patanod sieaA 10e41u0d ay) 4oy sUOI3ed0||e By ¥ :
9y} Sunp aseyound 03 pa1eSi|qo s 12111SIQ AY3 JOIBM JO JUnowe 3y
S9U0Z s}l pue 12143s1Q 3y3 Jo saijddns Ja1empunols
93 WoJ) UMBIPYIIM 3 0] Ja3eM |edn) ndlide ueyl Jay3o Jaiem jo
0€ Jaquwaidas Suipua JeaA Jayem d180j0ipAy ay3 Joy junowe paewIlsa Y3 pue J3lem |edn3ndlige Jo JUNOWe PIJewIIss ay3 LOANDO.
S9SN 4ay3o pue |eanynase Joj paiodal ale asn J9jem S 40 UOIJBUIWISIBP SH Ul pleog 9y3 4O UOIIRISPISUOD BY3 JOJ UOIIBWIOLU| HtIpRdd
yio pue | | 4P p p 3 p yi 104 3 [e30.
paj2Adal pue ‘Suidwnd Ja3eMpunoJsd ‘spiodwi dAD 1edA
1ua4ind 3y} Jo Qg 19qwialdas Jo se saU0z S pue 313IsIg Y} Jo safjddns
Ja3empunols ay} wouy Ja3em Jo uojonpoud (303 83 03 se juodal
(zz0 Jaquiandas 4ano.y3 120z 12q010) Jeak JedA 1ua.44nd 3Y3 JO Q€ JaqWa1das JO Se 1JBIPIIAD
Jaem ayy Jo (zzoz Adenuge4 ysnoayl Tzoz Yyolen) T Belp
1eaA 10BI31100 3 Pa1e|nwindde pue Yelpiano [enuUe 3yl JO UOIIeU|WISIBP SH U] pJeog
41 J3A0 3JBIPISAO Ul 10U S| UiSeq ayL ¥ : Ueupiano
2207 42qwia1das YSNoIu3 9/6T Alenuer wouy poLiad 9Y3 4O UOI1BI3PISUOD 33 104 Uollew.Iou| “JeaA Jo3em Suinsua ay)
SNONURUOD aU3 0§ PATEINLUIS S| 53UE(eq J1eMm .wf. Joj pue JeaA Ja1em 1Ua4Ind 3Y) J0J JRIPISAO |BNUUE BY] O 31BWIISS UY

Uuondos

310day
|enuuy

sjuswalnbay 10y 21sIA 2-Y 9|qeL

sjuawalinbay 0y 1914351

SIN3INIHINDIY DNILHOdIY YV XIANIddV




APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

Water Code Appendix 70 Excerpts

Sec. 7.6. the board by resolution require the district to annually prepare an investigation and report
on groundwater conditions of the district and the zones thereof, for the period from October 1 of
the preceding calendar year through September 30 of the current year and on activities of the
district for protection and augmentation of the water supplies of the district and the zones thereof.
The investigation and report shall include all of the following information:

(a) Information for the consideration of the board in its determination of the annual overdraft.

(b) Information for the consideration of the board in its determination of the accumulated
overdraft as of September 30 of the current calendar year.

(c) Areport as to the total production of water from the groundwater supplies of the district
and the zones thereof as of September 30 of the current calendar year.

(d) An estimate of the annual overdraft for the current water year and for the ensuing water
year.

(e) Information for the consideration of the board in its determination of the estimated amount
of agricultural water and the estimated amount of water other than agricultural water to be
withdrawn from the groundwater supplies of the district and the zones thereof for the ensuing
water year.

(f) The amount of water the district is obligated to purchase during the ensuing water year.

(g) Arecommendation as to the quantity of water needed for surface delivery and for
replenishment of the groundwater supplies of the district and the zones thereof the ensuing

water year.

(h) A recommendation as to whether or not a groundwater charge should be levied in any zone
or zones of the district during the ensuing year.

(i) If any groundwater charge is recommended, a proposal of a rate per acre-foot for
agricultural water and a rate per acre-foot for all water other than agricultural water for such

zone or zones.
(j) Any other information the board requires.

(Added by Stats. 1965, c. 1798, p.4167, 7. Amended by Stats.1967,c.934, 5, eff. July27,1967; Stats.
1983, c. 402, 1; Stats. 1998, c. 219 (A.B.2135), 1.)

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER



APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

Section 70-7.7. Receipt of report; notice of hearing; contents; hearing

Sec. 7.7. (a) On the third Monday in December of each year, the groundwater report shall be
delivered to the clerk of the board in writing. The clerk shall publish, pursuant to Section 6061 of the
Government Code, a notice of the receipt of the report and of a public hearing to be held on the
second Monday of January of the following year in a newspaper of general circulation printed and
published within the district, at least 10 days prior to the date at which the public hearing regarding
the groundwater report shall be held. The notice shall include, but is not limited to, an invitation to
all operators of water producing facilities within the district to call at the offices of the district to
examine the groundwater report.

(b) The board shall hold, on the second Monday of January of each year, a public hearing, at which
time any operator of a water-producing facility within the district, or any person interested in the
condition of the groundwater supplies or the surface water supplies of the district, may in person, or
by representative, appear and submit evidence concerning the groundwater conditions and the
surface water supplies of the district. Appearances also may be made supporting or protesting the
written groundwater report, including, but not limited to, the engineer's recommended
groundwater charge.

(Added by Stats. 1965, c. 1798, p. 4167, 8. Amended by Stats. 1983, c. 02,2; Stats. 1998, c. 219
(A.B.2135,2.)

Section 70-7.8. Determination of groundwater charge; establishment of rates; zones; maximum
charge; clerical errors

Sec. 7.8. (a) Prior to the end of the water year in which a hearing is held pursuant to subdivision (b)
of Section 7.7, the board shall hold a public hearing, noticed pursuant to Section 6061 of the
government Code, to determine if a groundwater charge should be levied, it shall levy, assess, and
affix such a charge or charges against all persons operating groundwater- producing facilities within
the zone or zones during the ensuing water year. The charge shall be computed at fixed and uniform
rate per acre-foot for agricultural water, and at a fixed and uniform rate per acre-foot for all water
other than agricultural water. Different rates may be established in different zones. However, in
each zone, the rate for agricultural water shall be fixed and uniform and the rate for water other
than agricultural water shall be fixed and uniform. The rate for agricultural water shall not exceed
one-third of the rate for all water other than agricultural water.

(b) The groundwater charge in any year shall not exceed the costs reasonably borne by the district in
the period of the charge in providing the water supply service authorized by this act in the district or
a zone or zones thereof.

(c) Any groundwater charge levied pursuant to this section shall be in addition to any general tax or
assessment levied within the district or any zone or zones thereof.

(d) Clerical errors occurring or appearing in the name of any person or in the description of the
water-producing facility where the production of water there from is otherwise properly charged, or
in the making or extension of any charge upon the records which do not affect the substantial rights
of the assesse or assesses, shall not invalidate the groundwater charge.

(Added by Stats. 1965, c. 1798, p. 4168, 9. Amended by Stats. 1983, c. 402, 3; Stats.1983, c. 402, 3;
Stats. 1998, c. 219 (A.B.2135), 3.)

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER



APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

SGMA Annual Elements Guide

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER



(1)aping ~sjuawaj3~bujsoday " Ipnuuy dso Z 4o 1 88ed 0z0z A1pniqa4 paiopdn

3 xipuaddy ‘z-§ ‘1-G 3|qeL *1e2A 193eM Bulpadaid 9Y3 J0J S32UNOS PUE BWN|OA
|enuue ay) saq1Isap 3ey) elep aAlelluenb uo paseq payiodal aq ||eys asn nay|
-ul Jo d34eYdal J33eMPUNOJT 10} ‘D9SN 10) 3|qE|IEAR JO pasn Ajddns Ja1em adeyns (g)

S-v 24n314 ‘z-G 3|qeL .
SUOI3DBIIXD J3}EMPUNOIS JO SWN|OA pUB UuoI1eI0| [eJaUaS By} sajesisn||l Jeyy dew

€ pUB ‘SJU3WaINSeaw Jo AdeJndde pue (3)1ewilss Jo 10941p) JUSWIINSE3W JO poyjaw
3Y3 sal3uapl pue ‘10308s asn Ja3em Aq SUOIIIRIIXD J9IEMPUNOJS SazZIIBWIWINS JRBY}
3|qe) e ul pajuasald aq ||_ys pue SpoyIaW JusWaINSeaW 3|qe|IBAR 353G 3Y3 Suisn
Pa323||03 3q ||eys ejeq ‘JeaA iayem Buipadald 3yl Joj UOIIBIIXS JB}RMPUNOID (Z)

L-€ '9-€ ‘S-€ ‘p-€ SaIn3ly “1eaA Suniodal

1ua.und 03 ‘STOZ ‘T Alenuer wouy Suipnjoul ‘s|qe|ieAe JUIX3 I3RS 3y} 0} BlRp

|eartolsty Buisn adAy JeaA Jajem pue suoiieaa|s Ja3empunoJs jo sydesdolphH (g)

L-¥ ‘9-p 3in314 *SUOI}IpU0d

133EMPUNOJ3 MO| [RUOSEaS pUE Y31y [BUOSEDS 3Y) ‘WnwWiulw e e ‘Suijessn||l

uiseq ayj ut Jajinbe [edipulid yoes Joj sdew INOJU0D UOIIBAS|D J33EMPUNOID (V)

1SMO||04 Se paAe|dsip pue pazAjeue 3q ||eys 3JoMIau

SupiouoW 3y Ul PaIUBP! S[[oM SulI0)IUOW WOJ) BIEP UOIIEAS| J3lempunols (T)

:ue|d ayy ul padeuew uiseq ayj Jo

suonIpuod 3uiMmo||o} 3yl Jo uoneluasaidal |eaiydess pue uondidsap pajielap v (q)

1-T @4n314 ‘s3 ‘Hodas ayy Aq pasanod uiseq ayy Sunoidap

dew uonedo| e pue Azewwns aAizndaxa ue Sulpnjoul ‘uoijewLIO)U] |BI3UIY) (B)

:1ead Ja1em 3uipadald ayy o) syusuodwod Suimol|oy

3y3 apnjpul |jeys 3Jodas [enuue 3y °ueld ay) jo uondope ay3 Suimoj|oy Jeah

yoea jo T |udy Aq Juswiiedaq ay) 03 1odad [enuue ue Jwgns |[eys Aouady yoeg
spoday [enuuy T'9SE §

AduaBy ayy Aq suonenjen aipoliad pue syioday [enuuy L 2Py

'9p0) JB3eM ‘@'EELOT PUB Z'EEL0T ‘T'82L0T
‘87£0T SUONIIS :92UBIBYBY "3P0D JAIBM ‘Z'EELOT UOIIAS :pajd Aioyiny :310N

J xipuaddy ‘£-€ ‘9-€ ‘S-€ ‘p-€ Sa4n3l4
‘juswiledaq ay3 Aq papinoid swiioy uo Aj|E21UOIID]D PaWIGNS pue Joday [enuuy

3y} ul papnpoul aq ||eys eiep Suliojiuow ay) 4o Adod v '9°zGE uo1393S 03 Juensind
padojanap waisAs Juswadeuew elep ay) uj palols a4 ||eys elep Suloyuop

juawedaq ays3 o3 ejeq Sunioyuoly Suiioday Ov'vSE §
sydomiap bulioziuoip v 3j2134pgns
SJUdIU0) Ue|d S 3PIMY
su01323S uoipinbay
SjuawWa[3 unjd A31j1qpuIpISNS 133DMPUNOID dSo - suoilpinbay
Jo apo) piuiofin)y
Qi |e207 4SO
awepN uiseq

JUBW3I[3 SO 3|qpaijddp ay;

*A|ddp jou saop jJuawaja El 112sap Alfallg :
/ 2 o 12:ds9 241 eqLdsap Aiforig :s210N $sa4ppo 3oy} (s)4aquinu abpnd Juawndoq

apino sjuawa|3 oday |enuuy ue|d AljiqeuIRISNS J93EMPUNO.D)




(T)apino ~s1uawaj3 ~bujsoday ~jonuuy 4SO

7 jo g ased

020z A1pn1qa4 paippdn

9 uoidsg

‘Jodad |enuue snoiaaud ayy
3duls suoljoe Juawadeuew Jo s1aafold Jo uojejuawa|dwl pue ‘SaU03Sa|IW WiISUI
3uinalye uipnjdul ‘ueld ayy Suiuswa|duwi spiemoy ssaigoud jo uondiasap v ()

-3 pue ‘g-3 ‘z-3 ‘1-3 saun3ly

*1eaA Builiodas Jualind ay3 01 ‘sToz ‘T Adenuer

wouy Sulpn|pul ‘a|qe|IBAR JU9)XD 1591E3.8 33 01 BIEP |BDIIOISIY UO Paseq uiseq ay3}
104 33e.03s Ul J31eMpuUnoJS Ul 98ueyd SAIIBINWND 3y} pue ‘@8e.03s Ul Ja3eMpunold
u1 33ueyd |enuue ay3 ‘asn Jayempunods ‘adA} Jeah Jarem Sunidap ydels v (g)

8- 4n314

‘uiseq ay3 ul J34inbe |edpuld yoes 1oy sdew a8e.03s ul 1a3eMpunols ul a8uey) (y)

:8UIM0||04 3Y3 apnjoul ||eys 28eJ03s Ul J93eMpUNOJS Ul aguey) (§)

S-p 24n3i4 ‘z-5 3jqeL

"JeaA 1a1em Aq paysodal aue ejep ay) se Suo| se ‘pasn aq Aew uiseq ayy ulyIm
sue|d Juswaseue|n 91BN [B4NNJ1IBY JO SUB|d JUSWITRURIA JBIBAM URGIN JUSIA
ISOW 3y} WOy BIBp 35N J21EM SUNSIXT 'SJUBWAINSEAW JO AJRINIDE pUR (31RWIISD

10 303.1p) JUBWAINSEIW JO POYIaW 3y} Sa13Uap! pue ‘adA} 824n0s J93eM 103935 asn
J3jem Aq asn Jaiem |30} S3ZIIRWIWNS JBY) 3|qe) B Ul paliodal 34 |[BYS pUB Spoyjaw
judwalnseaw 3|qejieAe 3saq ay) Buisn pajdaj|od A [|eys Asn Ja3em [e30] ()

"Ajddp jou saop Juawala dso ayz aquasap Afaug :sazoN

‘JUBW33 SO a|qpaijddp ay;
$sa.ppp py} (s)iaquinu abpd Juawndoq

S3uawa|g un|d A3jiqpuIpiSns 1930MpUNo.L

suo132as uonpnbay
dSO - suoi3pinbay
Jo apo) piuiofiny




APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

SGMA Annual Report Data Upload

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER






North San Benito Annual SGMA Portal

A Groundwater Extractions

Basin Number

3-003.05

Water Year

2023 (Oct. 2022 - Sept. 2023)

Total Groundwater
Extractions
(AF)

87,478

Water Use Sector
Urban
(AF)

4,199

Water Use Sector
Industrial
(AF)

Water Use Sector
Agricultural
(AF)

83,280

Water Use Sector
Managed Wetlands
(AF)

Water Use Sector
Managed Recharge
(AF)

Water Use Sector
Native Vegetation
(AF)

Water Use Sector
Other
(AF)

Water Use Sector
Other
Description

Urban includes all muni
and industrial uses

cipal




North San Benito Annual SGMA Portal

B Groundwater Ex Methods

Basin Number

3-003.05

Water Year

2023 (Oct. 2022 - Sept. 2023)

Meters
Volume
(AF)

Meters
Description

Meters
Type

Meters
Accuracy
(%)

Meters
Accuracy
Description

Electrical Records
Volume
(AF)

Electrical Records Description

Electrical Records
Type

Electrical Records
Accuracy
(%)

Electrical Records
Accuracy
Description

Land Use
Volume
(AF)

Land Use
Description

Land Use
Type

Land Use
Accuracy
(%)

Land Use
Accuracy
Description

Groundwater Model
Volume
(AF)

87,478.0

Groundwater Model
Description

Numerical Model developed for the GSP and
updated for the Annual Report

Groundwater Model
Type

MODFLOW




North San Benito Annual SGMA Portal

B Groundwater Ex Methods

Groundwater Model
Accuracy
(%)

UNK

Groundwater Model
Accuracy
Description

Without data on the actual water use it is
impossible to calculate the % accuracy

Other Method(s)
Volume
(AF)

Other Method(s)
Description

Other Method(s)
Type

Other Method(s)
Accuracy
(%)

Other Method(s)
Accuracy
Description




North San Benito Annual SGMA Portal

C SW Supply

Basin Number

3-003.05

Water Year

2023 (Oct. 2022 - Sept. 2023)

Methods Used To Determine

Meters

Water Source Type
Central Valley Project
(AF)

11,054

Water Source Type
State Water Project
(AF)

Water Source Type
Colorado River Project
(AF)

Water Source Type
Local Supplies
(AF)

Water Source Type
Local Imported Supplies
(AF)

Water Source Type
Recycled Water
(AF)

484

Water Source Type
Desalination
(AF)

Water Source Type
Other
(AF)

Water Source Type
Other
Description




APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

Memorandum Report:

San Benito County Water District Annual Groundwater Report
for January 8, 2024 Meeting of the Board of Directors

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER






SSONTY
ST OUNTY g, iy,
O W,

>
= O
<> oe9ee
= QOGABLISJ%OOO%B% 3/)?
®, D

&0 ST
&=y & @6 7

Es % .

= o e Ay
= ) g e N D

[ﬂ @ & [%
= m > ‘ e "‘% (,;
L:’J 7)’ YIS TRIBLIIOREE 2" E E:’.)
22 e i52
2<% I FQE
7 ® Ll {0 i @ ':’
2“);:: ‘s 2 I ! ‘ i ¢ 3 §

v e n/V Ov. 3 ng)?: 3@)@ *é’_f

0/7 ""?'mes‘;-‘@w’ ?t\i“-‘

.........

San Benito County Water District Annual Groundwater

Assessment

December 2023




The San Benito County Water District (District or SBCWD) was formed in 1953 by a special
act (District Act) of the State with responsibility and authority to manage groundwater. The
District Act authorizes the Board of Directors, at its discretion, to direct staff to prepare an
annual report on groundwater conditions of the District and its zones of benefit, such as
Zone 6, the area for distribution of Central Valley Project {CVP) water. The groundwater
report (addressing the previous water year from October 1 through September 30) also
summarizes activities of the District for protection and augmentation of water supplies and
provides management recommendations. Annual Groundwater Reports have been prepared
since the 1970s and District Act requirements are listed in Appendix A of recent reports.

In response to the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), the District has
become the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the North San Benito
Groundwater Basin {(Basin) in San Benito County. In coordination with Santa Clara Water
District (Valley Water), the GSA for the Santa Clara County portion of the Basin, the District
led preparation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Basin that was submitted
it to DWR in January 2022 and received Approval from DWR in July 2023. Starting in 2022,
the District shifted Annual Groundwater Report preparation to align with the requirements
of SGMA, and SGMA Annual Reports for water years 2021 and 2022 (Todd 2022 and 2023)
have been prepared for local use and submittal to DWR. The District recently initiated
preparation of the SGMA Annual Report for water year 2023 in accordance with SGMA and
consistent with the District Act. The water year 2023 SGMA Annual Groundwater Reportis

due to DWR by April 1, 2024.

This brief Memorandum Report has been prepared at the direction of the SBCWD Board of
Directors to address requirements of the District Act, while recognizing that the SGMA
Annual Report will provide the substantial documentation that has been presented in pre-
SGMA Annual Groundwater Reports.

1. GROUNDWATER BASIN CONDITIONS

As documented in the GSP {Todd 2021), the Basin is not in overdraft. Historical overdraft
was halted through importation of CVP water and other management actions. in water year
(WY) 2023, the State-wide drought continued in the beginning of the year but was followed
by a wet winter and spring. In February 2023, CVP initial allocations were at 35 percent for
agricultural uses and 75 percent for municipal and industrial {M&!) uses. In March, the USBR
increased allocation to 80 percent and 100 percent for agricultural and M&I uses,
respectively. Finally in April, USBR announced the CVP 2023 water supply allocations were
100 percent for both agricultural and M&! uses (ACWA 2023).

! Water year 2023 was the 12-month period from October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023.



Several infrastructure issues affected the water supply in WY 2023, including:

e Construction delays along Highway 156 caused disruption of CVP deliveries to
Subsystem 10 (San Juan area) from January to early lune.

e  West Hills Treatment plant was offline from mid-November 2022 through April 2023
due to an electrical power surge.

e Lessalt Treatment plant was offline in 2022 due to the reduced CVP supply.

These disruptions of CVP delivery reduced the potential CVP that could have been delivered
in this wet year with 100 percent allocation. As a result, the growers in Subsystem 10 and
the municipalities in the Hollister Urban Area relied more on groundwater as a back-up
supply. Table 1 shows that WY 2023 M&I groundwater pumping was higher than previous
wet and average years but lower than pumping during the severe drought of WY 2021 and
WY 2019. Even so, Water Year 2023 shows the lowest agricultural pumping over the last five
years, Table 1.

Table 1. Groundwater Production in Zone 6 by Water Year, acre-feet per year

-----

ZUEY "i170 2L22

Agriculture* 15,423 17,021 22,614 23,945 13,147

MumcuPal & 2,660 3,514 6,067 5,840 4,769
Industrial

While WY 2023 was a wet year hydrologically, the lasting effects of the multiple year
drought can still be seen in the North San Benito Basin. Groundwater levels and storage
reserves have shown an increase over the past years but remain below historical highs.
However, the District continues to manage the Basin to maintain water levels above the
quantitative minimum thresholds that are protective of beneficial uses of groundwater

(Todd 2021).
v.8 WATER SUPPLIES AND MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

As described in the previous SGMA Annual Reports and pre-SGMA Annual Groundwater
Reports, water supply sources available in Zone 6 include local groundwater, imported CVP
water, recycled water, and local surface water.

The District contract with the USBR provides up to 35,550 acre-feet per year (AFY) of
imported water for agricultural use and 8,250 AFY for M&I use. As noted above, CVP
allocations were increased to 100 percent for agricultural and M&I uses in WY 2023.
However, the overall delivery of CVP to users in Zone 6 was less than the previous two years



of severe drought and recent normal and wet years due to the delivery and treatment
infrastructure issues described above. Figure 1 shows the delivered CVP water by user type

over the last 20 years.

Figure 1. CVP Deliveries by User Type (WY 2004- WY 2023)

30.000
25,000
20,000
15,000

10,000

CVP Deliveries {AFY)

5,000

H QA T O O DN NS
QO O O QD N N
S S

& 9

N &
AP 4P

W Domestc & Miunicipal  ® Agricultural

CVP and the other non-groundwater water sources are used conjunctively with local
groundwater. The District has consistently worked to maintain groundwater storage in the
Basin to serve as an important water source in dry years when CVP and other sources are
restricted. District groundwater management projects (also described in GSP Chapter 8,
Todd 2021) are focused on increasing water importation, local water storage, managed
aquifer recharge, and water recycling, all of which maintain and increase local groundwater

storage.

Ongoing management actions include groundwater level, quality, and water use monitoring,
data compilation and analysis, numerical modeling, water conservation, water quality
improvement programs, stakeholder outreach, reporting, and administrative activities
among others that contribute to long-term sustainability.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are responsive to the District Act:



4.

Continue to purchase and supply all imported CVP water available under the District's
contract and any additional supplies that can reasonably be attained.

Continue to operate Hernandez and Paicines reservoirs for downstream percolation to
improve downstream groundwater conditions.

Continue off-channel percolation of CVP water as available and expand percolation
capabhilities.

Levy a groundwater charge in Zone 6 as substantiated and recommended in the 2023
Annual Groundwater Report. The groundwater charge for the USBR contract year
(March 2024-February 2025) is recommended to be $14.03 per acre-foot (AF) for
agricultural use in Zone 6 and a groundwater charge of $14.03 per AF is recommended
for M&I use.

REFERENCES

Association of California Agencies, 2023, Bureau of Reclamation Bolsters CVP Water Supply
Allocations, https:/fwww.acwa.com/news/bureau-cf-reclamation-bolsters-cvp-water-
supply-allocations/, April 23, 2023,

Todd Groundwater (Todd), 2022, 2021 Annual Groundwater Report, March.

Todd Groundwater {Todd}, 2021, North San Benito Groundwater Sustainability Plan,
November.

Todd Groundwater (Todd)}, 2023, 2022 Annual Groundwater Report, March.



Appendix A

2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act impacts to the Groundwater
Investigation, Report and Recommendations required by the District Act

The San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control District Act (District Act)
Section 70-7.6, requires the San Benito County Water District (District) to prepare an annual
investigation and report on groundwater conditions. In 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater
Management Act (SGMA) was approved by the legislature. Since SGMA approval, the
District has become the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for the North
San Benito Groundwater Basin {Basin} in San Benito County and has led the preparationofa
Groundwater Sustainability Plan {GSP) for the basin.

Consistent with SGMA and the District Act, the District is required to complete an Annual
Groundwater Report. There is considerable overlap between the two legislative
requirements as both require the development and analysis of groundwater conditions. The
SGMA Annual Report is required to be submitted to the Department of Water Resources
(DWR) by April 1 of each year. The District Act requires a public hearing on the second
Monday In January for interested parties to inquire/discuss the condition of the
groundwater supplies or surface water supplies of the district.

The District has determined the most efficient method for meeting the requirements of the
SGMA and District Act is to provide an Annual Groundwater Assessment available to the
public in December of each year. This assessment will provide an overview of basin
conditions and recommendations. A public hearing will be held on the second Monday in
January of each year in compliance with the District Act. The annual report will be
completed following the public hearing and prior to the April 1 deadline. This will aliow the
District the opportunity to address any groundwater issues brought forward at the January
public hearing and incorporate any substantive changes prior to submission to the DWR.

Per the District Act, the investigation and report shall include the following information:

(a) Information for the consideration of the board in its determination of the annual
overdraft.

{b) Information for the consideration of the board in its determination if the
accumulated overdraft as of September 30 of the current calendar year.

(c} Areport as to the total production of water from the groundwater supplies of the
district and the zones thereof as of September 30 of the current calendar year.

(d} An estimate of the annual overdraft for the current water year and for the ensuing
water year.

(e} Information for the consideration of the board in its determination if the estimated
amount of agricultural water and the estimated amount of water other that
agricultural water to be withdrawn from the groundwater supplies of the district
and zones thereof for the ensuing water year.



(f} The amount of water the district is obligated to purchase during the ensuing water
year

(g) Arecommendation as to the quality of water needed for surface delivery and for
replenishment of the groundwater supplies of the district and the zones thereof the
ensuing water year.

(h) A recommendation as to whether or not a groundwater charge should be levied in
any zone or zones of the district during the ensuing water year.

(i) Ifany groundwater charge is recommended, a proposal of a rate per acre-foot for
agricultural water and a rate per acre-foot for all water other than agricultural water
for such zone or zones.

Any other information the board requires.






APPENDIX B CLIMATE DATA

List of Tables and Figures

Table B-1. Monthly Precipitation at the SBCWD CIMIS Station (inches)

Table B-2. Reference Evapotranspiration at the SBCWD CIMIS Station (inches)

APPENDIX B TODD GROUNDWATER






%86
%00T
%16
%S6
%00T
%TO0T
%T0T
%06
%E6
%TO0T
%86
%C0T
%E6
%T0T
%96
%16
%ITT
%E0T

RULION %

869
009
VLS
88'S
T€9
T€9
9¥'9
09's
€T’9
86'S
ST'9
v1'9
€C'9
6T'9
16°S
€89
TL9
89'9
DAy

9%'9
£€9'9
95°9
679
80°L
19
6L'9
0L
98'9
€9'9
67°L
ve'L
209
L9
269
169
8T,
6E'L

1nr

6€'S
6E'Y
e’y
L8'E
€8P
LTS
9LV
00t
8V
6T'S
6L°E
1y
06't
vT'S
LY
9T’y
¥8's
0T's

aav

0T'¢
9t
S0°¢
08T
LT
€0'¢
LL'T
8T'¢C
69°T
LT
08'T
9C't
18T
(41
v8'T
8E'T
81'¢C

88T

0S'T
78T
65T
9t'1T
0L'T
SC'T
LL'T
eVl
0€T
[420"
9G8'T
€St
JATAN
[4a*
ST
67T
8E'T

8l

NYFE

9T'T
€8'T
SO'T
TL'T
9¢€'T
A
LE'T
6T'T
A
vT'1
ST'T
ve'1
LY'T
68'T
75'T
ST
LE'T
w

23d

8’1
68'T
98'1T
| Xard
(8T
TC'C
69T
00°¢
69°T
eL'T
76'T
16°T
TL'T
86'T
eL'T
78T
781
ve'e

AON

(sayaur) uoneis SIAID AMIGS ayi 1e :o_umh_n_mcmbonmi uucu._&

(uonie1s zJa3slj|oH JDDYM) Jaquis
104 ,,¢G"C puB 4390300 104 ,,LT°0 S! @N|BA 1011SIQ PR1I3LI00 3y "AeidsIano uoijesiul 03 aNp J01Js JUSWAINSEaW PapN|aul 8TOZ J2GWSAON PUB 1303190 40) aNn|eA S|IAID
‘Syjuow Jay3o ||e Joy ,,0 pue Alen.
4 4€°0 SI 3N[_A 031G PR3934400 Y] “Aeidsiano uonesiul 03 anp JoJd Juswalnseaw sapnpul (,£0°0 ‘. T°0 “,9°C “.8°0) 8TOZ 3snSny pue ‘aunf ‘Aey “Adeniga4 1oy anjea S|
",0 S! @njeA 1011s1Q Pa32a.l0d 3y ] “Aeldsian0 uoljesiil 01 aNp JOLIS JUBWSINSeaW sapnpdul (,v°Z) £T0Z 4aqwiaidas Joy anjea S|IAID

%00T 80°€T 100 10°0 80°0 p°0 €60 6LT PET 8E'T R m%q
%9ST 9€°0¢ 000 000 800 650 100 €0's €T 60°Y [T'9 90z 000 £20i
%L 8€'6 000 000 €10 200 20 9°0 010 600 60°S T+°0 9T'C 720i
%05 859 000 000 00°0 000 100 87T 82°0 8's LL0 w0 000 T20i
%58 STTT 200 €10 ¥2°0 w0 8T'T 8LT 000 6T 69°€ ov'T 00°0 020
%8TT 8€'ST 000 000 0z°0 S6'T A 55z 20y vT'e 811 5T [T0 610
%€E9 9z°8 000 000 000 000 €e'T vLT 62°0 65T 6T°0 ZiL 0z°0 81O
%891 26'1T 200 000 20 050 60T 0L'T 509 99y EE°E 8%°C LLT LTOi
%pTT 88T 90°0 800 800 500 6L°0 2 LS0 86°€ 85T s9'€ 220 91O
%18 95°0T 60°0 10°0 000 80 ¥Z'0 720 0zT 200 8L'S 850 (ST STOq
%I GE6 00°0 000 000 200 98°0 651 6T 720 LT0 LEO L0°0 107
%8t 0€'9 €00 000 100 200 0€°0 910 9°0 SE'T ST'T £77 10°0 €T0i
%S L0°L 000 000 600 920 6ET ve'T 9t°0 18°0 £0°0 96°0 69°0 ZT0i
%66 96'CT 00°0 000 0€°0 8L°0 610 €T €97 iy 652 s8'T 7L0 110
%E6 Tt 000 100 000 190 e vLT T 67T TET 200 050 0TO
%9L 566 00°0 000 000 [0 0z°0 €81 A SE0 68T SO'T 82°0 600
%69 L0°6 000 000 00°0 000 900

60°0

90°¢

95y

60

L9°0

1.0

8001






APPENDIX C GROUNDWATER DATA

List of Tables and Figures

Table C-1. Groundwater Elevations October 2021 through 2022

Figure C-1. Groundwater Basins in San Benito County

Figure C-2. Monitoring Locations

APPENDIX C TODD GROUNDWATER






Table C-1. Groundwater Elevations October 2022 through October 2023

epth to Top
Aell Number o] I Sk Sl
Well Number ‘E':_'H'fil'u““ ‘ ’vi!l];@(?‘? Jul Elev _Olyqv» 23
Fap A ndi ) ~ || Elev

Bolado Park #1 Southern -14.3 -14.25 -12.6
Bolado Park #2 Southern -21.8 -22.58 -18.5
COH Cullum #1 Southern -52.33 -37.5 -20.6
COH Cullum #2 Southern -52.16 -37.4 -20.3
Deep Well 5 Southern -71.19 -58.97 -53.6 -46.32 -39.74
Deep Well 6 Southern -32.37 -26.54 -23.75 -19.62 -17.91
14-6-13B1 696 0 0|Southern 631.18 638.5 653.53 650.33 648.44
14-6-14Q0 694 0 0|Southern 633.04 635.16 638.3
14-7-19G0 753 0 0|Southern 707.66 709.12 714.02
Panoche Solar Farm Southern -38.97 -40 -38.58
14-6-35B1 705 0 0[Southern 652.9 655.4 658.35
14-6-26K1 668 0 0|Southern 635.63 543 639.3 548 642.46
14-6-26F0 692 0 0|Southern 636.9 557 641.85 577 643.72
14-6-36D0 737 0 0|Southern 646.5 650.5 656.85
14-6-26H1 680 0 0[|Southern 632.23 629.62 634.34 637.12 640.18
Shallow Well 4 Southern -32.88 -29.4033 -29.1 -28.86)
Shallow Well 5 Southern -16.44 -5 -7.3
Swett 1 Southern -33.45 -35.26 -33.5
Swett 2 Southern -45.86 -44.34 -40.65
Swett2 1 Southern -60.2 -61.25 -58.68
Swett2 2 Southern -63.14 -65 -63.21
14-7-20K1 766 0 0|Southern 715.38 711.75 718.37 719.64 721.25
12-4-171L20 137 0 0[San Juan 116.9 125 124.32 123.12 122.09
12-4-18)1 150 0 0|San Juan 127.55 129.85 122.17
12-4-21M1 169 250 0|San Juan 132.7 140.77 143.31
12-4-34H1 197.5 387 120|San Juan 116.65 123.12 151.71
12-4-35A1 216 325 110|San Juan 141.64 147.25 172.79
12-5-28N1 253.66 408 168|San Juan 195.48 216.16 221.88
12-5-30H1 250 240 0[San Juan 199.25 204.57 207.12
12-5-31H1 248 0 0[San Juan 185.12 192.21 187.22
13-4-3H1 206.25 312 168|San Juan 123.2 147.64 138.5 144 149
13-4-4A3 210 195 48|San Juan 171.4 173.85 198.3
775 Flint Rd San Juan -41.68 -39.33 -36.4]
Alameda 1 (Top Flavor) San Juan -70.27 -69.74 -71.4
Alameda 2 San Juan -57.24 -58.32 -62.37
Barker Farms 1 San Juan -63.5 -64.25 -63.38
Barker Farms 2 San Juan -64.89 -66.15 -67.41
Barker Farms 3 San Juan -67.7 -69.5 -68.68
Barker Farms 4 San Juan -11.25 -13 -11.5
Dobler San Juan -110.7 -115.6 -108.66
13-5-6L1 241.5 0 0|San Juan 113.63 141.5 144.98 135.15 147.5
Shallow Well 3 San Juan -19.73 -14.7167 -13.92 -13.71
11-4-25H1 148 631 216|Bolsa 81.63 115.42 97.2 94.4 91.57
11-4-26B1 143 642 149|Bolsa 121.7 131.65 130.05 128.67
11-4-34A1 142 100 0|Bolsa 114.44 130.1667 134.75 136
11-5-20N1 150 300 0|Bolsa 45.03 84.78 77.03 71.94
11-5-21E2 155 220 100|Bolsa 155

11-5-27P2 184 331 67|Bolsa 156.64 164.2967 169.61 172.5
11-5-31F1 159 515 312(Bolsa 68.36 80.84 80.59

Todd Groundwater 3/11/2024



Table C-1. Groundwater Elevations October 2022 through October 2023

Groundwater Elevations|(feetivis
Well Number 5 I 25 Elevi| JanElev || AprEiev JulElev. 19{§7=>f_154 :
Sl Ao v

12-5-5G1 175 500 150|Bolsa 109.5 117.35 107.45
12-5-5M1 175 0 0|Bolsa 55 64.24 57.55
12-5-6L1 177 0 0|Bolsa 140.71 146.74 146.17 148.36 150.85
12-5-7P1 204 750 360|Bolsa 335 56 46
12-5-17D1 216 950 314|Bolsa 55 70.75 72.25 67 63.5
Deep Well 1 Bolsa -114.78 -109.7| -110.38 -113.4 -111.5
Shallow Well 1 Bolsa -21.63
Shallow Well 2 Bolsa -15.96 -16.89 -17.47
11-4-2D8 229 0 0|Llagas 124.36333 152.1| 159.3367 126.15| 145.925
11-4-2N1 174.9 0 0|Llagas 119.43667 148.875| 155.1933 120.55 143.37
11-4-3J)2 196 0 0O|Llagas 117.175 151.67| 160.0567| 128.8467 140.89
11-4-8K2 178.1 0 0O|Llagas 130.58667 153.445| 163.6867| 151.6767| 148.945
11-4-10D4 169.9 0 0|Llagas 124.34 148.23| 158.6067| 134.5133| 140.115
11-4-15J2 144 0 0O|Llagas 100.35 144
11-4-17N4 180.1 0 0|Llagas 129.59667 154.635 163.4 152.23 147.6
11-4-21P3 154.9 0 0|Llagas 121.72 142.225 147.41 137.9
11-4-22N1 149.9 0 0|Llagas 112.53 138.57| 139.9733| 121.5433 126.53
11-4-32R2 140.1 0 O|Llagas 103.07 130.535| 132.8467| 117.9467 120.7
11-5-13D1 257.5 125 O|Hollister 220.25 220.6 223.8 226.5 231
11-5-23R2 230 118 43|Hollister 194.9
11-5-24C2 249 165 70[Hollister 211.5 213.38 225.38
11-5-241L1 234 70 O|Hollister 193.29 195.24 208.8
11-5-26N2 198 232 95(Hollister 165.16 167.32 174.31
11-5-26R3 208 225 65|Hollister 157 175/57 181.63
11-5-35C1 198 180 O|Hollister 169.08 171.79 176.66
11-5-35G1 206 230 O|Hollister 166.28 182.17 184.73 185.89 187.44]
11-5-36C1 223 98 O|Hollister 183.25 190.5 196.75
12-5-1G2 215 300 O|Hollister 175.77 177.83 183.38
12-5-2H5 210 128 42|Hollister 179.18 183.07 190.75
12-5-22C1 236 237 102|Hollister 167.02 169.64 176.35
12-5-22)2 250 355 120|Hollister 190.25 193.08 197.02
12-5-23A20 239 862 178|Hollister 155.5 160.5 184.5
12-5-27E1 270 175 0|Hollister 196.26 201.1 199.54
12-5-28]1 276 220 0|Hollister 207.22 212.12 217.3
12-5-33E2 266 121 81|Hollister 221.68 221.56 223.64
12-5-34P1 293.2 195 153|Hollister 220 218.5 220.5 221.25 226.5
12-5-36B20 315 500 430|Hollister 195.2 197.5 200
12-6-6L4 246.5 235 50|Hollister 213.88 216.48 216.18 218.69 220.49
12-6-7P1 266 147 O|Hollister 233.33 242.35 246.4
12-6-18G1 303 198 70|Hollister 258.64 264.34
12-6-30E1 375 0 O|Hollister 343.75 347.31 350.48
13-5-3L1 303 126 0|Hollister 221.45 226.6 233
13-5-10B1 305 0 0|Hollister 215 216 221.25
13-5-11E1 308.33 0 O|Hollister 272.64 276.98 278.88 281.17
13-5-11Q1 324 178 61|Hollister 247.9 249.7 266.2
13-5-13F1 348 134 30|Hollister 3225 326.34 328.2 330.46
13-5-13H1 400 252 112|Hollister 329.69 336 341.5
13-5-13J2 375 180 O|Hollister 328.28 331.82 340.17
13-5-13Q1 360 185 44|Hollister 326.45 329.89 334.12
13-5-14C1 365 0 O|Hollister 287.75 290
13-6-7D2 500 0 O|Hollister 336.28 337.19 338.13
13-6-20K1 440 0 O|Hollister 407 408 411.84
Alameda 3 Hollister -120.34 -122.38 -119.85
Cienega 1 Hollister -28.6 -30 -27.6
COH Well #2 Hollister -74.66 -70 -70.2
COH Well #4 Hollister -69 -63.9 -60.2
COH Well #5 Hollister -82 -78.1 -72.2
Deep Well 3 Hollister -97.89 -96.45 -95.74 -97.38 -94.68
Deep Well 4 Hollister -64.76 -60.21 -61.3 -59.88 -58.8

Todd Groundwater 3/11/2024



Well Number

ab-1 rdate ions Oober 20

) Grduhd

22.HialiEh QEIGhER2023 _

| WellDepth

TR TR

#

of Screens

|| Depth to Top |

7 | | (feet) i “. e nt Area‘ lan Elev ‘
13-6-19L0 Hollister :
13-6-19L1 460 0 0|Hollister 310.29 316.32 324.54
Lico and Greco 1 Hollister -41.84 -40.65 -37.4
12-5-13H1 250 0 0|Hollister 226 227.37 233.2
San Benito Foods #2 Hollister -56.94 -60.35 -56
13-5-4P1 318 0 O|Hollister 271.6 274.48 277.04
13-5-5F0 320 0 0|Hollister 273 283.2 289.35
13-5-5J0 338 0 O|Hollister 230.9 237.87 240.11
Shallow Well 6 Hollister -18.18 -14.8467 -12.38 -10.38
Sunnyslope Test well #10 Hollister -29
Sunnyslope Test Well #11 Hollister -148 -107 -95
Sunnyslope Test Well #12 Hollister -78 -75.6 -72
Sunnyslope Test Well #9 Hollister -94 -92
Sunnyslope Well #10 Hollister -37
Sunnyslope Well #11 Hollister -181 -107 -95
Sunnyslope Well #2 Hollister -96 -91.5 -89
Sunnyslope Well #5 Hollister -127 -122 -119
Sunnyslope Well #7 Hollister -160 -159 -110
Sunnyslope Well #9 Hollister -95 :
SunnyslopeWell #6 Hollister -79 -74 -62
Veteran's Memorial Park Well Hollister -131.68

Todd Groundwater 3/11/2024




" (%
* N
» V2 2 8 Legend
X (g W Qe e
/\\ 1-,":,} g » oy o {__1 county Boundary
\ / { 33
A e A i
E‘;‘Cﬁ,' 2N § /\’\\1 [] Groundwater Basin
H_~ NF J Red Hill Ny
,f« ‘ Los
\ \ S Banos
v_w_/\\ »Jr—*;;—\g\. —{ 152 — —_ S
\ N\
\ '
5-022.07 . \}
1
!
\\\‘. ’ s
\
\
4, ¢l
- .‘{S‘{/ s J /'I o
Bas - /e ; i
~. s 4
Mg AN ]
g TN J
N —~ IS \ ¢
£t O R A_N f 53 7
» _ N\ (1 N
A ) ) ) Yy 3 \ W
L (JAB/L\.:‘].N RANGE %\ ‘\ 5 \ 1N
LS SN N 25 PN AN
\ O Lo R\ ; | -
. \.\t\t\ e Qﬁ}ﬁ\},(‘)CHE HILLS
. P AT W '\\\ X %\\ N T
4 DE Gom NN = .
RA DE 391! V Y \\\\ Ca:‘fL)\n'ounmms %8 i\r"; \'\
LINAS : 3 A \\\\\ \5\ Big I'.vv'O(lIh‘J(;’\\_/_/:;\x 5-023 NSy Tumey Hills
: ¢ \\/ \\\\ \4;)& ’J;mrains ot PANG ’;HE
o A bk Big Mountain N— N
‘. g \\\ \,él_,,,\__\“/tﬁa.s_\ '
(3-028 P T Tdmey
{ Nk Griswaold Hills )2
Lex - '3-029 o Hilis
i \ QL \_\)‘ o~ = \x’\ "
GABTEAN RAW G E <\ T 0 \
\ ~ N Y/, if -
N\ ),’; \ ~ 5074 Y CIER
\‘»\/’f” \'\ \. //O o \J‘. |
: S LA N\ pulli
SIERRA 4LINAS . Y by % o
RA DE SALINA \ Soledad ,'); ’,;; G N
: 74 Yy Y, 7 3,030
/"‘[. .‘J '_\/ ™ \ }
NS L\, \ U !
o a8
e J NN R, !
NN TN N 1
\J ([ S i
f MU L \
Greenfield 1 3 \\ ~ <7
N e ' ol 25) R4 N L i
) " e A
\ NP i o \ . o’
I \ : > I ~ASyB L7 0 R A N
0 6 R n :
P King NV LI
Scale in Miles City 3;\6;2 i : \ “.&}o
\ S 1 4 A ] ! < \
DWR Groundwater Basins )\\\,\ £ )
3-24 Quien Sabe Valley N § K
3-2 Pajaro Valley 3-25 Tres Pinos Valley ke "‘\\’.q. N
3-3 Gilroy Hollister Valley 3-28 San Benito River Valley \ \g»q\
3-3.01 Llagas 3-29 Dry Lake Valley Shr s <
3-3.05 North San Benito 3-30 Bitter Water Valley
3-22 Santa Ana Valley 3-31 Hernandez Valley March 2024 A endix C-1
3-23 Upper Santa Ana Valley 5-22.7 Delta Mendota — PP
3-32 Peachtree 5-23 Panoche Valley I O D D e Groundwater Basins
5-71 Vallecitos Valley inS Benito C t
GROUNDWATER In San Benito Lounty




d3LVMANNOAYD

1+ funoo Kesaquoy

suoles0- buuojiuop

Z-9 xipuaddy lova o
¥20¢ YoIeN

®

o °

'II"“"I"
".' o g
)
¢ Pl oo °¢
» Yy : .

0o

S|l Ul 9]eos

5

<

Ajunog ejuioyen ,ﬂ\
uiseg ojueg uUes YLON a

Buimol jJo sealy sjewixolddy g%

}Ine4 selaAeg|ED PazZI|EIaUdL) m mm
ueiseuy Bumol4 O

IISM palojuoN @







APPENDIX D PERCOLATION DATA

List of Tables and Figures

Table D-1. Reservoir Water Budgets for Water Year 2022 (acre-feet)
Table D-2. Historical Reservoir Releases (AFY)

Table D-3. Historical Percolation of CVP Water (AFY)

Table D-4. Percolation of Municipal Wastewater during Water Year 2022

Table D-5. Historical Percolation of Municipal Wastewater (AFY)

Figure D-1. Reservoir Releases for Percolation

APPENDIX D TODD GROUNDWATER






¥20¢/1 L/g 181empunolsy ppo |

snjdins Jajem si anjea anlisod ‘@8e110ys J31BM S| AN|eA BAIRSBN

JIOAISS31 U] P3103S |[B JOU ‘SN |eID1yaUa( J0) Jajem paltodwll S193143Y 4

€LS'Y 0ST 89S 28e401s WnWIUI

80€°0T 085'C T°LSTT 28el01s Wnwixen

000°TT 0£8C 002'LT Ajoeded JloAiasay

Bl Rt wrvm\ | W;MN»? :;‘, 3..:52»: _\;‘_J,

SZ8'T ?26_9530 Bo_*c: wmzm:u 93e.03s 19U pajejnaje)

QSL‘T (8unuesys - 3uipu3) a8ueyd aSelols paniasqQ

PET'VT 6€0°E vee'Le SmojjinQ |ejoL

TS0'T (0)743 6921 (sl1em Jo1dooua3ul sso)) a8edass pue uoljesodeny

« V8O'ET "By ey «S3LIBAIIRA dAD

‘e'u 0 ISYLT S9sed|9J uollejodJad JaAlY olluag ues

‘eru 66T°C ‘e'u S9sea[aJ uole|odJ4ad ya34) sould sa4l

‘et ‘e'u €7¢ J9Jsuedy sauldled-zapueuJday

‘eru ‘e'u 767']T s||ids zapueudaH

JAR WA €98y 6TV Ty SMojjuj [eoL

x LT ey ey «109l0ud adija4 ues

‘e'u 6SLT ‘e'u Jajsueuy sauldied-zepueuJdaH

e'u 870‘c 6LLTY J3AIY OllUag ues

06¢ 96 ov9 ||ejuley

vEE'S GS0‘C vs’s (€207 1d3s) a8e.03s Suipul

€LE'L 00€ 96% (zzoz 100) 28e401s Suiiels
ZzopuelioH e

(1994-2408) £20T JB3A 1918/ 10} S198pNg Ja1eM JIOAIaSAY “T-d 3|qel




¥20¢/1 1/€ J8¥empunol ppo |

6.6'0T €EE'T 9%9‘6
0S9'6T 66T'C TISY'LT
681 0T¢ 6LT°E
¥86°L ¥0S 08YL
0TS‘TT LEO'T €LYV'6
696'LT Sv0‘C ¥26°ST
8Et'9 ¥8¢€ ¥S0'9
L65'ST LOV'T T6T'€C
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
09y LL9 €96°€
799°L TZE'T TvE9
vSTCT L6ET LSL'6
TE€9'CT LYT'Y ¥81'8
€88V 0 €88y
TVT'8 3% 9v9°L
9/T'€T ¥ST'T zeo'er
80€VT 96T ZITVT
165°0¢ LL9 YT6'6T
9gg’s 0 9ge‘e
veEV's 0 vEY'S
800°0T 0T€ 8696
70591 €85 6T6'CT
TLS'ST 97€EC 9vT'ET
LLE'ET €6C'T ¥780°CT
75492 (0]57 20€'9¢
we’'s 692°C €LS'E
L96T 6€T'9 GES'ET
V101l ZopueuioH

(Adv) sasea|ay Jlon1asaYy |BI1I0ISIH “2-d d|qel




OO0 0000000000 O 0OO0DO0ODO0DO0ODO0ODO0ODO0OO0OO0OO0OOo oo

Sec
759

OO0 000000000 O 00000000000 o oo
O WVLONOODODODOO O 0OO0ODO0ODO0ODO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOoOOoOo

paisi| @Y1 01 Judde(pe suiseq a84eydal 03 Ajuo pair

9€s
0
[4
VET
qee
66T
ove

OO0 00000000 O OO0 OO0 OoOOoOo

60T i
T09
686

‘Swealls
8¢¢€ 090°T ) (0]7 0 0 0
0 [4 0 0 0 0 0
€ i 0 0 0 0 0
66T 08L 0 0 0 0 0
7€6'C SLL'T 0 0 0 0 0
668'T L98 0 0 0 0 0
602°C 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 0 0 0 0 0 0
91¢ 88 0 0 0 0 0
TSP T 0 0 0 9ST L
LTS 0 0 0 0 0 0
788 T 0 0 0 €8 45
S09 €971 0 Ut 6 61T S
oLy 147 0 5748 4 8L T
70T €0L T 98T LT 19T 0
8¢6 :14 4" 044 12 9€T €
€Ty 457 0T T 8P 9G9¢ 17
¥80°T 81S L 8ST 0 99 0
619°S LLY'T 6¢ 98¢ €G€E LT 00¢
£609 12 T4 YET L6T T€S 80L
YEL'T 608 0 0 0 €L 44}
8ST S8 0 0 0 0 602

OH pUod peoy uoiun

(puod pue)

}931D souid sa.ll

Niewa3piy

Aemysiy
auljay

peoy peoy
eyieuetepl yaws

39310

0SS

aueq
sinief

2017
LL 186T
L9 [43:]
0 [4
0 0

peoy | za1

uoj|ey

;
_
oR M
STS :
{spuod

do044)




¥20¢/1 /€ J9}empunol ppo L

‘uiseq ay1 Sui8ieydas wouy
juan|ye 8yl JuaAald SUOIIPUOD 3SAY| "} Ned Sealpuy UeS ay) JO SpIS 1SIMYINOS dY3 UO S| pue yoeal pajdae ayy Suoje mojy suies

Allensn juan|ya s3 s JeY] 393D UBN( UES JO AleIngu) paweuun ay} asneaaq papnjauj jou s jueld eisineg :m:ﬁ ues ayl
'asn ul aJe spuod ay1 usym Joj Ajuo Junodde 03 pajsnipe sem uoljelodens
dLMI 3YL (SIWID) didaud JA/ul €T ss3| (6£-€£ Uiia|ing YMa) uonesodens JA/ul 95) sayaul € = dipaud sss| uoireiodens aSelany 'z

"a8ueyd suonesado se pajepdn aq pjnoys seale asay] ‘(‘wwod ‘siad
‘asoy) awiy Aue je asn Ul eaJe puod |B10} JO %08 SaWNSSY "Jue|d JUSWIEII} JBIBMIISEM J[3S3WOP 3Y3 3k spuod uoijejodiad 0}
uonippe ul spuod juawieas} Apnjoul pue (666T) SIILID0SSY PUE 1PIWIYIS *Q YIDUUD)Y pue uosydiq Wody le seale puod J23sI|[OH ‘T

T7/8'C 26C Y9T’E T |e10]
91 g 1T z sould saJ|
9ST 12 LLT L 1178 | se1e1s3 Yiewasply
0 0 0 6¢€ |ellIsnpul - 491s1||0H
669°C 997 996°C €6 21353WOp - J31SI[|OH

(3933 (3034
19108) uoljejodiad -aide) Juonelodeny

(199)-0108) (souoe) L8921V puod
231eyosig 1usnji3

220 4e3 J91e/\ Sulnp 1a1emalsep [edidlunipl Jo uone|odlad ‘p-d 3jqel

:S910N



¥20¢/1 /€ 19)eMpunolo ppoL

e1ep SuISSIW |BI3UDIO] 4

7/8'C 91 931 0 669C €20¢
88LC 9T GST 0 8T9'C 44014
785C 9T 19T 0 {0}7ar4 1202
€55°C 9 GST 0 {14 020t
986'T 91 67T 0 (443 6T0T
L8S'T ST 0ST LS G9ET 810C
LLTT 0¢ vST LS SY6°T LT0T
[40) 4 12 ¥ST S0€ €76'T 9T0C
(47404 12 19T 74%3 918‘T ST0T
8€8'T 1¢ 6LT 98 75S°T ¥10¢
0Et'T 1¢ 88T 413 6838 +ET0T
1874504 6T LET S09 ovL'T [410}4
9/t 6T €8T 99t L08'T 1T0C
0ST‘C 6T LT LE 6T 0T0C
¥65C 6T LT 8ty 9/6T 600C
966'C 6T 6ET LST'T 08S‘T 800¢
Cras 6T 6ET 87T'T ovL'T L00T
LST'E €€ 9TC T12'T L6L'T 900¢
891 14 LTT €CET 168T S00T
T19'e 1C 89T 9€s‘T L8L'T ¥00T
vrL'E ¥ 6.2 CEV'T 600C €00C
9€L'E 44 €8¢ SYST ¥88°T 7002
LYT'E vz €0€ 8/0°T [477A 100¢
€95°E ¥ €6¢ 9€T'T 0TTC 0002
LEE'SE T 9ST 9L¥'T €69°T 6661
9ST'e LT T€C 8TS 06%°C 866T
760 LT, 102 606 S96°T L66T
0€6°C vT L0T 639 020t 966T
GELT 0T 08T 019 GE6'T G66T
009°C S GST G99 SLLT ¥66T

souid || |saie1sy I91eMUIols -213sawioq - jueld
sal] uewaspry pue isjemoalsem uopjewejaoy

[elIsnpui - J3351j|0H 193151]|0H

(Adv) J23eM33sR W [RAIDIUNIA JO UOIIE|0DIA |EDLIOISIH 'S-A d]qeL




uole|09.4ad 10}
Sosea|oy JI0AI8SaY

dILVMANNOHD

o
¥

i ddOL

1-a Xipuaddy
202 UoJel
N N N N N N N N N
o o o o o o o o o
N N N N - s —_ —_ —_
w N - o © oo ~ (o] (&)}

¥10¢
€L0c
(434
1102
0L0c

600¢

800¢

£00¢
900¢
S00¢

100C
000¢

¥00¢C
€00¢
¢00¢
6661
8661
1661
9661

ssupied i
ZapueulsH
000°0L
000°'GL
000°02
000'Ge

000°0€




APPENDIX E WATER USE DATA

List of Tables and Figures

Table E-1. Recent CVP Allocation and Use
Table E-2. Historical CVP and RW Use by MA (AFY)
Table E-3. Municipal Water Use by Major Purveyor for Water Year 2022 (AF)

Table E-4. Historical Municipal Water Use by Major Purveyor (AFY)

Figure E-1. Groundwater Water Balance By Year Type — Bolsa MA (AFY)
Figure E-2 Groundwater Water Balance By Year Type — Hollister MA (AFY)
Figure E-3. Groundwater Water Balance By Year Type — San Juan MA (AFY)

Figure E-4. Groundwater Water Balance By Year Type — Southern MA (AFY)

APPENDIX E TODD GROUNDWATER






sawn|oA A1a4eS YijeaH 2lignd §
pa3ejoasad Jaiem sapnpou| §
A4V 055°S€ v (uonedojje %00T) 30e43U03 [e10L €
syuawisnlpy Adljod @8eoys ¢
A4V 052°8 I'3IAl (U011BIO|[E %00T) 39B.3U0D (B3O T :SRION

TvY'8 %CE 919°C %00T
860T %0 %€ 98L°C %EE

8019 %0 %01 TYE'E %S9
LTE'ST %ST %09 €967 %S9
vLL9T %SL %S LSY'Y %007
8TY'LT %05 %69 6L9°S %SL
LEY'ST %007 %S€ 606C %001
YEY'Y %S %EC Y161 %SS

L69°E %0 %CT 0T8T %S¢

SvS'L %0 %0 %6¢C 66ST %09 %vE
vI6°CT %CC %0¢ %CE TS9'T %0L %Ly

L9TLT %0v %01 %EE €89°C %SL %1S
vET'9T %08 %6C EEV'T %001
190°0T %09 %St %LT L6T'T %SL %LE

6EV'9 %T1 %0T %W 8L6T %09 %6¢

v1S°0T %S %0Y %LC TET'T %SL %LE

G988t %0t %09 6967 %001
0v8'61 %007 %8€ TST'E %00T

4EDA 191/ 2150]01pAH) (qo4-1e]Al 1B 191N HESN) (das-190 1e9A 1918\ 2150]04pAH) (qo4-1ej\l 1ea A 1938\ HASN)

~EmEum=.€<

PRIN pue
10BAIUO)D O JUBIID

»(4Y) pasn
1uod junoluy 19eU0)

UoneOo)y (%) pasn
J9e11U0) JO JUDdISd | IUnouy3denuo)

~mw2m><

(4v) pasn
junouwiy 10enuo) 2110]SIH JO JU93i9d 19BJIUO0D JO JUL9d13d

LUOREIO||Y

dAD [eanijno1i8y elasnpuj pue jedisiunia



VUG L L[e 4955mpulivag) ppu

Tr6'ST

VIAl UBN[ UBS Ul pasn S| Ja3e N Pa|2AdaY ON

|
|

807'TT vEL'Y 77-€6 DAV

MY

dAd

9 9uoZ [E30L

097 09T
42174 ¥SO'TT 172174 8ST'L L68'E €20¢
119 788'€E 119 C0T'T 6LLC [a4ere
LY 9vt'6 Ly 6S8°L L8S'T T20¢
9¢s 6TTLT 9¢s 10SCT 819y 020t
699 88T°9T 69S 86T°CT 066°€ 6T0¢C
TLY TET0T LY 8VLET €8€'9 810¢
99¢ L6T9T 99¢€ vreoT €58‘S LT0¢C
6617 LYE'9 661 8¢S’S 618 910¢
T0T L0S‘S TOT eSSy SL6 ST0¢
79¢ vv1'6 79¢ 09TL ¥86'T ¥10¢
LSE 995'ST LSE TEV'TT YETY €T0¢
0€¢ 67661 0€¢C EL6'ET 9/6'S faners
€8T £99'8T €8T SYO'ET €29°s T10¢
ST ¥86°TT ST 7€S’s 45743 0T0¢C
0 ¥0Z'8 0 6659 S09°T 600¢
0 SYL'TT 0 9856 09T‘€ 800¢
0 SITCC 0 GS6ST 0919 L00¢
0 766°CC 0 T6L'ST 002, 900¢
0 ¥8€°0¢ 0 6ET'VT S¥Z9 S00¢
0 0TOvT 0 €59°9T LSE'L 00¢
0 VELTT 0 L09'VT LTT'L €00¢
0 TTY'0C 0 69T'ET wi'L 200¢
0 ov'6T 0 0LTCT EeTL T00¢
0 €/9'8T 0 T0€CT TLE9 000¢
0 8€0'ST 0 8Y0CT 066°S 6661
0 96LCT 0 L69°8 660V 866T
0 870'TT 0 8S8VT 1619 L66T
0 €788T 0 9€9'ET L8T'S 9661
0 0€T'9T 0 9/S'TT ¥SS'Yy 9661
0 066'vT 0 GST'TT 9€8‘¢c V66T
0 €€9'ST 0 €EETT 00€'Y €661

- My

dI\Q dnAd 90inos

| WINJSISIHIOH  YAUEnfues v

(Adv) 9 auoz ur YNl Aq 3sn My pue dAD [ed103SIH “g-3 d|qeL



009 €L  SIL  T€S €8y T6€  TSE O€E€E vLE ¢8e  0Ls  Ovs 066'S

Ajddns Ja1e jeddiuniAl TYLOL

(433 r47 8€1 [44 9 0 0 0 voc €0€‘C |eloiqns Ja1e/\ parioduwi)
72574 0S¢ 1€ 0 0 0 0 0 ¥0¢ 681°T lug|d Juswieal] s||iH 1se/M
0

8el 8/  CET BT B ¥9 0 0 ri8  JUE|d JUSURESI] J|ESSe

80¢ v6¢ €8¢ 0eT She 6T€E L8¢C oee vLE e8¢ oov 9€¢e 989°€ |B303qnS Jajempunoln
S¢ €¢ €¢ 1T 6T [4r €T 6 6 L 8 0 6ST AMD sould sadl
013 Te. €e St 144 6T LT LT 8T LT 0c¢ ve 9.t glsiineg uenr ues
S 8 8 S 8 8 8 L 8 8 8 6 06 S[|9M edaual) - 4a3sl||oH o AuD
¥9 6v1 191 9¢T 61 91 0ST 1) 891 LT LTT v89°T J31s1||oH jo A1D

8 & 8% - LST 'S8 88 Il 9LT 18T 161 S8BT 8LY'T . amo mao_m>,cc:m.,

2202 AM

(4v) zzoz 1ea A 121 104 J0ABAINg Joleln A Bsn Jo1e/ Jedidiuniyl “€-3 9]¢



R T T i T e b e TRt

R e e L T T ] st T it il b s A Y

600C AM Se dwes 3yl aq 01 pa1ewWlsa Sem 800Z-S00Z 104 S||9M eSaual) J331sH|OH Woly e1eq ‘T

066'S 68Y'T v18 6ST 9T 06 89T 8LY'T €20¢
¥6€9 88Y'C 85T 43 62C L6 6vYT 6€8°T zeoe
869°S YIET 1€6 GE vzt T0T LTST 9/S'T T20C
8v7’'s 066°T €0S‘T S¢E vee S6 L0L 69 0¢o¢
TT6'S ¥TsT 099°T €€ LST €8¢ 885 595 6T0C
6119 066'T 96S‘T 1743 ¥8T 1T LTT'T 8.6 8T0C
vve's 1S ov6‘T 43 67T 6L EVST 6vv'T LT0T
¥T0’S 0 89T 67 1434 S0T ST9'T TEET 9T0T
090°s 0 ¥9€'T 61 44 vTT 096'T 8YE'T STOC
L0T'9 0 6.6 61 :14 vIT 99z YETC ¥T0T
S0¥9 0 8797 1% 18¢ 0zt G59°C SS9°T €10¢
6129 0 LS9'T St 19T 0€T T9L'T 09€C 4414
L88'S 0 €6S'T LY 26¢ 08 1S9°T STt 110¢
198°‘s 0 A% LY 80¢€ 80T 61T 198°T 0T0T
6059 0 T LY €LE €71 €0S°C 152 600¢
6%69 0 €TET LY LTV €zt 9vL'T 62T 800¢
80TL 0 6TLT 67 Ly €Tl 8SL'C €TV’ £00T
0€69 0 006T 6v 0ST 4 T08'C LO6T 900¢
89¢€L 0 V8T 6t LYT €T LYT'E 6S6'T S00¢
9S€‘L 0 10TC 878'C 9Tv'e 002
T0€‘L 0 61T ¥SLT €50 €002
86€'L 0 1¢ 0Ty 95T’ 700t
TvT'L 0 0 1S8'E 06T°€ 1002
GET'L 0 0 1207 AN4S 0002
8/€'9 0 0 8GG‘E 078C 666T
86L'S 0 0 Tvy'E LSET 866T
98%'9 0 0 878 8€9°C L66T
§Ts’s 0 0 98¢ 6ET'C 966T
€9V 0 0 9vv'C L9T'C G66T
98T'L 98T'L 0 0 7661
990°s 990°s 0 0 €661
2169 2169 0 0 2661
TE9'L TE9'L 0 0 1661
seL's selL's 0 0 066T
L¥0’9 L¥0’9 0 0 6861
7ST's 7ST's 0 0 8861

|e30L juejd jueld  amd  ewsaneg  s|j9m eSausiy M9 M9 - amd
PSpIAlpUn  jUSWIIEaL] JUBLIEDLL SOUIdSBAL UBNFUBS . jo1sijoH jo Ay - 493S1jjoH  adojsAuuns

SIIH I3 3|essa : iy , jo Ay

To cood cmfmasem v cmfmcae Lt mmm tmmim e ccmalimiccimcas commesmmmee s a0 = memmam s



Cumulative Storage Change

250,000

~ 200,000

(4v) ebueyp aanejwng

150,000
100,000

=}

S

=

o

0
L

— M €20¢
— O ¢ceoc
— O 1¢0¢
— € 0c0¢
— V 6L0C
— asloc
— M L102
— vV 910¢
— asloc
— o vloe
— O €loe
— M¢l0Z
— M1LL0C
— M 0L0C
— € 600C
— d800¢
— O .00¢
— M 9002
~ M G00C
— V ¥00¢
— V €00¢
— d 2002
— g 100¢
— 0002
— d 6661
— M 8661
— V L661
— V 9661
— M G661
— a v66l
— M €661
— g 2661
— 91661
— O 0661
— d 6861
— O 8861
— O /861
— M 9861
— 9 G861
— 9 ¥861
— M €861
— M 2861
— 9186l
— V0861
— V661
— M 8.61
—a/..6l
— € 9.6l
— M GL6L

70,000

60,000 -

50,000 -~

40,000 -

30,000
20,000 -~
10,000 -

(Adv) swnjoA |enuuy

-10,000 +

-20,000

Water Year

Figure E-1
Water Year Type
and Storage, Southern
Management Area

March 2024

TODD
GROUNDWATER

Cumulative Storage Change

= Pumping

B Annual




Cumulative Storage Change

AT

200,000

- 150,000

(4v) ebueyd sanejwng

100,000
- 50,000

=

-50,000

— M €20¢
— O ¢coe
— O 1c0e
— g 0c0c
— V610C
— as8lLoc
— M LL0C
— V910¢
— asioc
— o vioe
— O €l02
- MZ¢log
— M 110C
— MO0L0C
— € 600¢
— d800¢
— O 2002
— M 900C
— M S00C
— V ¥00¢
— V €00¢
— d200¢
— g 100¢
— € 000C
— d 6661
— M 8661
— V 1661
— V 9661
— M G661
— ad v661
— M €661
— d 2661
— 8166l
— O 0661
— d 6861
— O 8861
— O /861
~ M 9861
— 96861
— 986l
— M €861
— M ¢861
— g 186l
— V 0861
- V6.6L
— M 8.6l
—a.l.6l
— 99461
- M G6L

50,000

40,000 -

30,000

20,000 -~
10,000

(AdVY) swn|op [enuuy

0
-10,000 -

Water Year

Figure E-2
Water Year Type
and Storage, San Juan
Management Area

March 2024

I Y

Cumulative Storage Change

= Pumping

B Annual




400,000

(4v) ebueyg aanejwng

(=]
o
o
(=]
Yol
~N

150,000
100,000
-50,000

~ 350,000
300,000
- 200,000

1 I

Cumulative Storage Change

— M €20¢
— O ¢ele
— O 1¢0¢
— & 0c¢0¢
— V6102
— asioe
- M 102
-V 91L0¢
— asloc
— O ¥l0C
—O¢€loe
— McloC
- M 110C
— M 0L0C
— 8 600C
— a800¢
— O 200C
— M 9002
— M S00C
— V ¥00¢
— V €00¢C
— d200¢
— g 100¢
— € 0002
— d 6661
— M 8661
— V /661
— V 9661
— M G661
— aveel
— M €661
— d 2661
— g L661
— O 0661
— d 686l
— O 8861
— O /861
— M 9861
— d G861
— d 861
— M €861
— M 2861
— 91861
- V 0861
- V 6.6l
— M 861
—d.ll6l
~ 9961
~ M G.61

100,000

80,000 -
60,000 -
40,000
20,000 -~
-20,000 -
-40,000 -

(Adv) swn|op [EnUUY

Figure E-3
Water Year Type
and Storage, Hollister
Management Area

TODD il

GROUNDWATER

Water Year

=== Cumulative Storage Change

= Pumping

B Annual




60,000

(dv) @Bueyd sanejwng

o
o
o
(=]
<

- 50,000
- 30,000
~ 20,000

10,000

Cumulative Storage Change

— M €¢0¢
— O ¢elc
— O 1¢0¢
— 8 020¢c
— V610C
— asloc
— M L1L0C
- V9L0¢
— astoc
— O vl0c
— O €loe
- M Zl0C
— M L1102
— M 0L0C
— g 600¢
— a800¢
— O 00¢
— M 9002
— M S00C
— V ¥00¢
— V €00¢
— 82002
— g 1002
— € 0002
— d 6661
— M 8661
— V 661
— V 9661
— M G661
— d v661
— M €661
— g 2661
— 9 1661
— O 0661
— 6861
— O 8861
— O /861
— M 9861
— 9 G861
— 9 ¥861
— M €861
— M ¢861
— d 186l
~ V086l
— V6.6l
~ M 8.6l
— a.l.l6l
— 9 9.61
- M GL6L

35,000

5,000
-5,000

30,000 -~
25,000
20,000 -
15,000 -
10,000 -

(AdY) swn|op [enuuy

Figure E-4
Water Year Type
and Storage
Bolsa Management Area

March 2024
TODD i

GROUNDWATER

Water Year

Cumulative Storage Change

Pumping

B Annual




APPENDIX F RATES AND CHARGES

List of Tables and Figures

Table F-1. Historical and Current San Benito County Water District CVP (Blue Valve) Water Rates

Table F-2. Recent US Bureau of Reclamation Charges per Acre-Foot for CVP Water

APPENDIX G TODD GROUNDWATER






mm.oomm

oS

€0vTS Yo TYS

Tezes

TE'L6S

Y9 IVS v9'TYS LO'0V9S LO°0Y9S 85°00€S (
0L'¥6TS SL'ETS SL'ETS T ors 10765 T0'76$ oS Tors 0L'€S9$ 0£°€S9% 89'176CS (
00'TTTS SS0vS SS'ETS SL'SES | ST'BETS | SS'€E6S 0S'I¥S SE°'S8S 00°'L¥9S 00°vZvs 00'vLTS (
00°012Z$ SSovS GSETS SL'GES | ST'BETS | SS'€6S 0S' TS SE'S8S 00°veYsS 00'vTYsS 00'vLTS (
00°80TS Ot'6€$ ST'ETS SL'YES | OT'VETS | 08°06S St'ovs S8'8S 00'STVS 00'ST¥S 00'S9¢$ (
SY'EBTS GT'8ES SL'TTS 0L'€ES | OE'0ETS | ST'88S 0€'6€S St'08S 00'v0vS 00'v0OvS 00'STS (
St'E8TS STYesS S6°LS 0T'0LS | SP'TLIS | STITTS | ST08S | 09°0€TS 00°€9€S 00°€9€S 00'602S (
St E8TS STYes St'9$ S0'89S | SY'/Z9TS | STETTS | 06'LLS | 08'9TTS 00'€9€S 00°€9€S 00'T6TS (
SSC8IS STYTS S6'S S0'99$ | SS'TITS | S6'60TS | S9'SLS | OT'€TIS 00°€9€$ 00°€9€$ 00°2LTS (

STETS S6'ES 08°€CS ST'L6S 0L'SYS SO'TES SLTYS 00°L¥TS 00°L¥TS 00'6LTS (

STETS 09'€S 0T'€TS 0E'v6S SEVYS ST'0€S SSTYS 00'8€TS 00'8€TS 00'0LTS (

ST'ETS STES ov'zes GS'T6S SO'ErS ST'6CS 0g'ors 00°SETS 00'SETS 00'0LTS (

0S8'CTS 0SS 0T'€CS 05°68$ 08'2SS 00'62S GE'ETS 00°S€TS 00°S€TS 00°0LTS (

0S°'CTS 0S'CS or'zes 06'98S STTSS S1'82S 0L'2T$ 00°02¢$ 00°022$ 00'SSTS (

0S°2TS 0S'CS SL'TTS SEV8S SL'6YS 0€'£TS 00°2TS 00°00TS 00°00TS 00'SETS (

0S'CTS 0S'TS$ 0€'9TS S8'vLS SSTYS ST0TS 0S'LTS 00°08TS 00°08TS 00'STTS (

0S'12S 0S'TS S8'VTS SL'T9S 09°CES Or'6TS SCLIS 00'0LTS 00'0LTS 00°00TS (

0S'12S 0S'TS 0v'8TS GL'S9$ 0L'VES S0'9€S 09°€2S 00'09TS 00°09TS 00'S8S (

0S'TTS 0S'TS 0v'8TS SL'99$ 0L'VES S0'9€$ 09°€TS 00'09TS 00°09T$ 00'S8S (

0S'12S 0S'TS OT'LTS 06'99S 00'SES ov'6vS S1'92$ 00'0STS 00°0STS 00°'08$ (

00°0TS 0S'TS STSTS 0L'€SS S0'STS SL9YS 0E'vTS 00'0STS 00°0STS 00°'SLS (

00'STS 0S'TS 00°GSTS 00°SLS (

0S'TTS 0S'TS 00'SSTS 00'SLS (

00'€E€S 0S'TS 00'SSTS 00'S.S (

00°'€€S 0S'TS 00°£STS 00'SLS (

00'€ES 0S'TS 00°0STS 00'SLS (
J8 009 43A0| 09'¥SS

J800S IXaN| 0L'9€S 00'TS 76'891S 19°LLS (
Je 00T 3s4l4| SL'STS

00°'SS 00'TS 76'89TS 19'LLS (

00°0TS 00'CS 00°0ZTS 00°'StS (

00°CT$ ST9S 00°0TTS 00'8€S (

u Tu oy 00'VES (

Ty Ty ot 00'tvES (

In3|ndl8y || [erasnpu) g jedidiunin

[ean3jnolsyy

sisyi0

H6

. 3es[aoym

1OEIIUOY)
R |9248d [[EWS

|erasnpu} = jedpiunin

|ean3jnolidy




1228 S| 1121J3p J0IDBJIIUOD B ‘S)SOD IdueuulewW pue uoliesado |enioe mD_Q 1S3J433Ul IBA0J 10U S90p I1ed 10eJIU0D 3Y] 1ey] Juaixa ayl o ‘Aed 03 pamojje =1e s1010edluod JAD °©

"Asen Aews sa3eu |enjoe ‘sasodind Suj11as-a1ed 10} pasn aJe saled 3say] ‘(AJenigad-yodeln) Jeah 1oesjuod Sujwooadn ay3 1oy Jaquiadaq ul saed Aeu
Al4awio) a1am yoiym ‘sail|ioe) 43410 UIRLIDD pue |BUBD BIOPUBIA-B1{2Q 3yl Sululelulew YHM PaleID0SSE S3S0J |, punj-}4|as, 01 a81eyd siyl painiisul Aloyiny Ja1ep) BIOPUSIA

‘Alenugag 3uimo||o) ySnouyl T YoJe|A SAI30844D s93eJ J9Y30 ||V "0 Jaqwiardas ySnouya T J4ac

"1121jep piedun uo pue |ejided uo 1saua:
0S|e 92IA195-}0-)S0D ‘SI9WO0ISNI |elIISNpul pue [edidlunw Jo4 ‘31ed (AI'g0) ddueualulew pue uojjetado ue pue aiel JuswAedal |eyded e sapnjoul s1asn |elsnpul pue [edpiun

'sJasn Jalem Jo Ajuolew ay3 yuasausdas Asyy se ‘Ajuo suasn !

v vIS S0'veS ST'€9S L6'EES 65°€6S ST'0S 9 v1S 0TS
61°6€ES 9v'CTS LO'SYS 9%'82S ¥9°965 ST°0S 61'6€ES ETTTS
TS'8€S ECLES LY'SES ty'8YS 6E°CCTS ST°0$ 7S'8ES TTTTS
LS°LTS 78'1CS 8T'LES 9L'TSS ¥8'0TTS ¢1°0S LS L2S 16°0TS
97°0TS 97'1¢S vS'LES YT 0vS 15°865 0€'0S 97°0TS €9°0TS
6€°0CS ¥6°0CS vLEYS SE'BYS STOTTS 0€'0S 6€°0CS LY'0TS
STYTS Sy'0TS 05'6YS 06'6€S S8'065 0€°0S STPTS €TOTS
99'0€$ Tv°0TS v T9S 8T'8€S 62°92TS 0€'0S 99'0€S 12°01S
99'0€S v1°0TS YL YES T8'€SS 8L'16S €T°0$ 99'0€S LO'0TS
18'8CS 86'6TS 0L'6TS L8'9YS 06°58S €2°0S 18'8CS 66'6S
6CLTS 8S'6TS TL'8ES 16'6€S TS'L9S S0°0S 6C°LTS 6L'6S
07'STS 8L'8TS S6'LES TL'6€ES SEYIS S0°0S 0T'STS 6€'6S
1565 65°8TS 89°TYS 76'8€S LLLSS S0°0$ 1565 6C°6S
16°TTS €T'8TS TT°9€S LCEES ov'¥S$ 11°0S 16'TTS 1T°6S
67 TTS C18TS LLTES 0T 0€S 78°0SS L0°0S 6v'TTS 90'6S
S6°0TS LS'LTS YEEES €6°0€S €6'LVS L0°0S S6°0TS 6L°'8$
66'6S ST'LTS TE'STTS €6'0€S TTTITS 11°0$ 6665 8985
1€'6S 6v°9TS TV vTTS €6°0€S 89'80TS TE6S vT'8S
66°LS L8'STS TO'CETS 0€'vCS [A 66°LS €6°LS
19°9$ ¥9'STS 98'VETS 0€'vTS S6°'88S 19°9S 78'LS
9t°'SS 8€'STS LO'6TTS 0EvTS GE'S8S 9t°'SS 69°LS
19°9S 80'STS CE0ETS 0EvTS 98'785 19°9S vS'LS
STV 95'vTS Ov'6CTS 9¥'LTS EV'6LS S9°CS 8T'LS
€V°'9S 0C'vTS 6S°6CTS 9r'LTS LLLLS Ev'9S 0T’LS
€L'TS 96'€TS 16°LCTS 9Y'LTS 10°0LS €LTS 86'9S
00°SS 9L’E€TS 88'0€TS 9v'LTS ' ELS 00°SS 88'9S

‘eu 6EETS LUEYTS 9¥'LTS LTILS ey 0L°9S

‘B'U 90°€TS oY’ LTTS 9¥'LTS 9T'2LS ey €995

‘B 69°CTS 06'CETS TTLTS T8'TLS ‘e SE'9S

ey ov'CTS L9°G9TS B 1TLTS 88'LLS ' 0T'9S




APPENDIX H LIST OF ACRONYMS

List of Acronyms

AF or A/F
AFY

AG

BMP
CASGEM
CEQA

cfs

CIMIS
CcocC

CvP

District or SBCWD

CWD
DDW
DWR
DWTP
ET

ft
GAMA
GICIMA
GPBO
gpd
GSA
GSP
GW
HUA
IRWMP
ITRC
IWTP
M&I
MA
MCL
MGD
msl

MT
MwW
NGVD
pdf
PPWD
PVWMA
RW
RWQCB

APPENDIX H

acre-foot

acre-foot per year

agriculture

Best Management Practices

California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring
California Environmental Quality Act

cubic feet per second

California Irrigation Management Information System
Constituent of Concern

Central Valley Project

San Benito County Water District

County Water District

Division of Drinking Water

California Department of Water Resources
Domestic Wastewater Treatment Plant
evapotranspiration

feet

Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment
Groundwater Information Center Interactive Map
General Basin Plan Objective

gallons per day

Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Groundwater Sustainability Plan

groundwater

Hollister Urban Area

Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
Irrigation Training and Research Center, California Polytechnic State University
Industrial Wastewater Treatment Plant

Municipal and Industrial

Management Area

Maximum Contaminant Level

million gallons per day

mean sea level

Minimum Threshold

Monitored well

National Geodetic Vertical Datum

Adobe Acrobat Portable Document Format
Pacheco Pass Water District

Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency
recycled water

Regional Water Quality Control Board

TODD GROUNDWATER



APPENDIX H LIST OF ACRONYMS

List of Acronyms (cont.)

SCVWD
SEIR
SGMA
SLDMWA
SMCL
SSCWD
USBR
UWMP
WRA
WTP
WWTP
Wy

APPENDIX H

Santa Clara Valley Water District
Supplemental Environmental Impact Report
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority
Secondary Maximum Contaminant Levels
Sunnyslope County Water District

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation

Urban Water Management Plan

Water Resources Association of San Benito County
Water Treatment Plant

Wastewater Treatment Plant

water year

TODD GROUNDWATER



San Benito County Water District
Board Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item:
Meeting Date: March 27, 2024
Submitted By: Megan Holland

Presented By: Megan Holland

Agenda Title: Discuss and Consider Approval of Resolution Amending the Procurement
Policy

Detailed Description:

On January 25, 2017, the Board approved the Procurement Policy for the District. The
policy identifies purchasing authority and purchase order standards to be used for the
acquisition of goods and services. As several years have passed since adoption, the
procurement policy needs to be reviewed and updated to ensure efficient workflow.

Following review, a change to the monetary limit for the use of purchase orders is
recommended to facilitate and streamline smaller purchases. The proposed change is to
increase the threshold requirement for the use of purchase orders from $500 to $2000.

The benefit of this change is to facilitate work and purchase of necessary items for
regular operating business needs of basic repair, ongoing maintenance and office
expenses. Due to inflation, most of the small items that need to be purchased are
exceeding $500 regularly due to a variety of factors, labor, shipping, etc. and increases to
the costs of raw materials.

In 2023, staff processed 149 purchase orders for items under $2,000. The total amount of
these purchases was approximately $185,000 or an average amount of $1241. Processing
a purchase order is an onerous administrative activity that costs staff time, both in waiting
for approvals and in the actual completion of the purchase order form. The change to the
approval limit reduces the administrative burden to acquire these items, however,
management retains authority and approval responsibility on all of these smaller
transactions.

All purchases between $0 and $2,000 remain at the direction and approval of the
Department Managers and are reviewed and ultimately approved by the Manager of
Administration, Finance and Business Services. The internal controls used in the process
for District purchases are strong as confirmed in annual external audits and remain the
same in all other parts of the policy. The documentation of the procurement policy will




provide updated procedures by which the District will comply and be audited against in
the annual audit process.

Financial Impact: Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Previous Committee/Board Action:
February 26, 2024 - Administration Committee Meeting

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Administration Committee Recommendation

2023 Procurement Data

Draft Resolution/Procurement Policy

Current Procurement Policy for reference

Recommendation:
Staff and Administration Committee recommend that the Board approve the resolution

adopting a procurement policy.

Action Required: X Resolution Motion Review
Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: February 26, 2024

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Administration Committee
(Flores/Shelton)

SUBJECT: Board Recommendation to revise the District’s Procurement Policy
to raise the limit for purchase orders from $500 to $2000 and also
some language revision

The Administration Committee met on February 26, 2024 and discussed the
staff’s recommended revisions to the District’s Procurement Policy.

The Administration Committee agreed to recommend the Board approve the
proposed changes to the District’s Procurement Policy.

i~

Director Flores Director Shelton




SBCWD Purchase Order Details

# of POs Jan - Dec 2023

Jan - Dec 2023 # of POs
$5001+ NN $500 - $1000 82
$2000 - $5000 NN $1001 - $1500 48
$1501 - $2000 EENEN $1501 - $2000 19
$1001 -$1500 IEEEEEEED $2000 - $5000 46
$500-$1000 AR $5001+ 32
0O 20 40 B0 80 100
Percentage
40% .
£ : Jan - Dec 2023 Percentage
30% 3 $500 - $1000 36%
$1001 - $1500 21%
20% .
“ g $1501 - $2000 8%
10% e _“ o [ $2000 - $5000 20%
0% : d e s e $5001+ 14%
$500-$1000  $1001 - $1501 - $2000 - $5001+

$1500 $2000 $5000

Before Process Change — 7 Steps After Process Change - 3 Steps

Manager Completes Staff Gets

Manager Makes

Determination Purchase Order

appropriate
Form

Manager Makes
signatures

Determination

Accounting
Processes Purchase
Order

GM/ManagerAFB
Signs Purchasa
Order

Purchaseis Made of

, /7
> 4
Jtem Purchase is Made GM/Managér AFB

of lterm ign$RUrchase

Accounting Verifies
Expenditures

. >nno::z=m
Verifies
Expenditures -




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING A PROCUREMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, the Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA)
establishes best practices for governmental agencies;

WHEREAS, the GFOA regards formal, written financial policies adopted
by the Board as central to a strategic, long-term approach to financial
management,

WHEREAS, the GFOA regards a procurement policy as essential to
encourage efficient, effective and fair public procurement; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to document its procurement policy in
order to maintain internal controls with regard to purchasing authorities and
process;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District that the Procurement Policy, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby
adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Benito County Water District Board
of Directors at the regular meeting of said board held on the 27% day of March,
2024, by the following vote: '

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:



(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2024-03)

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary

Andrew Shelton
President



Exhibit A

Procurement Policy
Purchase Authority:

Purchases must be approved by the appropriate approver from the authorization table. In the absence
of an approver for a given request, authorization will be obtained by the next highest authority in the
Authorization. All employees are responsible for making purchases at the lowest competitive price that
includes the lowest cost of procurement of the purchase.

Purchasing Authorization Table

Amount of Purchase* Purchase Type Approval Level
$0-2000 Purchase Order Not required Department Manager
>$2,000 to 55,000 Purchase Order Process Manager of Administration,
Finance and Business Services
or General Manager

>$5,000 to $30,000 Request for Quote General Manager

>$30,000 Request for Quote Board of Directors

Purchases $5,000 or less

Request for quotes (RFQ) for purchases of equipment, services, or supplies of $5,000 or less is not
required but will be solicited whenever practical or in the best interest of the District.

Purchases greater than $5,000 to $30,000

Purchases greater than $5,000 to $30,000 are subject to a RFQ (request for quote) with at least three 3
written quotes and approval by General Manager.

Purchases greater than $30,000

Purchasés greater than $30,000 for equipment, services or supplies are subject-to a RFQ procéss and
approval of the Board of Directors.

District policy for RFQ process is to encourage the use of small, minority and women-owned businesses.

Exceptions

Sole or preferred source purchases or situations where three (3) competitive quotes are required but
not available must be justified in writing and approved by the General Manager.

General Manager has the authority to waive the requirement for a RFQ in the event of an emergency
purchase. An emergency purchase is an immediate and serious need for supplies or services that cannot
be met through normal procurement methods, the lack of which would seriously threaten:

Essential services or operation of the District
The preservation or protection of property; or
The health or safety of any person.

Economic health of the District

ap ow



Public Works Contracts

Public works contracts must be compliant with Government Code 21251 and Department of Industrial
Relations reporting requirements.

Professional Services:

Definition: Expert and professional services provided by independent consultants which involve
extended analysis, personal expertise, the exercise of discretion and independent judgment in their
performance, which are of an advisory nature, provide a recommended course of action and have an
end product transmitting information which is related to District programs, and an advanced, specialized
type of knowledge, expertise, technical skill or training customarily acquired either by a prolonged
course of study or equivalent experience, such as accountants, financial advisors, auditors, grant writers,
program specialists, labor consultants and negotiators, investigators, certified laboratories, attorney and
other litigation-related specialists, environmental consultants, appraisers, architects, landscape
architects, surveyors, engineers, design professionals, and construction management firm.

Providers of professional services are selected on the basis of qualification, subject to negotiation of fair
and reasonable compensation.

Contracts for professional services of more than $30,000 are subject to board approval.

Purchase Orders

No purchase order is required for purchases of $500 or less, however any purchase over $100 must be
pre-authorized by a department manager.

Completed and signed purchase orders are required for purchases greater than $500.
Any employee may initiate a purchase order.

Purchase orders are signed by a department manager, Manager of Administration, Finance and Business
Services or General Manager as indicated below:

Amount of Purchase® Initiator of Purchase Order Approval of Purchase Order
0-$100 No purchase order required N/A
>$100-52000 No purchase order required. N/A

Purchases must be initiated or
pre-authorized by a
department manager. Invoices
must be approved by
department manager who
authorized purchase.

>$2000-55000

Any employee may initiate
purchase order.

Purchase order must be approved with 2 manager
signatures one of which must be the Manager of
Administration, Finance and Business Services or the
General Manager.

>$5000

Any employee may initiate
purchase order.

purchase order must be approved with 2 manager
signatures one of which must be the General Manager.




Claims
Claims (general accounts payable) are paid monthly after the Board meeting.

Urgent Payables

Urgent payments can be paid bi-weekly. These bills generally include utilities, employee insurance
premiums, employee reimbursements, employee payroll deductions, lease and loan payments, and
other invoices due before the monthly claims register is processed. Any invoice that is not a routine
invoice that is necessary to be paid with urgent payables due to an urgency issue, will be presented to
the Board at its monthly meeting as “Acknowledgement of Paid Claims Prior to the Board Meeting.”

Approved Vendor List

District will review and update periodically an approved vendor list for routine supplies and services.
Authorized District signers for approved vendors will be reviewed periodically.

General Manager has the responsibility to establish practices and procedures to ensure compliance with
these policies.

*All amounts for purchase order and purchasing authority limits are exclusive of taxes and freight.



SN,
SSOONTY o,
FQ I Gl

Resolution No. 2017-02

Current Procurement Policy

Provided as reference






RESOLUTION NO. 2017-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING A PROCUREMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, the Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA)
establishes best practices for governmental agencies; -

WHEREAS, the GFOA regards formal, written financial policies adopted
by the Board as central to a strategic, long term approach to financial
management,;

WHEREAS, the GFOA regards a procurement policy as essential to
encourage efficient, effective and fair public procurement; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to document its procurement policy in
order to maintain internal controls with regard to purchasing authorities and
process;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District that the Procurement Policy, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby

adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Benito County Water District Board
of Directors at the regular meeting of said board held on the 25th day of

January, 2017, by the following vote:

'AYES: DIRECTORS: Tobias, Tonascia, Bettencourt, Flores & Huenemann

NOES: DIRECTORS: None

ABSENT: DIRECTORS: wNone
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS: None
John Tobias
President

ATTEST: //

< Sara ySingleton
Assistant Manager




Exhibit A

Procurement Policy
Purchase Authority:

Purchases must be approved by the appropriate approver from the authorization table. In the absence
of an approver for a given request, authorization will be obtained by the next highest authority inthe
Authorization. All employees are responsible for making purchases at the lowest competitive price that
includes the lowest cost of procurement of the purchase. .

Purchasing Authorization Table

Amount of Purchase* Purchase Type Approval Level
$0-500 Purchase Order Not required Department Manager
>$500 to $2,000 Purchase Order Process Department Manager
>$2,000 to $5,000 Purchase Order Process Assistant Manager or District

Manager
>$5,000 to $30,000 Request for Quote District Manager
>$30,000 Request for Quote Board of Directors

Purchases $5,000 or less

Request for quotes (RFQ) for purchases of equipment, services, or supplies of $5,000 or less is not
required but will be solicited whenever practical or in the best interest of the District.

purchases greater than $5,000 to $30,000

Purchases greater than $5,000 to $30,000 are subject to a RFQ (request for quote) with at least three 3
written quotes and approval by District Manager.

Purchases greater than $30,000

Purchases gréater than $30,000 for equipment, services or supplies are subject to a RFQ process and
approval of the Board of Directors.

Exceptions

Sole or preferred source purchases or situations where three (3) competitive quotes are required but
not available must be justified in writing and approved by the District Manager.

District Manager has the authority to waive the requirement for a RFQ in the event of an emergency
purchase. An emergency purchase is an immediate and serious need for supplies or services that cannot
be met through normal procurement methods, the lack of which would seriously threaten:

Essential services or operation of the District
The preservation or protection of property; or
The health or safety of any person.

Economic health of the District

oo oo



Public Works Contracts

Public works contracts must be compliant with Government Code 21251 and Department of Industrial
Relations reporting requirements. ‘

Professional Services:

Definition: Expert and professional services provided by independent consultants which involve
extended analysis, personal expertise, the exercise of discretion and independent judgment in their
performance, which are of an advisory nature, provide a recommended course of action and have an
end product transmitting information which is related to District programs, and an advanced, specialized
type of knowledge, expertise, technical skill or training customarily acquired either by a prolonged
course of study or equivalent experience, such as accountants, financial advisors, auditors, grant writers,

'program specialists, labor consultants and negotiators, investigators, certified laboratories, attorney and

other litigation-related specialists, environmental consultants, appraisers, architects, landscape
architects, surveyors, engineets, design professionals, and construction management firm.

Providers of professional services are selected on the basis of qualification, subject to negotiation of fair
and reasonable compensation.

Contracts for professional services of more than $30,000 are subject to board approval.

Purchase Orders

No purchase order is required for purchases of $500 or less, however any purchase over $100 must be
pre-authorized by a department manager.

Completed and signed purchase orders are required for purchases greater than $500.

Any employee may initiate a purchase order.

Purchase orders are signed by a department manager, assistant manager or District Manager as

indicated below:

Amount of Purchase*

Initiator of Purchase Order

Approval of Purchase Order

0-$100

No purchase order required

N/A

>$100-$500

No purchase order required.
Purchases must be initiated or
pre-authorized by a
department manager. Invoices
must be approved by
department manager who
authorized purchase.

N/A

>$500-52000

Any employee may initiate
purchase order.

Purchase order must have one approval signature by a
department manager, the assistant manager or the

District Manager.

>$2000-$5000

Any employee may initiate
purchase order.

Purchase order must be approved with 2 manager
signatures one of which must be the Assistant
Manager or the District Manager.

>$5000

Any employee may initiate
purchase order.

Purchase order must be approved with 2 manager
signatures one of which must be the District Manager.




IS

Claims

Claims (general accounts payable) are paid monthly after the Board meeting. .

Urgent Payables

Urgent payments can be paid bi-weekly. These bills generally include utilities, employee insurance
premiums, employee reimbursements, employee payroll deductions, lease and loan payments, and
other invoices due before the monthly claims register is processed. Any invoice that is not a routine
invoice that is necessary to be paid with urgent payables due to an urgency issue, will be presented to
the Board at its monthly meeting as “Acknowledgement of Paid Claims Prior to the Board Meeting.”

Approved Vendor List

District will review and update periodically an approved vendor list for routine supplies and services.
Authorized District signers for approved vendors will be reviewed periodically.

District Manager has the responsibility to establish practices and procedures to ensure compliance with
these policies.

*All amounts for purchase order and purchasing authority limits are exclusive of taxes and freight.



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: 7
Meeting Date: March 27, 2024
Submitted By: Steve Wittry

Presented By: Steve Wittry

Agenda Title: Intent to Undertake a Project and Setting Public Hearing — Accelerated
Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

Detailed Description

The San Benito County Water District (District or SBCWD) was formed in 1953 by a
special act (District Act) of the State with responsibility and authority to manage water
resources in San Benito County. This authority extends to the storage of water in surface
or underground reservoirs. Section 15 of the District Act (Act) states that “the Board may
institute projects for the single zones ... to provide common benefit to such zone.” The
Act continues and states “the Board shall adopt a resolution specifying its intention to
undertake such project,... and fixing a time and place for public hearing”

Aquifer Storge and Recovery Projects (ASR Phase 1 and ASR Phase 2) were identified in
the Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan adopted by the District in
October 2023. To enhance grant funding opportunities, ASR project Phase 1 and certain
aspects of ASR Phase 2 were combined into the Accelerated Drought Response Project
(ADRoP).

ADROP is a project that is a result of the evolution of work that intends to provide
additional groundwater storage in the basin. Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR) has
been considered by the District for more than 20 years and various studies have been
performed to further these efforts. In summary, the premise of the Project is to store
available high quality water in years when it’s available and to extract the stored water in
times of water scarcity.

As identified in the attached estimate, the total project cost is approximately $40 million.
In January 2023, the District adopted M&I water rates sufficient to support ASR projects.
In addition, to date, the District has received over $13 million in grants from the
California Department of Water Resources (DWR) to design and implement ADRoP.
The District is hopeful of obtaining an additional award from the United State Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) in the near future.




Staff requests that the Board adopt a Resolution of Intent and Set a Public Hearing for
April 24, 2024 for Approval of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP).

Prior Committee or Board Action:
e October 25, 2023 Board Adoption of Master Plan

e October 25, 2023 Board Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Submittal of a
Grant Application to the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for the
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

e October 4, 2023 Board Approval of a Resolution Authorizing an Application be
made to the California Department of Water Resources for an Integrated Regional
Water Management Grant pursuant to the Water Quality, Supply and
Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014 (Water Code Section 79700 et. seq.),
enter into an agreement and granting General Manager Authorization to Execute
Documents in relation thereto

Financial Impact: Yes X No

While this specific action does not have any financial impact. If the project is ultimately
approved, the project would have a financial impact estimated $40 Million. The funding
would be provided from District reserves and grant funds. District reserves expended
would be repaid through M&I water user rates.

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Draft Resolution of Intent including Cost Estimate and Location Map

Recommendation: Board to Adopt a Resolution of Intent and Set a Public Hearing for
April 24, 2024 for Approval of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP).

Action Required: X Resolution Motion Review
Resolution No.  Motion By: Second By:

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
INTENTION TO UNDERTAKE A PROJECT:
ACCELEARATED DROUGHT RESPONSE PROJECT
AND SET A PUBLIC HEARING

WHEREAS, the SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT ("District”)
is vested with the power to do any and every lawful act necessary so that
sufficient water may be available for any present or future beneficial use or
uses on the lands or for the inhabitants within the District including the
storage and distribution of water for domestic, fire protection and municipal
uses; and

WHEREAS, the District is further vested with the power to acquire by
grant or otherwise, and to hold, use and enjoy real and personal property of
every kind including land, structures, and buildings, and to alter and
operate any and all works or improvements necessary to carry out the
purposes of the District; and

WHEREAS, Section 70-15 of California Water Code Appendix (District
Act) authorizes the District to institute projects in a Zone of Benefit for the
financing, construction, operation and maintenance of any work of
improvement of common benefit to such Zone; and

WHEREAS, the District intends to initiate the Accelerated Drought
Response Project within Zone 6 by commencing construction of the project
to serve properties within the Hollister Urban area; and

WHEREAS, the Accelerated Drought Response Project is a benefit to
Zone 6 in that it uses the San Felipe imported water, allows for the
treatment and storage of high quality water in the aquifer in wet years and
will recover stored water in drought years for customers in the Hollister
Urban Area.; and

WHEREAS, improving water reliability is a key component of rate
stabilization as the District (and entire California water community) face
uncertain water supplies due to changing weather patterns; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the District to undertake the project set
forth above subject to the public hearing and the results, if any, of any
written protests against the proposed project.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The Board of Directors hereby gives notice of its intention to
institute a project within Zone 6, to wit, the initiation of the Accelerated
Drought Response Project.

2. The engineering estimate of costs to undertake such a project
and a map showing the general location and construction are attached
hereto.

3. A public hearing to consider the undertaking of the project
described herein shall be held on April 24, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. at the District
Office located at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California.

4. Any elector in Zone 6 opposed to the undertaking of the above-
described project may submit a written protest prior to the conclusion of
said hearing. The Board of Directors shall suspend all proceedings if written
protests against the proposed project, signed by a majority in number of the
electors of the proposed zone of benefit, are timely filed with the board.
Protests received after the conclusion of the hearing shall not be considered
by the board.

An “elector” for purposes of this paragraph 4 shall mean any
person who is qualified to vote in the State of California, is registered under
the provisions of the California Elections Code in the precinct of the
proposed zone and is a resident of the proposed zone as of the date of the
aforementioned public hearing.

The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a regular
meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District
held on March 27, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2024-04)

Andrew Shelton
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



ADRQ? Capztal Cost Estimate

Fwe ASR Wells
i PRSI0 iy i nd Los! (sl {0s] nles
1SiteWak ‘ 4 IS |§ 880 $818.000 Sourcs: ADRoP BoDR (HOR. June 2023
2iDsepWel wiih 18 Casing & Exh |8 6900 $A7E0. 00| Scurce: ALRoP BaDR(HDR. June 2023
AConcein 94 oY 1§ 189 8180, 400] Soece. ADROP BoDR(HDR, June 2073
£|ASR Weall Pumps 5 EA [§ 2900 §1.250,000| Sourcs ADRoP BoDR{HDR, June 2023
ELASR Well Pump ViDs 5 EA 1§ 5,00 8250000 Source: ADROP BoDRHDR, June 2023
EDinkchion Syskem 1 EA |8 14000 $174 00| Source: ADRoP BoDR{HDR. June X023
7P elabyicated Buikding 1 A |5 B85 §161. 20| Soircs ADRSP BoDRHR June 2023
8 Crsita Picing, Vakes and Appurenances 1 1S 1§ 8800 8845000 Source: ADRCP BoDRHDR. June 2023
O Eleckical ard Inskumenision 1 5 {8 119080 §1180.000} Scirce. ADRoP BeDREHDR, June 2073
: Subtotal: $0,580.500
WHWTP EXPANSION {4.5t0 6,75 MGD}
11 Exx ok and Sitewark 1 1S 18 55600 ER25 8| Saurce WHWTP Bipansion 60% Desian. Sep 207
2\Fiant Process Yard Fiping 1 IS |§ 2828 SNE 80| Source: WHNTP Barsian 0% Design. Sep 203
3{Faw Waler Purp Siafion 1 Exh |8 18250 £182 50| Source. WHWTP Bansion 80% Design. Sep 2023
4 Autdlrainer 1 Exh |8 187X $153 70| Sourcs WHITP Bpansian 83% Design. Sep 2027
HadiieCab 1 Exh |$ 371284 3712 84| Sourcs WHNTP BExarsion 80% Desion. Sep 202y
AlFilier 1 Exh |§ 102024 §1020.260| Sourcs WHNTP Bxpansian 60% Design. Sep 2027
7|Drving Bed 1 Exh |§ EBE27X 852 72| Source WHWTP Expansion £0% Design. Sep 2023
8Cherrical Svstars 1 IS |§ 33w §314 30| Source: WHNTE Bxoarsion 6% Design. Sep 2073
GiEleckical ard Inskumenizlian 1 IS |§& 11240 £1.102 40| Source. WHATF Bpansian 80% Design. Sep X025
Subtotal STIA. 70
Pipelines
| Tieroub rom ) Crossiown Pipeline10°C003 - 8000 LF 1S 110 $880.000 | Unit Frice Source: ADRGP BoDR (HDR. Jure 2023
2 Excavation L 41 € g 45 £188 885| Unit Frice Sources ADRoP BeDR {HDR, Jure 2023,
3 Badkiil L 40Bl oY |8 45 $181,817] Unit Price Source: ADRoP BoDR {HDR, Jure 2023
4Surface Reskraim D F (& 1 $308 657| Unit Price Soirce: ADRoP BoDR(HDR, Jure 2023)
.5{lsdaﬁmvm andFiing ' 151 Exh |8 4000 60,00
NehilzationDemehization b 840
Gengs al Condilicrs . 1% S1885.000
Conracky P 15% 8325100
g_v;_nsam F?amm:m Admin& CM 3% %132:41}0
Assuming0.440e pa wella. Unitaost b bsed on
Redfinsaks data and adjis ied toinclude polsntial
fullre incesse.
hiips A edfin.comCasHolista Lovers-Liv
Land Aoquisition 23| A 1000 000 | BE0 2 Vhomed 23058356




Figure 4. ADRoP Components and Existing _uqo.mmoa. Treatment Facilities

LY W

”— A
- v FF S TH Y

0 ASR Wellfield — Crosstown Transmission
& Existing Municipal Well

Pipeding
Expansion — Hollister Distribution

%

ADRoP COMPONENTS

“hemrre Dlwos Ly fieres Dpes (ke b greisd
oy of Bas Rt Uatwe s @ited din 19 000
1) i, M. AT

I Serm® fadch Briere (e y iy e




; i’; ' }VO

hOH . 3, ;;*i |

‘i& % *"ﬁp.i.’gﬁ’ C, .

b, L1 o ER, o™
l "‘éiggmﬁ%*&

Agenda

Item

# 8



ABDUT US BENEFITS BEPORT A CLAIM SERVICES PROGRAMS RISK CONTROL TRAINING HEWS PODCASTS

MARK YOUR CALENDAR: 2024 SPRING ACWA JPIR MEMBERSHIP SUMMIT

May 6-7, 2024, Sacramento, CA

2024 Spring ACWA JPIA Membership Summit Registration

As of 2024, the ACWA JPIA Conference has been renamed the ACWA JPIA Membership Summit.
Advance registration for the Membership Summit is required by April 22,2024.

The 2024 Spring ACWA JPIA Membership Summit will feature a CWIF Election on May 6, 2024. CWIF Election Nominations are due on April 6, 2024.

2024 Spnng ACWA JPIA
Membership Summit

Tentahve Schedule

May 6, 2024

. Momlng
o;Hot Breakfast
o Employee Benefits Committee Meeting’:
8 Executive Committee Mee!mg
» Afternoon:
o Buffet Bunch

o Board of D:rectors Meeting featuring California Water Insurance Fund
(CWIF) Electlon

May 7, 2024
s Morning:
o ‘Hot Breakfast

o Educational Sessions- Attend learning oppertunities featuring relevant
water industry insights. Additional details'to follow.

Register at https://acwajpia.info/summitregistration

Rdditional Membership Summit detail_s will soon be available. Stay tuned for updates.

2023 Fall ACWA JPIA Conference

ACWA JPIA’s Fall Conference took place in Indian Wells, California.

Y D jp =

CORNECT Q.




STOUNTY iy,

bbbl ™ “1}’* ‘3
Q o %STABLISEESe, 'Yy,
& * \ m# ] i*;? 0%

=

e

S
&

e, OV, 3, 1975
OF ) yomers i
LTRSS

ﬂ’

Agenda
[tem

#9






Y

INFORMATION

Learn valuable
information about a
variety of local, state

and federal water issues
during 40 programs and
Main Stage keynotes.

CONNECTIONS

Attend Tuesday's
committee meetings and
Wednesday's Region
meetings to increase
your engagement with
ACWA and hear valuable
information that you can
take back to your agency.

2 | ACWA 2024 Spring Conference & Expo

NETWORKING

Meet with your
colleagues in California‘s
water community to
share ideas and best
practices during the
Wednesday networking
lunch and Thursday
networking breakfast, as
well as 4 receptions.

INNOVATION

Learn about the latest
innovations agencies
are implementing
during the new Solution
Spotlight sessions. Also,
spend one-on-one time
with vendors around
the U.S. who have new
products and services to
offer your agency.

CEUs

Earn continuing
education credits for legal,
communications, energy,
financial and drinking
water professionals.



CONFERENCE HIGHLIGHTS

Visit ACWA's Exhibit Hall and learn what products & services our exhibitors have
to offer as well as enjoy networking opportunities like the networking breakfast &
lunch, receptions and Exhibit Hall activities.

SEEYOU IN SACRAMENTO!

The ACWA 2024 Spring Conference & Expo is set to take
place May 7- 9 at the SAFE Credit Union Convention Center in
Sacramento.

Sacramento is America's Farm-to-Fork Capital. The city is
buzzing with things to taste, see, and savor including farm-fresh
restaurants, plentiful farmers markets, home-grown breweries,
colorful street murals, Gold Rush-era family attractions, or a
sunset walk along the river.

ACWA conferences are the premier destination for water
industry professionals to learn and connect. Join us and enjoy
the enhanced conference experience with new features and
more networking opportunities!

IMPORTANT INFORMATION- |

Recorded Programs

> Designated conference programs will be
recorded and made available for on-
demand access after the conference.

Group Savings

Buy five full conference registrations,
receive one free! A perfect time to
introduce new staff to the California water
community.

Tuesday Committee Meetings
Registration is required to attend any part
of ACWA's Spring Conference & Expo,
including the complimentary Tuesday, May
7 committee meetings.

Health & Safety

Visit acwa.com/events for registration and
health & safety information.

SACRAMENTO

----------

VISITTHE

SITE FOR
CONFERENCE
ATTENDEES! WELCOME, ACWA!

https://www.visitsacramento.com/
association-of-california-water-agencies

 TIMETO MIX & MINGLE!

@ Avfter,s“pén'c‘lin'g the day learning, join these

 opportunities to mix, mingle and connect with
friends and colleagues in the water industry. All

~ ACWA conference attendees are welcome to attend! d

Member Mixer

Tuesday, May 7 | 4:00 PM - 5:00 PM

New members and first-time attendees are invited to
kick off conference with ACWA Leadership and the
Membership Committee at the Member Mixer.

ACWA Welcome Reception
Tuesday, May 7 | 5:00 PM - 6:30 PM

Kick off the conference and greet your colleagues in
the Exhibit Hall. Sponsored by Kleinfelder

ACWA Wednesday Evening Reception
Wednesday, May 8| 5:00 PM - 6:00 PM

Join ACWA in the Exhibit Hall for this hosted
reception. Sponsored by Jacobs

CalDesal Hosted Mixer
Wednesday, May 8 | 6:00 PM - 7:00 PM

Join CalDesal for a hosted mixer.

ACWA Foundation Reception
Wednesday, May 8 | 6:00 PM - 7:15 PM

Join us for this reception and unwind after an
informative day. Hear updates on the ACWA
Foundation and connect with your friends and other
water leaders.

ACWA 2024 Spring Conference & Expo | 3



CONFERENCE PROGRAMS

State Water Resources Control Board Drinking Water Contact Hours may be a

vailable for qualifying programs

COMMUNICATIONS
COMMITTEE PROGRAM

Diving into Dialogue: Is Podcasting
the Right Tool for Your Agency?

As podcasts continue to be a popular
way to receive news and entertainment,
many agencies are assessing whether

it could become a valuable part of their
overall communications strategy. Hear
from experienced podcasters about dif-
ferent approaches, costs and resources
needed, as well as tips for getting
started and evaluating success.

FINANCE PROGRAMS
) CPAs may receive continuing education

Q ' credit by attending this program.

Fiscal Sustainability in Times of
Uncertainty

As water agencies, we face numerous
uncertainties and challenges to
ensuring long-term fiscal sustainability
and an affordable water supply to
customers. The uncertainties can
include SGMA implementation,
water rights, supply shortages and/

- ordecreasing demands, just to name
a few. How do we manage these
challenges in a fiscally sustainable
manner and minimize rate and fee
increases? In this session, a diverse
group of water agencies will discuss
the challenges they are experiencing
and what actions they plan to take

(or are already taking) to ensure their
agency is fiscally sustainable now and
into the future.

How to Conduct a Rate Study While
Avoiding Common Pitfalls and
Maintaining Best Practices

Conducting a successful water rate
study is critical in order for agencies to
effectively fund operating and capital
needs, advance key policy objectives,
and meet the legal requirements of
Proposition 218. However, the rate
study process is fraught with inherent

4 | ACWA2024 Spring Conference & Expo

financial, political, and legal risks. This
panel will cover common rate study
mistakes so that your agency can
avoid them.

MEMBERSHIP

COMMITTEE PROGRAM

Leadership Crisis: Real Talk,
Tough Questions

As the nation faces workforce
challenges, the California water
industry is struggling to attract the
best and the brightest talent, as well
as shape a leadership that is reflective
and responsive to the needs of the
changing public expectations. Come
listen to a frank discussion by leaders
throughout the state as they assess the
landscape of talent and leadership in
water and share what they really think
about the future of water.

POLICY PROGRAMS

Are California’s Water Managers
Ready for the Future?

As California continues to face complex
challenges related to water scarcity,

it is imperative to build alignment
among water leaders on the trajectory
of California's water management.
This session brings together a broad
range of water managers to discuss
and confront the future of California's
water management. Through poignant
questions and insightful, candid
discussions, panelists will share their
perspectives and deliver policy
recommendations that can ensure
success.

Using Consolidation to Achieve the
Human Right to Water

In recent years, the State Water
Resources Control Board has prioritized
consolidating “failing” water systems
with larger, more stable systems to
advance the goals of SB 200 and the
Human Right to Water. This panel

will explore how water systems are

actually being consolidated (physically
and managerially), the risks and
opportunities for receiving systems,
and how this strategy can advance
access to safe drinking water.d

Reviewing the Weather
Whiplash of 2023

With the Governor's emergency
proclamations for both drought

and flood in place simultaneously,
Water Year 2023 provided extreme
examples of the challenges that come
with managing water resources in
California. The state’s variable climate
and increasing impacts of climate
change mean the extremes are likely to
become the norm. This panel will bring
together experts to discuss the state’s
response, the challenges of managing
for both drought and flood, and the
lessons learned for the future.

SOLUTION SPOTLIGHT

Flow Investments, Floodplains,
and Fish Survival
Hear about the importance of

floodplain reactivation in providing
crucial fish habitat and how

- climate change, and population growth, --infrastructure — like the Fremont Weir

"Big Notch" and Tisdale Weir notch
projects — will efficiently enhance
floodplain habitat, conserving water for
various stages of the salmon freshwater
life cycle and benefiting regional
species.

WATER INDUSTRY TRENDS

Powering Through: The Role of
Distributed Energy Resources in
Crisis Response

With the prevalence of public safety
power shutoff events across California
and increasing reliance on electrical
power to serve customers with safe and
reliable drinking water, itis now more
important than ever to consider
distributed energy resources, such as
backup energy generation and storage
sources, to protect water system



~ 'Data Collaboration

operations and align with California's
long-term goals to migrate to cleaner
energy sources. This program will
discuss how Distributed Energy
Resources can play a significant role in
power resilience.

=%, This program may count towards

;’\ & | the Certified Energy Manager (CEM)

7 continuing education credit.

Delta Focus: Conveyance
Project Updates

The Delta Reform Act set the coequal
goals of improving water supply
reliability statewide and enhancing
the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-
San Joaquin Delta ecosystem. Two-
thirds of California’s water originates
in the Sierra Nevada and is delivered
to more than 27 million Californian’s
and about 750,000 acres of farmland.
The infrastructure that enables this
conveyance is critical to the health of
communities and the success of the
state's economy. This program will
provide a timely update on the Delta
Conveyance Project progress.

Liquid Intelligence: Lessons
Learned from a Decade of Water

The California Data Collaborative
(CaDC) was envisioned and launched
atthe 2015 ACWA Fall Conference

in Indian Wells. Since then, reporting
requirements have continued to grow,
and water manager-led data services
have grown substantially. What has
worked and what has not? This session
will share lessons learned from the past
decade of the CaDC and share the
vision for how, by working together,
smartly, and collaboratively, water
managers can prepare for whatever the
future holds.

The Home Stretch of Making
Conservation a Way of Life

In 2018, the legislature established
the state goal of Making Water

Conservation a California Way of Life.
This panel will explore the regulatory

effort, the remaining concerns and
challenges, what we've learned through
the process, and what is needed to

be successful from policy concept to
implementation.

Harmony in Hydrology: The Need
for Water Managers to Embrace
Nature-Based Solutions

Adaptation is the name of the game

in California water management. Hear
from a panel of experts hailing from the
mountains to the sea on how they are
embracing nature-based solutions to
better manage the increasing volatility
of California’s water supply. Through
insightful analysis and real-world
examples, panelists will share holistic
approaches that not only safeguard
water resources but also contribute to
biodiversity, economic stability, climate
resiliency, and community well-being.

Is Ag Doing Its Part?

Wide-ranging, broad legislation is
often inadequate to address the
specific needs and challenges faced
by different regions and communities
in California. Local irrigation and water
districts are typically better positioned
to address these needs and tailor
solutions accordingly. This program
will explore innovative ways that water
suppliers in Northern, Central, and
Southern California are working with
agricultural customers, regulatory
agencies and NGOs to solve local
problems for California’s water supply
security.

Does Money Grow on Trees?
Find the Billions in Your Backyard!

We've all heard the saying “money
doesn't grow on trees,” but what if the
money wasn't on the tree but rather

in the services the tree provides?
Come learn about ecosystem services
valuations and how you can find the
billions hiding in your backyard from
colleagues who have completed
ecosystem valuation studies and
discovered gold!

ACWA
REGION
MEMBERSHIP
MEETINGS

MAY 8, 2024

Connect with
fellow region
members
for updates
and input on
region activities,
committees, and
ACWA's Statewide

priorities.

ALL MEMBERS
WELCOME!




REGION ISSUE FORUMS

2 @  State Water Resources Control Board Drinking Water

~ Contact Hours may be available for qualifying programs.

Integrated Solutions for Successful Local Water Management
Presented by Region 1

This program will share the story of the Integrated Regional Water
Management Program, including the unique ways IRWMP has been
implemented regionally throughout the state, particularly the North Coast.
Panelists will offer invaluable insights gleaned from local and innovative water
management solutions and highlight the North Coast Resource Partnership in
Region 1. Join us to hear their experiences and learn from their successes in
building resilient water management practices for the future.

Understanding the Bay Delta Plan's Impacts on Region 4
Presented by Region 4

Join ACWA members for a discussion highlighting the state’s Water Quality
Control Plan for the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta (Bay-
Delta Plan’s) impacts on Sacramento, San Joaquin, Solano, Stanislaus, and Yolo
counties. Gain insights from local leaders directly affected by the plan and
discover successful project examples from the past.

Southern California Innovations in Water
Presented by Regions 8

Join this panel discussion as water leaders explore how innovative projects are
changing the future of water in ACWA's Region 8. The panel will explore top-
ics including cutting-edge ocean desalination, transformative water recycling
projects, and innovations in Bay-Delta conveyance. Gain insights into project
development and understand how these initiatives pave the way for a resilient
water future.

IT'S
AWARD
TIME!

JOIN US FOR THESE AWARD
PRESENTATIONS!

May 8, 8:30 a.m., Main Stage
Excellence in Water Leadership

May 9, 11:45 a.m., Main Stage

Clair A. Hill Agency Award for Excellence

John P. Fraser Water Leaders Fellowship Award

Scholarships

EXCLUSIVE PARTNER
ACWA JPIA

2024 SPRING
CONFERENCE SPONSORS

Bartle Wells Associates
Carollo
CDM Smith

Contractor Compliance
& Monitoring, Inc.

Cucamonga Valley Water District
Eastern Municipal Water District
El Dorado Irrigation District
Five Star Bank
Gannett Fleming
HDR
INTERA
Jacobs
Kleinfelder

~ “Kronick ~
MWH Constructors
Nossaman
Orange County Water District
PFM Asset Management
Rancho Water
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Stoel Rives
Todd Groundwater
Water Replenishment District
waterTalent
West Basin Municipal Water District
West Yost

Western Municipal Water District
(Western Water)

Woodard & Curran

Last Updated: 3/12/24



PARSONS

(\f/v‘ﬂﬁl’};(hﬂﬂ\ey»[:[f
WHAT'S HAPPENI

e Dedicated Exhibit Hall Hours
Spend one-on-one time with vendors from around the U.S. whose products and

services may offer you just the right solutions for your agency.

* Tuesday Welcome Reception
~ Network with your peers and friendswhile-visiting with vendorsfrom-across the—————
nation!

* Wednesday Evening Reception
Enjoy a hosted reception in the Exhibit Hall!

e Continental Networking Breakfasts
Enjoy a quick breakfast and network in the Exhibit Hall each morning!

® Prize Drawings
Mingle with your peers and exhibitors and win great prizes! All raffle prizes will be

drawn on Thursday and you must be present to win.

* Fun Activities Using the Mobile App
Visit areas of the Exhibit Hall and locations all throughout conference for chances to

win prizes using the conference mobile app!

ACWA 2024 Spring Conference &Expo | 7



C B
HE R
i W b

ol

, 5/7/24

=
o=

8:00 AM -9:15 AM

AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE

8:30 AM - 12:00 PM
ACWA JPIA SEMINARS

9:30 AM - 10:45 AM
GROUNDWATER COMMITTEE

11:00-12:15PM
WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ENERGY COMMITTEE
12:15 PM - 1:30 PM
COMMITTEE NETWORKING LUNCH
12:30 PM-1:30 PM
OUTREACH TASK FORCE
1:45 PM - 3:00 PM

-FINANCE COMMITTEE. -
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE
WATER QUALITY COMMITTEE
3:15PM -4:45PM
COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE
FEDERAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE
5:00 PM - 6:30 PM

WELCOME RECEPTION
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

Qualify for continuing education credit === Designated Recorded Programs TBD

Questions: Email events@acwa.com

Online Registration Deadline: April 19, 2024

=]

WED 5/8/24
7:30 AM - 8:30 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

8:30 AM - 10:00 AM

WELCOME KEYNOTE/MAIN STAGE
10:30 AM - 11:45 AM

PROGRAM SESSIONS 2

12:00 PM - 1:30 PM

CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL
NETWORKING LUNCHEON

1:30 PM - 2:00 PM

SOLUTION SPOTLIGHTS

o Member Case Study, Associate Service, Demo

1:30 PM - 2:15 PM
WATER TALK / MAIN STAGE

“2:30PM330PM T
PROGRAM SESSIONS

3:45PM -5:00 PM
REGION 1-10 MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

5:00 PM - 6:00 PM
ACWA RECEPTION IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

 CLOSING NETWORKING LUNCHEON _

f— =

THUR s/9/24

«’ i

7:00 AM - 8:00 AM
WELLNESS ACTIVITY

7:30 AM - 11:00 AM

CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL
7:30 AM - 9:00 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST

IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

9:15AM -10:15AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS

10:30 AM - 11:30 AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS R

11:45AM - 1:15 PM
KEYNOTE & AWARDS/MAIN STAGE

1:30 PM - 3:00 PM

Last Updated: 3/13/24

All conference programs are subject to
change without notice.

B ]



ACWA 2024 Spring Conference & Expo
May 7 - 9, 2024 | Sacramento, CA

REGISTER ONLINE
Register online by April 19, 2024 at www.acwa.com to take advantage of the advance pricing.

O O REGISTER ON SOMEONE'S BEHALF
ﬁ Select from a list of people affiliated with your company in your account. If the registrant is not listed, you will need to
create a Portal profile for the registrant through the ACWA website before registering.

GROUP SAVINGS! Register 5 individuals from the same organization, receive a 6th registration free!
(Subject to terms and conditions.) Contact Teresa Taylor at TeresaT@acwa.com for more information before rggggterlng

F OJ\MH"- ,

J:(dk:‘”’\«/ TION olr‘m INS

Advantage pricing applies to ACWA public agency members, associates & affiliates. , 3 3. 2 5
Standard pricing applies to non-members of ACWA. : ADVANTAGE STANDARD ADVANTAGE = STANDARD

Full Conference Registration

Includes access to Tuesday ACWA Committee meetings, all ACWA conference programs, 5
ACWA meal functions*, ACWA Exhibit Hall, ACWA hosted receptions and access to on- $840 : $1 260 $870 $1,290
demand designated conference recordings after the live conference. *ACWA meal functions ' '
include: Wednesday Continental Breakfast, Wednesday Networking Lunch, Thursday Continental
Breakfast and Thursday Closing Lunch

D um.a

R

Tuesday Committee Meetings Only (complimentary - must register to attend) |
Includes Tuesday Committee Box Lunch. Committee meetings are not recorded. Virtual $0 $0 $0 = $0
participation is not available. |

One-Day Conference Registration

Wednesday, May 8: Includes access to all Wednesday ACWA conference programs,
Tue. ACWA Welcome Reception in the Exhibit Hall, Wed. ACWA Reception in the Exhibit
Hall, Wed. ACWA Continental Breakfast and Wed. ACWA Networking Lunch. On-demand

designated conference recordings are NOT included. v $735 5320 ; ES

Thursday, May 9: Includes access to all Thursday ACWA conference programs, Thur. ACWA
Continental Breakfast and Thur. ACWA Closmg Lunch. On demand designated conference
“recordings are NOT inciuded. o

Guest Conference Registration
Guest registration is not available to anyone with a professional reason to attend. $130 $130 $130 $130

Includes access to ACWA hosted receptions.

PRE-ORDER: On-Demand Designated Conference Recordings Only
Includes on-demand access to designated conference recordings after the live conference.
Video recordings will only be available for the Main Stage presentations. All other designated $240 $360 $240 $360
educational programs will only have on-demand audio recordings and PDFs of presentations made
available. See Qre/mnna[y agenda for details.

| ‘wlew:.'ul NFOF RMATION ; i e e & PR A

A

You must be registered for the ACWA conference in order to receive hotel reservation information and conference special room
rates. Conference special rates are available February 1 - April 15, based on availability.

HOTEL & ROOM RATES IMPORTANT DATES

Hyatt Regency Sacramento $225 per night* {resort fee waived) The conference hotel room block opens on February 1, 2024.

Sheraton Grand Sacramento $226 per night* (resort fee waived) Deadline for group rate is April 15, 2024.

* Plus applicable state/local taxes & fees For those registering for conference prior to February 1, information
on how to reserve your hotel room will be provided via e-mail on

HEALTH & SAFETY Fidbruzmy,

}I:lealsﬁ che?k A,C\:CVA - co'nference e HERE for current For those registering for conference from February 1 to April 15, your

ealth & safety information. confirmation e-mail will include the information on how to reserve your

hotel room and an opportunity to receive the conference special hotel
rates.

QUESTIONS? Contact events@acwa.com



